
 

 

City of Rainier 

Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 

May 16, 2022 

Rainier City Hall 

6 p.m. 

 

City Administrator W. Scott Jorgensen called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.  

 

Budget Committee Members Present: Mike Avent, Connie Budge, Jerry Cole, Nick Gratzer, 

Jeremy Howell, Jan Kenna, Mike Kreger, Ethan Pearson, Jan Rich, Levi Richardson, Denise 

Watson 

 

Staff Present: Sarah Blodgett, Gregg Griffith, W. Scott Jorgensen, Sue Lawrence, Summer Sears 

 

Selection of Budget Committee Chair: Mayor Jerry Cole moved to nominate Nick Gratzer as 

chair. That motion was seconded by Jan Rich and adopted unanimously.  

 

Public Testimony: There was no public testimony at this time.  

 

2022-23 Budget Message: Jorgensen read the budget message into the record. He added that the 

budget is built on an assumed 4 percent cost of living adjustment for public works and clerical 

staff, but union negotiations are ongoing.  

 

Presentation of Proposed 2022-23 Budget: Jorgensen said there are no major changes to the 

general fund. The fund includes the police department budget, and Police Chief Gregg Griffith 

gave an overview of that. There are no major changes to that budget. The department requested a 

new vehicle last year but is not doing that this time. There are no major changes to the debt 

service fund. Public Works Director Sue Lawrence said that the line items for lab supplies and 

chemicals in the sewer fund are increased by $10,000 because the costs have gone up. Jan Spika 

asked about the seasonal worker position that was included in the proposed budget. Lawrence 

said that worker would do maintenance around city facilities, such as weeding and mowing. That 

worker is typically hired through a temp agency. Public works didn’t have that position in the 

current budget because the department hired a plant operator. The worker would be on staff for 

the summer. There were no major changes to the water fund. Sears said the proposed timber fund 

budget needed to be adjusted to reflect the most recent timber sale. She suggested adjusting the 

beginning fund balance to $1.7 million to add the estimated $500,000 that the city profited from 

that sale. It would go under the line reserved for future use. Mayor Jerry Cole said the line for 

property purchase reserve would also have to be adjusted, as a percentage of the proceeds from 

that timber sale are required to go towards that line item. Budge moved to adjust the beginning 

fund balance from $1.2 million to $1.7 million. That motion was seconded by Kreger and 

adopted unanimously. Cole moved to adjust the property purchase reserve line item by adding 

$25,000. That motion was seconded by Jan Spika and adopted unanimously. Lawrence said the 

only major change to the street fund was an increase for street signs. Spika asked about the 

increase in the overtime line item. Lawrence said that same figure should have been in the 

previous year’s budget. It goes towards covering the costs of responding to emergency calls for 

events such as downed trees and road sanding. For the special projects fund, Lawrence said it 



 

 

includes improvements to city hall and park facilities. The actual work covered under that will 

depend on direction received from the city council. It may include new roofing for the senior 

center and city hall and the public works shop. There’s a line item for a new mower. The current 

one is 18 years old and falling apart. Ethan Pearson asked about the city hall improvements. 

Lawrence said they could include a break room for staff, improvements to the council chambers 

and an emergency exit for administrative staff. For the sewer capital fund, Lawrence said there 

are still funds relating to the A Street project because the city has not been invoiced for it. 

Jorgensen said this fund includes some of the federal American Rescue Plan Act allocations that 

were sent to the city. A second installment will be received and those funds will go towards 

achieving compliance with the Department of Environmental Quality. Lawrence said funds are 

budgeted for continued Inflow and Infiltration work, as well as wastewater equipment and 

upgrades to the SCADA computers. The water capital fund includes a new line item for 

insurance reimbursement to repair the water treatment plant facility, which was damaged in a fire 

in the fall of 2021. There are also allocations for system improvements that were recommended 

under the water master plan update. Those include water line upgrades. For the transportation 

capital improvement fund, Jorgensen said the city will be eligible to apply for state Small City 

Allotment grants again. The city had previously received those, and had to spend them on 

projects before applying for the next round of funding. Those projects have since been 

completed. Lawrence said she would like to add a $40,000 line item for vehicle replacement. The 

department’s utility truck is from 1996. That $40,000 could be offset by reducing the line item 

for city street improvements by the same amount. Spika asked if that would be enough. 

Lawrence said it would be $120,000 total, split between three funds. Public works could also get 

a mini-excavator. The department currently rents those when they’re needed. There isn’t 

currently a fleet replacement fund. Spika moved to take $40,000 from the street improvement 

line item and add it to a new line item for vehicle and equipment replacement. That motion was 

seconded by Pearson and adopted unanimously. Cole pointed out that the $40,000 for vehicle 

and equipment replacement is zeroed out in the water capital improvement fund. Pearson moved 

to take $40,000 from the water treatment site improvement line item in the water capital 

improvement fund and put it towards the vehicle/equipment replacement line item. That motion 

was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously. Jorgensen said there were no major changes 

to the library trust fund. Sears suggested adding an agenda item so public testimony can be taken 

on state revenue sharing. Committee members agreed by consensus.  

 

Public Testimony on State Revenue Sharing: Candis Forrest testified that she agrees with the 

city receiving those state shared revenues.  

 

Motion to approve the 2022-23 Budget by the Budget Committee—Kreger moved to approve 

the budget as amended. That motion was seconded by Jeremy Howell and adopted unanimously.   

 

Motion to authorize a tax rate of $5.2045 per $1,000 assessed valuation, and $503,333 for 

the Wastewater Treatment Plant debt payment General Obligation Bond—Kreger moved to 

authorize the tax rate of $5.2045 per $1,000 of assessed valuation and $503,333 for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant debt payment General Obligation Bond. That motion was seconded 

by Levi Richardson and adopted unanimously.  

Cole moved to adjourn the meeting. That motion was seconded by Spika and adopted 

unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m.  



 

 

 

___________________  Attested by: _______________________________ 

Jerry Cole, Mayor            W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

 

 



 

1 
 

 

City of Rainier 
Regular City Council Meeting 

May 2, 2022 
6 p.m. 

Rainier City Hall 

 
   

   Mayor Jerry Cole called the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

Council Present: Connie Budge, Scott Cooper, Robert duPlessis, Jeremy 
Howell Mike Kreger, Levi Richardson and Denise Watson 
 

Council Absent:  
 

City Attorney Present: No 
 

City Staff Present: Sarah Blodgett, City Recorder; Gregg Griffith, Police 
Chief; W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator; Sue Lawrence, Public Works 
Director 

  
Flag Salute 

 
OPEN PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ORDINANCE 1082-ACCEPT 

PUBLIC COMMENT-CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Jerry Cole opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m. No comments  
were received. The hearing was closed at 6:02 p.m.  

 
OPEN PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ORDINANCE 1083-ACCEPT 

PUBLIC COMMENT-CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 
Cole opened the public hearing at 6:02 p.m. No comments were received. 

The hearing was closed at 6:02 p.m.  
OPEN PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING ORDINANCE 1084-ACCEPT 
PUBLIC COMMENT-CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

Cole opened the public hearing at 6:03 p.m. No comments were  
received. The hearing was closed at 6:04 p.m.  

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING WATERFRONT MIXED USE TEXT 
AMENDMENT-CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

Cole opened the public hearing at 6:04 p.m. No comments were received. 
The hearing was closed at 6:04 p.m.   

 

Additions/Deletions from the Agenda: None 
 

Mayor’s Address:  
 

Visitor Comments: There were no visitor comments at this time.  
 



 

2 
 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 
Consider Approval of the April 4, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes—

Council President Mike Kreger moved to approve the consent agenda. That 
motion was seconded by Councilor Scott Cooper and adopted 

unanimously.   
 

New Business 
a. Presentation by Paige Diaz, Teen Specialist Supervisor for CASA for  
    Children—Diaz said that CASA volunteers advocate for children in    

    foster care cases. The organization has three staff members and 53   
    advocates in the county for the 120 children who are in such care. The  

    program’s volunteers are vetted. CASA is almost able to meet all of the    
    needs in the county but is always seeking more volunteers.  

b. IGA with Rainier School District #13 Providing the Contracted Service  
    to Manage the City Library—Superintendent Joseph Hattrick said it’s  
    been a great partnership, and the library and its services have been    

    improved. The IGA is set to expire June 30. Librarian Colette Nordstrom  
    is scheduled to retire at the end of May, and he thanked her for her  

    efforts. The district is willing to continue to work with City Administrator  
    W. Scott Jorgensen to keep the costs of library services in line with  

    where they currently are. The district will be posting, recruiting, hiring  
    and training for Nordstrom’s replacement. Jorgensen said he and  
    Hattrick have been talking about the IGA. They wanted to get direction  

    from council on some of its provisions. Would council like to include  
    language about evening hours? Cole said he wants to see some evening  

    hours, maybe twice a week, like Mondays when council meetings are  
    held. He likes having Saturday hours, but it doesn’t have to be every  

    Saturday. Council President Mike Kreger agreed. Cooper said the library  
    needs to be open outside of normal business hours. Councilor Connie  
    Budge said Nordstrom has done a good job and made the library a  

    delightful place to go. She asked if the librarian position was under a  
    union contract, which personnel policies and procedures are followed  

    for it and what the grievance procedures are. The issue of supervision  
    should be addressed in the IGA. If there’s a complaint, who does that  

    go to? What is the role of the library board? She appreciates the IGA  
    and feels it’s a valuable asset to the community. Hattrick said the IGA  
    can clarify those issues. He is currently the librarian’s direct supervisor  

    but that is going to be changed. The librarian position is currently under  
    the union contract. Jorgensen said the library board will meet the  

    following Saturday and one of the agenda items is selecting a member  
    to represent that body on the interview panel for the new librarian. He  

    and City Recorder Sarah Blodgett will represent the city on that panel.  
    Hattrick said he will be posting the librarian position on the district’s  
    website this week.  

c. Day Wireless Communication Site Land Lease—Kimberly Boswell said  
    the company has had its lease with the city for over 30 years. It’s for a  

    radio tower located on one acre on Rainier Hill. The company pays  



 

3 
 

    annual rent for it and is seeking a reduction. The rent was $1,000 per  
    year in 1992 and has gone to up to $11,000 per year. That is more than  

    the revenue that the company has received from the tower’s use. The  
    ask is for the profit sharing to be increased from 27 and a half to 35  

    percent. It would amount to around $565 per month. Cole said the  
    tower business has changed and there aren’t as many customers now.  

    Profit sharing is the best option. If the company gets more customers,  
    the city receives more revenue. Cooper agreed. Boswell said the lease  
    amounts are subject to four percent annual increases and the city  

    would receive 35 percent of that. There was discussion about a  
    termination clause. Budge moved to approve the proposed changes,  

    with a $500 per month minimum of rent to be received by the city. That  
    motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously.  

d. Consider Approval of Budget Calendar—Kreger moved to approve the  
    budget calendar. That motion was seconded by Cooper and adopted  
    unanimously.  

e. Resolution 22-05-01—Adopting City Procurement Policy and Repealing  
    Resolution No. 19-12-09—Jorgensen explained that the city’s current  

    procurement policy has a lower limit than that set by the state. Under  
    the city’s standard, three bids must be received for projects $5,000 or  

    over. The state standard is $10,000. This resolution would bring the  
    city in line with state standard. The lower limit means that much  
    administrative staff time is spent seeking multiple bids and also causes  

    projects to be delayed. Cooper moved to approve the resolution. That  
    motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted unanimously.  

f. First Reading of Ordinance 1087—Establishing Rules and Regulations  
   for Recreational Vehicles 

     
          Unfinished Business 

a. Riverfront Trail Update—Lawrence said it was the wettest April on  

    record, which delayed work on the project. But the contractors should  
    be on site the following day pouring concrete for the footing. Paving  

    work on the pathway is scheduled for the week of May 23.  
 b. Fox Creek Update 

 c. Senior and Multigenerational Housing—It was agreed by consensus  
             that a committee would be formed after the budget process is  
             completed.  

d. Parks Committee Master Plan Recommendation—Lawrence said the  
    $35,000 for the master plan could be funded through the park  

    improvements and plan line item. Cole asked if it would be enough to  
    cover the total amount. Lawrence said part of it would come out of the  

    current fiscal year budget and the remainder would be in the next one.  
    Budge moved to approve the committee’s recommendation that the plan  
    be conducted. That motion was seconded by Kreger and adopted  

    unanimously. 
e. Second Reading of Ordinance 1086—Adopting the Codification of the  

    Rainier Municipal Code Enforcement Procedures—Kreger moved to  



 

4 
 

   adopt the ordinance. That motion was seconded by Cooper and adopted  
   unanimously.  

f. Emergency Operations Plan Signature Page—Kreger moved to approve  
   the updated signature page. That motion was seconded by Cooper and  

   adopted unanimously.  
 

Staff Report—Police Chief Gregg Griffith said the background investigation 
and testing into the new officer recruit should be done in about six weeks. 
Lawrence said the April 22 DEQ inspection went well. She should have a bid 

for the water treatment plant roof replacement soon, along with estimates to 
retrofit the pumps. The door project for the public works shop should be 

starting this month. Blodgett said that Dana Potter had her first day as the 
new utility billing clerk and is being trained by current clerk Darlene Lavelle. 

Jorgensen said he and Lawrence attended the Fox Creek culvert passage pre-
consultation meeting March 29. He’s been meeting with Hattrick about the 
library IGA and spoke with a representative of the Oregon Water Resources 

Department about possible state funding to shore up the wooden dam in the 
city’s watershed. Staff conducted panel interviews for the utility billing clerk 

position April 12 and 13 and he began advertising for the vacant planning 
commission position. Jorgensen also met with Rep. Suzanne Webber, city 

forester Patrick McCoy and Paul Vogel from Columbia Economic Team. Staff 
has been working on the budget and union negotiations have started. He’s 
finalizing arrangements for the May 29 bridge dedication event.  

Council Reports—Cooper announced that an ice cream social was planned 
at the senior center the following Wednesday afternoon. The center had a bit 

of recent vandalism, with a couple of signs being destroyed. Jorgensen said 
staff has discussed having more security cameras up around city facilities. 

Perhaps that can be brought up during the budget committee meetings. 
Councilor Denise Watson mentioned that some inoperable vehicles had been 
placed on a vacant lot in town. Griffith said he contacted the property owner 

and most have been removed. Budge said public works staff did a good job of 
responding to the recent weather events. She met with McCoy at the city 

watershed and looks forward to the budget committee meetings. Kreger said 
he reached out to the VFW about sponsoring banners on Veterans Way. He 

plans to attend the League of Oregon Cities meeting at Bay City the following 
Friday. Cole said he attended the KLTV board meeting. Now that the council 
meetings are broadcast on cable, he would like to change the city’s agreement 

with KLTV to a franchise model. It will provide an opportunity for more locally 
generated content and won’t cost anymore. Barry Verrill from KLTV will be at 

the next council meeting to discuss.  
     City Calendar/Announcements—Cole said the first budget committee 

meeting is scheduled for May 16. The next council meeting will be June 6. 
Jorgensen said the bridge dedication will be May 29 from 2 to 4 p.m.  
 

      Cole adjourned the regular council meeting at 7:18 p.m.  
 

 



 

5 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

_____________________________              ______________________________________ 
Mayor Jerry Cole                         W. Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GRANT AGREEMENT
FOR LIBRARY SERVICES

Josephine County

This Agreement is made by and between JOSEPHINE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the
State of Oregon ('County"), and JOSEPHINE COMMUNITY LIBRARIES, INC., a public benefit nonprofit
corporation ("Grantee").

WHEREAS ORS 357.410 allows Counties to contract with a private corporation for the purpose of
providing free use of the library for the residents of the local government unit, under such terms and
conditions as may be agreed upon; and

WHEREAS County and Grantee have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding dated
October 29, 2008 which sets forth the understandings of the parties with regard to further efforts toward
reopening the County libraries as a public-private partnership, and which provides that the parties shall
enter into a Grant Agreement which sets forth the parties' agreement of the scope of services to be
provided by Grantee in operating and managing the Josephine County Library System;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4 of the Memorandum of Understanding, Grantee has submitted
to County its business plan for the operation and maintenance of the Josephine County library system,
and such plan has been approved by County;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, the parties
agree as follows:

1. TERM: The term of this Agreement shall begin on December 9, 2008 and shall continue until
December 31, 2011 unless otherwise terminated or amended as provided herein.

2. DEFINITIONS: As used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall have the
indicated meanings„

2.1 " Business Plan" means that certain plan submitted by Grantee to the Board of County
Commissioners dated November 11, 2008 for the operation of the Josephine County
Library System.

2.2 " Collection" or "Collections" means all library materials customarily found in public
libraries, including but not limited to books, periodicals, newspapers, microfilms, electronic
database subscriptions, and audio and video materials.

2.3 " County" means Josephine County, Oregon, its officers, agents, and employees.

2.4 " Grantee" means Josephine Community Libraries, Inc., its officers, agents, and

employees.

2.5 " Services" means those Services provided by Grantee for the operation, administration,
and maintenance of the Josephine County Library System, as listed in Section 4 of this
Agreement.

3. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: The Board of County Commissioners or their designee shall
have the authority to administer this Agreement on behalf of the County.

1 - Grant Agreement



4. SERVICES: Grantee shall provide Services to County as necessary for the operation of the

Josephine County Library System, and shall perform all acts necessary to administer the Library
System in accordance with ORS 357.400 et seq. and in accordance with Grantee's business

plan. Grantee shall have general operational responsibility for the operation of the libraries

subject, however, to the general oversight by County pursuant to the relevant provisions of ORS

357, and County shall establish and maintain all instrumentalities of governance of the public
libraries as required by Oregon law. Grantee shall perform the Services in accordance with

generally accepted professional practices and standards and according to the requirements of

applicable federal, state and local laws.

4.1 Reopening of Libraries: Grantee shall open the main library located in Grants Pass first,

and shall open the library branches at Cave Junction, Williams, and Wolf Creek as

sufficient resources are raised.

4.2 Labor: Grantee shall provide all labor, staff, employees, and volunteers deemed

necessary for the operation of the Library System, and shall be solely responsible for the

appointment, hiring, and selection of all staff and employees to perform Services under

this Agreement. Grantee shall retain all rights to hire and terminate the employment of its

staff in accordance with state and federal laws, rules, and regulations. All costs and

expenses of Grantee's staff whatsoever shall be the sole responsibility of Grantee. All

training, supervision, and management of employees and volunteers shall be the sole

responsibility of Grantee.

a. Grantee, as deemed appropriate in its sole discretion, shall provide adequate

staffing levels to reopen and operate the branch Libraries and to administer and

maintain library operations.

b. Grantee shall notify County of the appointment of all management level library
staff, and shall keep County informed of any changes in management staff.

4.3 Library Operations: Grantee shall perform all acts necessary to provide and make

accessible to the public free use of library and information services to patrons of all ages,

including managing and overseeing all operations of the library system, hours of

operations, and user policies. Grantee shall provide assistance to the public in the use of

Library resources, and shall provide circulation, information and reference services to the

public as funds allow.

4.4 Information Technology: Grantee shall purchase, install and support sufficient

hardware, software, network, telecommunications and other resources and information

technology systems for library operations and public use as funds allow.

4.5 Collections: Grantee shall provide materials on a wide variety of subjects in varied

formats for all age groups in accordance with generally accepted professional practices
and standards.

a. Acquisition: Grantee shall be responsible for acquisition of collections. All

collections purchased prior to the date of the commencement of this Agreement
shall remain the property of County. All collections purchased after the date of the

commencement of this Agreement shall be the property of Grantee.

b. Disposal: Grantee shall be responsible for maintaining the collection in

accordance with generally accepted professional practices and standards. Any

Grant Agreement2



collection materials which are the property of County and which are deemed by
Grantee to be ready for weeding out of the collection shall be discarded only after
written approval or Order from the County, and in accordance with County's rules
and policies governing disposal of County surplus property.

4.6 Programs: Grantee shall provide educational, recreational and cultural programs of
interest to all age groups as funds allow.

4.7 Community Involvement: Grantee shall develop and maintain effective working
relationships with groups and members of the community, including but not limited to the
Library Foundation and Friends of the Library.

a. Library Board of Trustees: Grantee acknowledges that the Josephine County
Library Board of Trustees has been delegated certain responsibilities by the Board
of County Commissioners, and agrees to work with the Library Board of Trustees
in providing Services under this Agreement.

4.8 Materials, Equipment and Furnishings: County shall provide, and Grantee shall have
use of, those materials, equipment and furnishings listed in Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein, which shall remain the property of County. All other materials,
equipment and furnishings purchased by Grantee shall become the property of Grantee
with the exception of fixtures, which shall become the property of County, unless
otherwise required by applicable grants. All surplus materials, equipment and furnishings
of County shall be disposed of only after written approval or Order from the County, and in
accordance with County's rules and policies governing disposal of County surplus
property.

4.9 Supplies: All supplies, including but not limited to paper, pencils, rubber bands,
paperclips, scissors, etc. contained in each library building shall become the property of
Grantee, unless such supplies are listed in Exhibit A.

4.10 Buildings: County shall provide the library buildings in which to perform the Library
Services in accordance with the terms of separate Lease Agreements.

4.11 Licenses: Grantee and its agents and employees shall hold all licenses, certificates,
authorizations, and other approvals required by applicable law to provide Services, and
shall maintain such licenses and certificates in good standing for the duration of this
Agreement. Grantee shall provide County with copies of licenses and certificates upon
request.

4.12 Wolf Creek Library: The parties acknowledge that the Wolf Creek Library is subject to
certain terms and conditions of Community Development Block Grant number C01014,
and that this Agreement and all other agreements and leases between the parties
pertaining to the Wolf Creek Library shall be subject to those grant terms and conditions.

4.13 Additional Services: County acknowledges that Grantee may use space in the libraries
to develop and implement new revenue generating services, such as services to the
business community, retail sales (books, gifts, refreshments, etc.) and other fee based
services to benefit the community. County will use its best efforts to assist Grantee in the
promotion and implementation of these Additional Services. County shall have the final
approval of all Additional Services, and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed. Unless otherwise approved by County, the provision of these Additional

3 - Grant Agreement



Services shall not substantially reduce the space or library services provided by Grantee

prior to the implementation of these Additional Services.

5. GRANT AWARD: In consideration of the provision of Services herein, County shall grant to

Grantee a sum equal to that amount of funds raised by Grantee as of November 30, 2008, not to

exceed the sum of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00).

6. PATRON LISTS: Grantee shall not utilize County's patron list, library circulation records, or any

other information identifying patrons of the Josephine County Library Services for any commercial

use. Grantee shall riot make such lists available to any other entity for any reason without the

express written consent of the Board of County Commissioners or the patron.

7. MEDIA AND PRESS RELEASES: Both parties shall provide each other with such information as

necessary to respond to media or public inquiries regarding the provision of library services. Both

parties shall not speak publicly on behalf of the other party without the other party's express prior
consent.

El. MARKETING: Grantee and County shall disseminate information and promote the use of the

library, resources and services. All expenses of advertising and marketing shall be the

responsibility of Grantee.

fl. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES: Grantee shall maintain Policies and Procedures for operating
the Library and performing services under this Agreement in conformance with generally
accepted professional practices and standards, and in conformance with applicable federal, state

and local laws. Grantee shall provide County copies of its Policies and Procedures upon request.
All policies and procedures which affect County-owned property shall be approved by the Board

of County Commissioners.

9.1 Collection of Fines: Grantee shall have the authority to collect fines for overdue books

in conformance with generally accepted professional practices and standards, and in

conformance with applicable federal, state and local laws. All such fines shall become the

property of Grantee.

110. FUNDRAISING, GIFTS, BEQUESTS, DONATIONS, AND GRANTS: Grantee shall conduct

fundraising efforts for the reopening, operations and maintenance of the Josephine County

Library System, and Grantee shall accept, upon approval of the Board of Directors of JCLI in

accordance with its bylaws, any and all gifts, bequests, donations, and grants for such purposes.

Grantee shall expend the revenue and funds contained in such gifts, bequests, donations and

grants as deemed appropriate in its sole discretion, subject to any restrictions by the donor on the

use of such funds. County shall provide reasonable non-monetary assistance to Grantee in

obtaining grants and in fundraising activities.

10.1 County and Grantee shall apply to the State of Oregon for grant funding for libraries

pursuant to ORS 357.740 et seq., and for other available grant assistance from third-party

grantors. County shall pass through the full amounts of such funds received for libraries

to Grantee in a manner consistent with the terms of such grants and applicable law.

Where appropriate or required by third-party grantors, County shall act as designee or

conduit of information or funds, which shall be passed through County without an

assessment or administrative fee.

111. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION: During the term of this Agreement, Grantee may be exposed
to information regarding the identity of County's patrons, County may be exposed to information

4 - Grant Agreement



regarding Grantee's, employees and other proprietary information, and either party may be

exposed to other information designated in writing by the disclosing party as "Confidential." Each

party shall: 1) Use the same care to protect the other party's Confidential Information from
disclosure that such party uses to protect its own information of like importance; 2) Limit

duplication of Confidential Information to only the extent needed to perform this Agreement; and

3) Disclose Confidential Information only to employees having a need to know in connection with

performance of this Agreement, and who are informed of the contents of this provision prior to
disclosure.

12. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: All reports, findings, data, documents, or other work product
compiled, assembled, or produced by Grantee in connection with this Agreement shall remain the

property of the County.

13. RECORDS MAINTENANCE AND AUDIT:

13.1 Maintenance of Records: Grantee shall maintain records which adequately identify the

source and application of funds provided for provision of Services. These records shall

contain information pertaining to grant awards and authorizations, obligations, unobligated
balances, assets, liabilities, outlays and expenditures.

13.2 Expenditure Records: Grantee shall document the expenditure of all funds paid to

Grantee under this Agreement. Grantee shall create and maintain all expenditure records

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient detail to

permit County to verify how the funds paid to Grantee under this Agreement were

expended.

13.3 Right to Review and Monitor: County shall have the right to review and monitor the

facilities, programs, policies and procedures, performance data, financial records, and

other similar records pertaining to this Agreement at any reasonable time during the term

of this Agreement, and for three (3) years following the termination of this Agreement.
Upon reasonable request, Grantee shall make available to County copies of all

documents, papers, files, and reports necessary for audit purposes.

13.4 Retention of Records: Grantee shall retain and keep accessible all documents and

records that are directly related to the provision of Services under this Agreement and

funds paid to Grantee, including financial records, operations records, supporting
documents, statistical records, and other records pertinent to the library systems for a

minimum of three (3) years or such longer period as may be required by OAR 166-150-

0140 et seq., OAR 166-020-0005 et seq., or other applicable law. If there are unresolved

audit or other questions at the end of the three-year period, Grantee shall retain the

records until such questions are resolved.

14. REPORTS:

14.1 Oregon Public Library Statistical Report: Grantee shall provide County with all

statistical information necessary to meet State reporting requirements, including but not

limited to annual Oregon State Library Reports.

14.2 Grants: For each grant awarded to Grantee from sources other than County, Grantee

shall submit to County an annual report containing information on the services provided
and funds expended in providing services pursuant to that particular grant.

Grant Agreement



14.3 Other Reports: Grantee shall provide County with other reports as requested by County.

15. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Grantee shall perform the Services required by this Agreement
as an Independent Contractor. Grantee shall not be deemed an officer, agent, or employee of

County and shall not be entitled to any benefits from County that generally are granted by County
to its employees, including but not limited to: vacation, holiday and sick leave, other leaves with

pay, medical and dental coverage, life and disability insurance, overtime, social security, workers'

compensation, unemployment compensation and retirement benefits. Grantee shall be

responsible for all federal or state taxes and withholdings applicable to any compensation or

payments paid to Grantee, its officers, agents, and employees, under this Agreement.

16. INDEMNIFICATION:

16.1 Grantee shall defend, indemnify, reimburse, and hold harmless County, its officers, agents
and employees, from any and all claims, liabilities, demands, damages, actions or

proceedings arising from or relating to the negligence, wrongful acts, or omissions of

Grantee in connection with the performance of any services under this Agreement.

16.2 County shall defend, indemnify, reimburse, and hold harmless Grantee, its officers, agents
and employees, from any and all claims, liabilities, demands, damages, actions or

proceedings arising from or relating to the negligence, wrongful acts, or omissions of

County in connection with the performance of any services under this Agreement.

16.3 Grantee shall not be deemed an agent of County under the Oregon Tort Claims Act.

17. INSURANCE:

17.1 Each party shall maintain insurance coverage for its property, including collections,

materials, equipment, and furnishings. Grantee shall immediately notify County of any

loss or damage to County's property after such loss, and shall cooperate fully with all

requests made by County's Risk Manager or designee. Grantee shall use its best efforts

to monitor and protect County's property during the term of this Agreement.

17.2 Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide and maintain insurance for the duration of this

Agreement as follows:

a. Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by law.

b. General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability, per occurrence, of

1,000,000 for bodily injury and $1,000,000 for property damage.

C. Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability, per occurrence, of

1,000,000 for bodily injury and $1,000,000 for property damage.

17.3 Liability coverage shall be provided on an "occurrence" basis if it is available. "Claims

made" coverage will not be acceptable unless Grantee cannot obtain occurrence

coverage. County reserves the right to determine whether occurrence coverage is

available.

17.4 All insurance policies must name Josephine County as an additionally named insured and

must be through an insurance company licensed in the State of Oregon. The insurance

policy shall provide that "Josephine County" shall include all authorities, boards, bureaus,

6 - Grant Agreement



commissions, divisions, departments, districts, and offices of Josephine County and the

individual members, employees and agents thereof in their official capacities.

17.5 All insurance policies shall be evidenced by Certificates of Insurance which shall be

delivered to the County prior to disbursement of grant funds under this Agreement.
Grantee shall) provide at least thirty (30) days' written notice prior to any cancellation or

material change of any insurance policy. Such written notice must be delivered to the

County by certified mail, return receipt requested.

18. TERMINATION:

18.1 Mutual Consent: This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon mutual consent of

both parties.

18.2. For Convenience: This Contract may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days'
written notice.

18.3 For Cause: Either party may terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of written

notice to the other party at such later date as may be established upon the occurrence of

any of the following:

a. If changes in state or federal law or regulations abrogate or disallow procurement
of Grantee's Services under this Agreement;

b. If any letter of approval, license, or certificate required by law or regulation to be

held by Grantee in order to provide services under this Agreement is denied,

revoked, suspended, or not renewed; or

If a party fails to provide the Services required under this Agreement, and after

receipt of written notice from the other party, fails to correct such failure within

thirty (30) calendar days or such other period as may be required. Written notice

shall specify the nature of the breach with reasonable particularity. If the breach

specified in the notice cannot be completely cured within the thirty-day period, but

curative action is undertaken with reasonable diligence, in good faith, to cure the

breach as soon as practicable, then such breach shall not constitute a default.

d. If practicable, the parties shall endeavor to give notice of termination under this

section thirty (30) days prior to the termination date, but failure to give notice within

that time frame shall not invalidate the legal termination of this Agreement.

18.4 Major Breach: Either party may declare a default immediately upon the occurrence of a

material breach by the other party. A material breach is one that substantially impairs the

contractual relationship of the parties to provide Services in accordance with this

Agreement. Material breaches include, but are not limited to:

a. Acts or omissions that jeopardize the health, safety or security of any person;

b. Misuse of funds;

C. Intentional falsification of records;

d. Malfeasance by either party's officers, agents, or employees;

7 - Grant Agreement



e. Intentional refusal to comply with the provisions of this Agreement; and

f. A pattern of repeated non-material breaches.

18.5 In the event of a default, before a party may bring an action in any court: concerning this

Agreement, such party must first make a good faith effort to resolve the issue through
mediation, negotiation or other non-binding alternative dispute resolution. Pending final

resolution of a dispute, or pending termination of this Agreement, the parties shall proceed

diligently with the performance of this Agreement unless otherwise notified in writing. If a

default occurs and is not resolved, the injured party may elect to terminate this Agreement
and pursue any equitable or legal rights and remedies available under Oregon law.

18.6 The rights and remedies of the parties provided herein are not exclusive and are in

addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.

18.7 Upon termination, Grantee shall deliver to County all documents, information, works-in-

progress and other property that are deliverables under this Agreement.

119. LIABILITY OF COUNTY: The County's liability for monetary damages for breach of this

Agreement shall, in the aggregate, be limited to no more than the amount of the grant awarded

herein. In no event shall the County be liable to Grantee for any indirect, special or consequential

damages, notwithstanding any notice of the possibility of such damages.

20. WARRANTY: Grantee warrants that it will perform the Services herein to the best of its ability
with at least the care:, diligence and expertise generally accepted in the library service industry.

21. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW: County and Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal, state,

and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations, including but not limited to:

21.1 Nondiscrimiination: Grantee agrees that no person shall be denied Services or be

discriminated against in the provision of Services on the basis of race, color, national

origin, sex, religion, handicap or age. Both parties shall comply with: 1) Title VI of the

Civil Rights Act of 1964; 2) Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 3) the Americans

with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub L No. 101-336); 4) ORS 659A.142; and all regulations
and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and 5) all other applicable

requirements of federal, state and local civil rights and rehabilitation statues, rules and

regulations.

21.2 Confidentiality: Grantee shall maintain the confidentiality of patron records as required

by applicable: state and federal law except by operation of law. Grantee shall maintain

confidentiality of all records, reports, or other information acquired under this Agreement
that are exempt from disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law (ORS 192.501 et

seq.). Grantee shall not release any such information that is exempt from disclosure

without the prior written consent of County or patron.

21.3 Public Records: Grantee acknowledges that it is subject to and shall comply with all

applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Records Law for the provision of Services

under this Agreement.

22. GOVERNING LAWN This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the

laws of the State of Oregon.

8 - Grant Agreement



23. VENUE: Any claim, suit, action or other proceeding that arises from or relates to this contract

shall be brought and conducted exclusively in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for

Josephine County; provided, however, that if any such claim must be brought in a federal forum,

it shall be brought and conducted exclusively in the United States District Court for the District of

Oregon.

24. FORCE MAJEURE: Neither County nor Grantee shall be held responsible for delay or default

caused by fire, riot, civil disobedience, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond the

control of either party. Both parties shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or

eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently

pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

25. WAIVER: No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in writing

and signed by both parties. Such waiver, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance

and for the specific purpose given. The failure of the County to enforce any provision of this

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by the County of that or any other provision.

26. SEVERABILITY: If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent

jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and

provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed

and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be

invalid.

27. FURTHER ASSURANCES: The parties agree to promptly execute and deliver any such further

instruments and to perform any such further acts as may be required to carry out the intent and

purpose of this Agreement.

28. NOTICES: Any communications or notices required under this Agreement shall be given in

writing by personal delivery, or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set forth

below. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed shall be deemed to be given three

3) days after mailing. Any communication or notice by personal delivery shall be deemed to be

given when actually delivered.

Grantee:

Josephine Community Libraries, Inc.

Attn: Librarian

200 N.W. 6th Street

Grants Pass, OR 97526

County:

Board of County Commissioners

Josephine County
500 NW 6th Street, Dept. 6
Grants Pass, OR 97526

29. ASSIGNMENT: Grantee shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement without the

County's prior written consent.

30. SUBCONTRACTS: Grantee shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the Services

required under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County, which consent shall

not be unreasonably withheld. County's consent to any subcontract shall not relieve Grantee of

any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement.

31. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Grantee shall have no interest, direct or indirect, which will conflict in

any manner with the performance of Services under this Agreement.

9 - Grant Agreement



32. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY: County and Grantee are the only parties to this Agreement

and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended

to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or

otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein

and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement.

13. AMENDMENT: This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time upon the written

Agreement of both parties, signed and secured in the same form and manner as below.

34. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement with the attached Exhibit A, and the Lease Agreement

for the library building executed herewith constitute the entire Agreement between the parties,

and supercede any previous promises, representations, agreements, conditions or

understandings between the parties, including the Memorandum of Understanding and the

Temporary Use Permit. There are no other promises, representations, agreements, conditions or

understandings, either oral or written, between the parties other than those set forth or expressly

referred to in this Agreement or the Lease Agreement.

GRANTEE JOSEPHINE COUNTY

JOSEPHINE COMMUNITY LIBRARIES, INC. BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

By: */211Dave Toler, Chair

Dwight Ellis, Vice Chair

Absent at Signing
Date:

Jim Raffenburg, Commissioner

Fed ID# 9 6, - V, 8 - Date:

Reviewed as to form: L'
County Legal Cou sel
Ltah

10 - Grant Agreement



a

l() ~ 0 LC) In 0 to 'U') LC) N N N N N N N N

r.+ p G)0oj
CNN N Lo Lo U.) Lo Lo Lo I U.)

C)0 0,00 0 0 0 0.00

c) O N O O 0,0 OO 0 '0 0

C14 C14

E 9
T \ r \

U)

m o o

IL 12

0 0 0 '0 0 '0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

T TIT'T'T T TTN NN N'N N NN

T T T T' T T T T T T T T T' T T T

N N N N N N N

0 0 0 0 0 O O
00000 , 0 O

N N N N N N N

T T T T T T T

v vco
o

o 0
r

m c a)

C

u) u)

u) Cl) c C c O
O

CC
C u) Q W, U) O O O u) tT

u)
C

O V) u) V) V) N
C C C C C C

r 0 C C C C
O 0 a)

I= = Cl)
co ca ca a)

C N

IM IM C O O U a a O a C O

O I ~U a) L L L AIL L'L
J, o G a) (1) L

UU''mm UU'Um U' UUUUIUUU
U)

i

3

o.

Z+ c a) aci
ca = 3

U Op
c c a)

J C. a) O a

D cn
c c c cn c~a uic

U C C N O
W

O a)

N t O

O
p 7

O ~ U L U~ O Nom
4) N ( L) C C C Cc>" L c c N (1)

O a) ~ a) a) ~ u) fn T ~N ( a) a) 0 a) 0 N p a) a) 0
co

UU)ImmUCD UU(D c m ? ? rnUg
oL

D o Oo M

a) N ' NN
U U- 

a)
c c a) a)Do c c~tnO~m m m co 'I,cam o

L

W 0 m O o O o, o o
N N Q'~ ,'I m ( 6 N' L u) !n ( L) N 7 w'~ (n

U + U U U U N L a) a) a) J ? j -a 'O m cn 0 > 
a) a) caU

N
a) V N N N N N 1- F' m m L U

M p p IB L r d) U com N U
000c0 c~C~ chchM'ddla c ca UU2 o oU c cU~ o 0

oW ( 1) 
CD 0)O 0

0) t5) m' - N - = Y ~C Y
Q) a) ''t3 't3 L") C) Q " 6 .p Y C'7

a) U U C co ' C C C C ( 0 Cu ca
O I U' U ~ c c C: Co i Co 0 O

o

m N to Q ° ~ C C C~~~ Co a3 N L U 0 o O 0 Q
Q Q o 0 O~ 0): 

Q C m' ca. cal C Of , ~ ' w, 
0 o Q m cu; mo ca ca o 076- 5 0

NLL: U- LL ILL C ta1HH11 ca ca ca >,>1>,'L~~~~ cI-IH0~oUUIH Z! -
a) a) U co cn 0) U U U ca ca m 3L- 7 CO W N Q) Y,Y Y Y ,c'

YQ>,,.LM ( a M O ~I O O O N', N Q
N `0 _

0 (
a ~' L N Q1 O - c O O O

a)

1 - - - O

oo
ml -L L LL

3Y -__.-<iX UU
U''` 

OoHC7C7UU~•'mDca U
mco a O

i I I, II

i

O X X X X X X X XX'.X I X XIX IXX:X X' X. X X XX', X. XX. XX X X
X

I

X

rnt-
ti N to t+ 

00
O I', co OD 00 4o Goco co 0) (D to cc C14 V) IV CID 0) M CY) w 1, co 0) t- Lo P-- t- " LO ( D

00 meMtrDON!'~,~CD0) 0)rnC" 000))IC"a))0)CD((rn~'cOtDV- V- T11

D T- Z r T N V) 14- V
V

le Q

r T IT Vet e~ '

Rt -T Z

Z

Z
T
a~

tT

IM
Q
L



04 N'N N N N N N (N 'N IN N N N'N'" N N N N N'N N N'CV N N N N N N N (N N 04 N N N N C-4 04 N

CD C) C) C) C O O O C) CD C O O C) C) CD CD O O C C) C) Cl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Cl C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CD O C) CD C) C) O O C C) O'C'O C) C) C) 0 O C) CD C) C) O O O O C) C) C'C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) C) O O

CJ N N N N N N N N N'N,N'N'N N N'N,N N N N N'N N N N C14 C14 N N N N N N N N N'N N 0N N

r r r' r r r r r r r r' r'.r r r r 'r'r r r r r r r r r'r r r r r r r'.r r'r r'r r r r

M C O

O O
M

O
r

r
N

I r

60-

E E' E
O O O

w w 13~

Mcn cn̂`
I~ 

c
c

c
Ln

C C C. C C C ON N N N N
CO mm L L LI

D - 0-0-0 - -0 -0 - O _0 -O

U U U U U U m m co U U!U

a)

E',
O

UJ Q' IA ( p Cn to U) N N C C L L i ~ L L

c C. fn C C C C C.

N M N, O a) N N N N N N O O O O O O

LO - LO U U U U U U
23 - 2 32 2,2 :2 -

Um'UImU'U'Us~ 
LL

00 000'in pp'CD p

O

L) 
r

CV
L) C Y Y

W
N ca ~ '

v v _

N c a) L ca O N
O N

LL L

m
c c c c v

U d
ca M p E

v v ~ 
p p o

CU

c}va) Oa oi oi ' p` c 0
o o

0 0 00 00 U U U 00 O u0i O
v OO

M O O O
N ` t - O

N o cu a) YYY c ~ U oU~ UU

Npc a) -C O O 0>> a) O N_ 3: M ~~ c.N C O
ca

a) > U) (n - O O O O, m ( a a) a) 
N

c c U) O
X a) O M

N o m m m w, N o a) ~ U) (n to C,6 w ca M (
n

L c ii O
cn

QW> (J) 
7 cNa N T' T, T M M

O U) ca ca U) O
L L aj a)

M Oi Fn 'Ni tn'U''U'.~,~'~,UU.~ ~ I a). U U ~ p' ~ 0 0
0 z.. c c~ M. m c

Y M Y Y 7 O 7 C Y
N (

a
a

L

a) J O O a) N a) J J L~ m a) a) a) a) N a) m O
ma) 1 ,

6 °o oa Y 00 00 U U U cc" ° o 0
I
a) U M a) o o ( n C g M M 3

3 a) 
Z) c 210

Y I-- O.- L La O L

a)Im o Om mUUUmImH 0 L TL _ 
m m

to v
O UU C~ c oy C' C v O-

p-0 Q O O Q Q m m m CL o 1 a) p O O
ca C ca m a) 0) 

p ca O a) ca m ( a cu N ( a 'E o

ca 0 2 m O O,Q Q Q C O, a) cam L' co'~ o o
U w- U c c ( a ~ ca UIU U U U U o

IF- - F-.IF-I E U, a) 3:.C. 11
U) Y ~C iU •0 .0'.U a),Y -,z Y.Y Y.Y Y N

4), a) a) -e Y ~ Y'~ N., a). V
U

In pto a) D U L) cn O O O O 0 O O

o O -
0 -0

N N m - 0 N N n = 

O
Qi ~ LL p O O

a) M a) co M O C
m
O mO

O

F-IW p,LLII (

L) 

in ( 71LLmU)!U)pLLm W LL~--mlm
O O O- (a

p p U p p U U U Ci lp Q m',~ p U) 
m m m W l-

xx xxxxx'xx:; xxlx xx xxxx'xxxxx,xx,xxxxx xx

O M O (O O O r N co an O to t0 1- O r N M O t0 t0 f~ 00 O O M r

O N t70 C~ tD O
Q Q a C) 

O O ~ d' 'r V to Ln to w to to to cc (fl ti ti w
O.O

O U) Co 0 to to O O O O O O N N N N N M M M co t
to w O

M t
to to

M
O O to to W 0

rto LoW)LnCO ( Ot0w(D(OtotoCcto(Otoco(O(OO O
w M) W to

co
W
w

to
tOt0

to to to
N

W) Lf) O O If) 

Q
W) W) W) Ul) Lo to to to to LO W to U,) LO L() to O to to to to Wto W) to to O U) Uo to to

Z

N

D
0)
M

1

Q

x

JJ



I.

Cl.

CV NIN''N N'N N N N NIN N N

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O'O
14 C14 N N,N N N N NN N N'N

O O O O O O' O O 010 O O O
O O O

N N N N N N N'N

O O O O O O't~ 0

0 0 0 0 00 0 0

NlC':4N
0
O

c
a

CL
O 0O

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O 0 0 0 0 0 O0 0 0 0
INNN N N N N N N N N qN aN N N N N N N N N CN

S

1

a) a) 0

o_ c cU) En " c o c c c c ci aci
CC o N

M M
N a) a) O O N a) N N - joaNa. L L L L

E E
C N - 0 -0 Vim. w-, M

CD (
L) W CDO O L L .L (1) a) a) a) a) L-

Cn CC'CC CCICC Q
U _ UIUQ co

CC

I

OI

N,

p a)

cY O
w a)

C6 ( n 0)

a) V J a)

00
C a) ~ c

3 Q,, a) a)

C_ Q, LI ( O,L ~

0- 4) Npp L) 0, W 0

cl c Iw m _ 0 c0 0) 
a) c c0 ° a) o

c
a) a)3 N c

LO : E: CL c' M L 

Y
u) c0

0
m c

H
O o MCC L) W

1C]m ~ p~LL c a)

UO
N Y a) Y C L O M ( r) vi (n ° 

a) N (n

ai O N v ca
a) c) -1 N a) N a) a) c

m ai l c co LL M 0 3 3 3 3 a) - 
o m o m m a) a) M

Y a) m
c) a Q L) M 3 o J t0 N N ca a

o L L L nl-0 . Q -0 0), N O
Q - L L L

L X

0 a ~IIMIH,FO'FmIH c: o'' aQ~ I
c N ~'MI cNI' Y c' aQi, cQo ° 

CJ 3
r_ M C)) 

Lo a), o O O O 0, 0 03
MILL' N ( L) a L i o o m -

0 -m

C: o V o' o o >00,0 lo~ ~IIcnIIQ ~ I.~ o c° a) 1Y 3 3 3 3 ~1,~ I> c t ~
l a) M C

C1:
1) m

C (

0 Y _ Aa) m lm Qp N> 73
COI
a) N: Q

V O! p O
t3

C_ N y+ N L C tL L l3 Q Q Q Q N a) a) a) a) a) ~

C t3 v' i~, ~I'ti M v a°)' oc~0l M x- p 3: 
L x EE' I E E ~'ImIm, OCI E5 0

0

cu c L o O o O o O ai
m M M c0 c c~ U

cV
LL o t- U m U

c
w (
a 01~/,.. (a/VNNIw, WIW CIC cu - 10, U U C N V V' _ 

Im :~,~Iw
w- L.. L L L_ N._'-h[.

O U1.. 1.. lI..LI.. L C E ( n 0) L
6.. L~ ~.~.Y o O b • O F ~ 

o 3 L a) a) a) a) a) a) a) O M I C a) 1 ~

C ° _L L L
L 0) 1] 

LL C1 0O - o -m p rn rn rn vLa) ~~0o o ° O °a~ic~0cw O O L2U_U.UUnUUUU

co

00

U L CO o CO CO M COI CO O

i - -
MaI° 
0 mQ ) ~UQm'm'

m
m~Q' Q

QI _ 

Q im ,J m J J J J' J

IF XxX'XXX1)<I'',X!X'XIIXX,XIXX'X,X X XxX' X X X X X X X 'X X X X X XX,XIX'
X XIXX'

X

1 W W W
ROD O ti O r, N M to l~ pp p~ 

110

1 r M 0~ C0 1~ N M tr I~ 00 0! N O Go 00 r r
M CD 04 CqC*

4 w Go 00 00W
WWWWWWWWWWW w co M d d of V ' d W) tO t0 CO t~ aD 00 Q~ O O O O M O O

O r- t- t- W W) W) in W) to

W) U) LC) to to W) La U) W) in to W) 0
W) 4
4~ Z

Z
LL
U,
U,



U)

W

Q Cl)

m Q

J Q

Z d

D Q

OU
U U-

w0
Z of

O

wZ
W

O>
Z

N N N N N CN N N N N'N N N'N'N,N " N N N N N'(N N CN C4 N N N N N" " N N N N N N N (V N'N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) O O O C), C) C) 'O O 'O O O O O 'O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 'C) O O C) O
CD 10 C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) C) O C) 0 O O C) C) C) C) 0 O O'O O O'O 0 0 0 0 0 0 O''O O O C) C) C) O O O

N,N N N N " N N N N,tV N N!N N ,N N N N,N N N, C14 N,N CN C14 04 N N N CV 'N (N N N N N N N N N N

TT T.T T T C"T T T'- T TT T,T T,T TT T T T T'.T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T

mm` , a)a)

U Q Q m a) m m

E 0,.~ 
U U U U

c c c c c c c c c c 0 a)' m, 0 c En o 0)00010 L

m
a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) 

c
cB a) a) m c a) a) a) a) 0 p

L ^^L`` L ^^L`` L ^L^,, L L L L O ^
L^,, ^L^,, 3 'O C C C C

O W O W O W O O O O W W
U 7 7 ' ~ U C • tn N to fA a)

Q) aJ a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) L p p a) a) 'E L 4) =3 =3 7
L (a

OUIQ QD~'U'U2,mm0om0''U

E
O

0/
LĴ_,
W

E

U
O

O

E o 0 0
m

0 cu co
a) 0

n (n (n m a. (n

p c _
L

U U U U U U U U
7 L

O f0 ( D U
Q) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) 

C
C C C C Y

N

n (n (n (n (n (n (n (n p
ca

C f0 a) HH p(n

M Y Q) a) a) (D Ca) a)()ma)mma)E15 c

3 33 3 3 3 3 3 m ( v a)o Q 3 3 3 3 0
L L L L L L L L O CD O J T L L L L~: a)

U

U 00 0 00 M,O L
cv

f0 O C C ~ 0,0
O

L

vvvvvtt'rtd ~z3,~ ~'(a 3v'vv'vCY)()
a) a) a) a) a) a) a) ' (D a) (LO s- 

C > ~ a 'p ( D a) m a) 62
LL

N N N N N N N N _ O _ ( L) C a) t! N N N

N (n (n (n cn (n co (n (n ( n ~ p m ( n (n i CO I ( n /m
Co

0 M c

3 C,
L L L L L L L a) 

o a- Q OL \ 
V' C a) 0 a) a)U L m

O
O O 1

0
W a) a) a) a) a) a) a) - Z3O

L _ _ _ _ _ _ _

N
N a) a) 0 a) a) a) N a) > cl W L ` N t6 ( 0 f0 ( 0 t0 f0 ( 0

IJ J J J J J,J,J (1),~> w
O O' O

a) to C (7,J J,J J a) 3 ( L) a) (1) (L) a) a) O O O L

a) N m m N, a) W U l c~ Q -r O' cL D a
p a) a) N N p T LL s,-C m t •CN c c c c c c c c 0-1,K i ( D (

n co co cu p j n' c~ m coo c~u c~a coo' U oo U I U p U

U N, N' N m m m N (~4L2Ir~I a) TIC 2 2 N a) ~ 
L CL) a

m m m m (X .2 U U 'U! U ' U U !U U 0) L.: ~ rnw rn L

Y U''U U'' U U U U,Up (U N N N N N ,~,' U!U U U N+ Y Y'Y YIY Y _NC'Y C N C Y
0 CL) a) 

I
a) a) N N N

O ( 6 C7 N M M1 m L a) M O a) M No oO O o oO O O O N O O M O O
U 0 LL LL LL: LL F'W m m'm m LL ~-,LL Ji CO

LL

I LL LL LL LL LL I, LL LL

F (

n I

I I CO m m m
LL

JT--XXXXXXXiXX'XXXXXX'XX'XXX'
XX'XX XX'XXXX XXXXX',

XX' X p ^ pp Cn r N
Mtn of r r r N N N N

M

M~ CO cC*ppap Ol01( A0701Q1CD 07in
C10) 07 W (D WCD P- 

oooococoocoocooolcoolcoococococoo co
00 W 0 co co Goo coco ° CDCD0)CD0CDrnCC0om0)a)

a)~CD~ N

0 N W) 1n to to to to W) W) W) toWIALnIV) Wtotoantototo toLOWWtotoW) toLO

totoWtoWWWLO

to
v
a)

O1
0

CL

i
Q



NI N N IN 04 N N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N N N 04 N N N'CV N N N N N N N N C14 ( N N N N N'N N N N IN N N N N CV N N N

O O O CO O O O O'O'O C) C) CD CD O O C) CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

O o 0 0 0 0 0

I 04 N N N N N
O O o C); CD C) C) O,o 0 0 0 o 0 Co O'o 0 o O o 0 0 0 0 0 o O o o C) (D 0 0 0

N N N CN N'N N'N'N'N (N (N N N CV C14 N'N N N N'N N N N CV N N N N N N N N

T' T'.T T T T T T'T T\~ T'T 'T T T'T TT TT T T'.T'T T T T T T T T T 'r T T T T T T T T

r. r` r` ti r` r` 1-- ti r, rl- ' I- I- r` ~ ~ tl- r` r` ti r` r` I- r` r` I,- t` I~ ti I-- r` r` r` r%- r` r`

O
0

o
o
to

C

E 0 E 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 Of~00~ 0 0

E: cn u~

Q
c CL1 C CU

cn rn ° cn 0
m a) rn m c 0) m

w cn N N O N w c U c C O c ( n s
O O c 0 c

O' 'o
m a m

c c c c C C
CU Fm C C 0):- 0) o)

00000 0 ca o
Immmml ° L

o o o
D

cc
0 M cu

rc c c c
L v

6

ai d maLm UU'mLnmm
0 CIO

C) UUU' ov

Q
QL)
o a)

m
Y 1 o
U U m m
M m U U 2 . U U U U U UU U 2 2
m co 0 C L L L L L L L L L L L' L

0C
N "O ° U m m m m m m m mm m m m

m LL LL_ ',.11 LL_ LL W LL LL. LL LL LL- LL
m CO

o
LLU U

LL
r^ cn L L L L L L L L L L L L L

3o000000000000V

Y
Mcu

Yca' ow' L c U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CT
m
F- Ir

c U
0 0 - Z~ : CV N~C)C)L) .)I0 0 0 U UUUo 0

O N m N O N CU N CU N CU NE OL Jco cn

0 m L..

O

mU U m L O
C U C Y,CV ,. 0 N O- 

0)0)0) CT.0) mrnrnrn~
O Cn' 0 L C C C C C C C C C c c CN'

mW Q V>> d
L

N C8 ( 0 N fa ( 0 Cis M m N m MCu ~ u 3: m O O-

16
N L L L L L L L L L L L Lm °

L U ip ''m m mO O 000'O'O'OOOOOOIO1
A c,~ m3 Cu m
aa~

l Xm m 1 U) c
O mm :Q'O Q U 0 W a~ m° 3 N LL L- Uo

0

0 L o mi L- L Li L . L r Y mo w
0

co Lm cos
3 - 02

a) 
p

co0 - co N U - O
CO

7 L 2 2 2 2 2 3 CU ' m c6 m cu ca
iv iD m, /°d̂ m

U U' t I
O (

n N a.... TL .CLL,tL, LL L.L L U O O m m O '~,
U CU CL O C C ~ Um ° N' j~ 

tf L > r- V- 01I- U U'UU''UIU'' UU U'''U
U' U Cn

0 0

meld [ L O m m m, m m 0

U) 
Cu d

N N

M > ( 10 U N m f6U n.1 C.) U U U C) U (D .U CT C) CA cy) C) C) CA CT C) 
0) m C C C C C CC C C

C C' Cup m', ~..0 N Nm
m...=

5 VIA LY ca -06Y,. V.YmYIYY Y,Y
iY..Y O -O

U Z CT CA O Q n -0 O f O d O O O O O O O
U 5

Y
Y ' 750 CU
U 0 =

7 O > =
0 6to c O 6 d 5Z Z 575 5O O O O 00m O O m E O O O O m m o N

O O ° °LL LLILLLL LLL
L

L0 J'Q ~IO Q (
n 0L LLL L I , - -0 W LL_ LL LL_ 0 o 0 m ILL W m m CL Cn m > m N m m m

m
m

l'I l
x

XXXXI X, iXXXXXXX XXXX'XX X'X, X X' XXX X

X
XX' X m l O W O T- N M O r` O m N

M '~

7 OCfl CA r TAT m000

0 0 0
0C) CA Q~ O O 01
CA Q1 C7 CA O O> O O> O~ O~ C~ 07 O O O O O O O O O

O O O O Q> OQ1 O Q1 Q1
Ca 0) O O Y~ O

W! 
O O Lr) r)O O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 t17 O O tD tD CO t0 Cfl CD COt0

CO
O

CO

a!

Q
Z

O

CU
m
a



N'CV CV N C14 C14 N N N N N N N N N N N N'N NIN CV '(V N'N N N N N N N'N N N N CV N N N N N N

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O C) O O O O O C) O O O O C) 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O

O O O O O O O 0 0 C) O O C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 'O O 0 C) 0 C) 0 0 0 O 0 0 C) O O O O

N N N N N N N N N N N (V N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 'N N N N N N N

r' r T'r 'r Tr r T r'r t- r r T Tr r r T r r T r rr r r r Tr T r r r r rr r r r r

a) m m U U U(D E
U C) C) E . 

U O

O 0 0 a) a) a)
n 0 En E U U 0

c • o
a) m O a) a) a) 

O)

L

a) U Oa)
C C

a) aa) aa)) O N m

r- :3 7 N W a) a) s= m

U'mm0~ W Of OU a U

W W
n

C C

U) 
J J
I ' 0 _

0
U,

L)
Q a), L,
J O M

J

T 1. ' •L •L •L •L 'L L •L •L •L •L •L L L L ; L L L L •L L L L L

Ls?-0-0-0-0s0-0-0sas0MMsa-0M-0M-0sa 3 a3
ai m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m' ( a (o (a (v m m ( o M ( o

o LL LL LL ''LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL L "O C Q) 
W

L

0 f- L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L 10 N ~ U .
C 0 00' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -2-20-22-9 O 0 ' L

v) '

IT 0 0 0 O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0' 0 0 0 0 0 a) Q U) 

U)UUUUUUU'UU,U'U'000U~UIUUUU'UU'1UUU6 1l-~ 0-a o o -
a~ 

c c: .
2Iva)ma)a)ma)(1)a)a)ma)a)a)a)a)a)'a)(1)mmm'a) a)a)'•^-'MMU)- M00MM00)
o)0) C C 0) C 0 0 0 C C C C C C C'.. 0) C C C C. C C C C' C''' 

Cn _ a) C C Cc

CID I- C c c c c c c c c c c C c C: c I C C c c c c c c c L (D V) - 
a) ( n \ CA (

n co
co c

c m

a): m mm m m m mm m m m cc.:: m i. m ( Lo ( LO m ( LO M m m m y L 02 L - L L L •

0
6610L

O00O0OO''OO00O0010O0100,010 010, Li a) 
m (

1) wWo-'
000 Q) e -0 a) -0 c

c m~~ ° 

m a M 'CU w "CU '( a co '(o 'm "m 'm "m M (01 m M M .m m '(a '(a '(a 'm m u)', a m a F- H a a > m m

m Jam1='L.S= L L C -C L.-= L , L , L L -C C- s- ir- 1=,L tc: -C- Iz- r- 
0

in L'. O ~.~.
L

a)UU!UU!U U UU'U'U UIU U U U UU' U U U UU!U UIC) CO a) in m a) a) a)' a) 2 C) C) U

N CCCCCCCCCC C: C, C, C CC: C CCCC)CC)C:U O CL CL CL p• QQC)C)c c ~
Y o a a a a i3 =a'- a a 'a0' 

00 te a
a'~ 

0
a

0
iF3

a) E o (n' E E o EE Eo Q (

n0a) U m U
U

lL - - - - ~ - - - LL LL. LL LLQ' U U LL ' LL LL LL

mL%LLL°Li(°i(°iLOL(iL°~ 0,LL00LLLLLLLLLLI(° iLiLil~,(~ O
m O ~O'°

U

O O° 
O ° 0 0 0 0

0 X XX, X X X1XX' XII X X X X X, X X1X X X X XX X X XX';X,

X r N M w N ti r N N
CO 11 N ' CO CO w

w N N N N N M V) M M M co co M I~ ~ N CO r-- 
CA w W~ %0 W I+ 00 CO 0) 0) O

O
11

CMC
0) 

r 0 CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 le t71-

4- O e- r r r r r r rr N N
N - O Q C) 0 a Cl CCU COO

Cl
Q CO Cl 0 ol

Cl C, CEO COO O CO to 40 p ONCD~ 

CO

v- w (D w (
0 (0

w D w 0 CO CO CO CD CO t0 to CO CO CC (0,: 0

Q

Z

D

Q)
m

CL

Q
X



CV CN N 04 04 N N CJ N N N N N N N'NN N N C14 C14 N N N N N N CV N N N N N N N'N N [V N N N N N
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O 'C) O O O O O O O O O O O O 'O 0 0 0 0 0 0 'C) 0 0 0 0 0 0
CD! 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
CV'',N N N N N N N N N'N N N N N N N N'N N N N N N'N'(N CV CV 'N N N N N N N N'N N N 04 C-4 N N

T T T T T T rT T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T T T T T T

Wa) a)
U U U U O

0 47- 0

C) o
O

C C C C C
cn O O C O U O fn Cl) 

C CD D) CY) L
O .0 m

C CC C C OO O U O0 t0 CA O N O ( O N Q) N
O CC: C:

O
U~ CL) L_ OL s̀ L to

O cu a)
l_ C c c c C

0 U U'U) U LL Ulm (n m GI'U G'G G C) a L) G

O

O

V

w
CL

L
a

O C'

O

cu
N' L

l
L II cOO

O
C N

2G Lcu a) 
O C C C

O a) p
0 U) C) UO OO O O D U U U_ U' U U U_ U U U UU_1.7

J O 2 M- L L L L L_ L L L L L L LL QIm I m m C a) 
C 0' co

C
O U .0-0 --0 .n--0 -0 -0-0-0-0 -

0 I I' 3 I Cl

I V V V m m ( B ( 0 f0 N ( d m m m mm
O O 5, a) c O

N ( n =
3 LL LL U- LL U- Li- LL LL U- LL u- LL

LL E
u) L Q ` - 

L C M C C L' L L L L L L L L L L LL C_ 

C O O M O _ 
N

O a 010 _ O O O O O _O _O O O _O
O

O
V O O O O O O O O O O O OO U U UU' C LL

M

CU'U'U'U U U U U U U UU'U D E
LO _

12 ~,~m ( 6 ' N N (O lm JL[ 1
O (
0

O O N N N N N N N N N N N N

Np~ ~m~~~~~m~m~mC A a) 
C

co
C N Li >O

E D (D! ( 1) m cu cu m cu cu cu m m m cu ( U
m m - - 0 _ 0

cu T T - 0 " C L L Lx'7 o0000000000:000
c 3 cu U L-:0L. C O O

c: 0 0' 
CD

U L L L L L L L _ L L L L

L c.,~. O N, N cB.mmN f Cn
U) N N m m M M M N M M M N. M

M CL

p
I~ 

O N w 610 cL), U U U U U U UU' U UU X10 mCO
O1 OD ( 0 M

m U
U c U) (1) U L (C~ N U `n I~ U 0 0 (Ol o Cn

U U) 

T U
U L Q' co v, CA Q) 0) 0) 

CY) C C' CC C
CS! Y,~'.~ ~Y~UYYI,.Xa'..YY, YYOY•L'CCC CC,C; 

C T
o O O m C T' N O N' N'', T N O' O' m' O O~ N M~ O" >,,'UN' s 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 OO O

O E 0 U LL LL LL LL LL LLL. L LL LL LL LL LLLL H md lmlojm'U' co U 0 (Aa). mU I-' UWF-I~ LL 0
Il

l

XXXX' XX'X'
XXXXXIIXXXIXXXXXX X X X XXXX XX X X X

X OrM W WC) M V t, inOenao~~DGlrMtotOOON~~OOOG7OrNM~'COrLO0cnn-
MN•A•r'. I-- r-MOWMa~WOMMMM000 V- rrre- t0 OOOOrr TrrT

NNMMMCM c• ~ r r r T r V. r r T- r r r r r N N N N N N N N N N N M M M M M M CO M M M CO M CO M M

M tt> t0 ~O ~O ~O Cfl tC tC tC t0 tG CO t0 t0 ~D ~O t0 t0 tC t0 tC ~O CO t0 t0 CO tC t0 t0 t0 t0 t0 Cfl t0 <O CO t0 C4 t0 t0 tD CO

t0

rl-
a~
Cn
f~

d

I

Q
X



N N N N N N N N N N N N N Lo I9 N N N N
f- 

f- f-- f-- r- r- ti r O I`' r- f~ f- r- f- r- f-
O O O O C) O O O C), CD O CD O'O O O C) C) O

O O CF) O O
O O p) O O O p) O O CF) 0) O O O O O p) 

N'N
O O o 0 0'O O O O O C) 0 0 0 O O O O'O

O O O O O
O O O'O O'O O O

O CI) O O O CA O CA O O ON CN CV N C4 C-4 CNI N CV N \J CV'N r r N'N.N 04 r r r r r r r,..r
r r r r r r r r

r r r r r r r r'r r c- r r rMr CD C~ C) 0 C) f- r- r- ti ti f- 'f-
N N N N N

NImo- CJ N N N N'N Nf~ f~ I~ f~ ti f~ ti r r f~ f~ M M M M M N N N
r C7 M M M M M M C

N N N N N
N

ti

O O O o 0 C) O 'O O O O C) O O O O O O O O O O OO O O O O O O O O o 0 O O C)O O O 0 0 C) C) C) C)
O a) u-) Lo u-) LO Lo U) Lo LO Ln Lo Lo Lo a) ~ Lo: LO Lo LO Lt) LL) Lr)

r M M CO M CA O O O O O' O CY) OD ~t 04 CA O O O O OCfl r N N N N N N N N r CV N N N N N (14

613, Vi Vi Vy Vi KJ 6'3 69 Q), VI Q3, H) bq 64 IV> 03 611 6ci 69 H} 64

Q, 0
O

U
O

E~ E E E O
C Sn' 000000 to N

O N V'~ 0,0 0,0 N N
U N O, ICU ( O N (OL

m a U) (n (n Cn CO m U

i

i IN

U N Nto N N U N N to N SA N y N to
to m U U U U U U C) U U U U U U U U

U S2 N co co ( U co co co co Lo co co co co co IM ( U

co C C C C C C C
C C) C C C C C C C

C U U U
U C N p N tU cU fU tU cU N fU O N N cU N fU cU
fU cU C3 O LL LL LL LL LL ILL <L LL O LL LL LL LL LL u_ tl

LL N N N N U U U U U U U U Lo U U' U U U U UU 12 Z

O' fn U L N N o N ( n Sn to fn ~ cn ) cnr-- iU) 
zz n ~ N •tn (n to fnto LL LL u_ u_ U) I= co O g g m co co m co co co cU J co co co Cu co co co

to
C ' _

0

c oU'' oZ~-a -t _0_0CLa'aaaaa'a~aaa'',a'aa,aIL o `O o `o

a 0 0 0 0
o CU Z ~ a~ x as m m
a~ ~ c o 0 0 Li Li LLL i u) In U) U) vi vi ui vi cn ( 1) vi ui ui N

IIIU 'Cl)UUU u O co O co co co co co co co co o co co co cts co co cocov L 7
Cl) I~ a) 0) m N c cu f1 tT. U Y -a -0 -a -0 cm rn O 1T rn. 0) a) 0) p tT tT 0) rn a) tT ..M.
0) I- C C c'~ 

N O u_ .c CO O' 
V Y N o O O° O x •x •x .x •x x .X x ~ "x •x •x x •x x x

x oc` oI` o cu _ - a) o o E =3 m T
c as a~ as as m T m as a~ as a~ T as m ( D

a) 
cu oOOO'°-' 

Z
M

1, ~w a) colpa~aa,aaa'a'~aaa,n'aaa~ 
M CU, 1: ' u Q) 

c

tU >,C E!= C C C C C C C C 0 C C C C C C Cc io tocu m ~ Y co -
0 C " O co' T 6 c ~ L LL, L = D D _,DID , Dim ' ~ _ 

D = =

o U I _ _ Z)Y S' L L L

CU U U U U m a~ a) m as a) as m ' Fu as as m a) av m m
aD

L) 0 CJ C U U W= a) U aUi > 
o
o 0

LL, a) 
a)M 0) 0) 0) Q' o co ` o `O o c c c c C c c c L c c c c c c c c co
N C C C C c0 N to to N N N N N N N - N N N U ' R - N •N •N •N •N •N •N U I- 

L T) _0 ' o o C' o vi , N
n~ 

N o s L) E~~~ a~~ rn rn cu v) Qcu rn m~ M M M M, M M M M O
CL 5 0 0 0 O co L - o . co co O a) co L CU co co co co co co co co co co co m co co co co o

co Ll- - CO L) 0 U L) i co M CL
0 ~ ~ - - ~ - 

0 Lj- LL LL ~'

mmaxxx' x X x x x Xx ! x xx xxx x x

x Lf) (o 0) 0 CD 00 M rl~ to Oil 0) le
U) 01t>

D N Co U) c0 T

N riMeV MMMd etd WMM0MTMM+LIOr~r~rNNNNNNNNINLLOOwMMMMrnrn~ M

r-a) w w CO w CO w w w M M 671 M V ! f ~ V v U) LO W) w w LO LO LO Lo LO I Lo Lo LO to Lo LO Lo LO Lo Lt) Lo Lo W) 
W) 1n T TT r'.r T T r T TT r'r r.r r'r r r r rr rir'.r r r r T

T

T
O
O

tT

II

tl

Q
L
L



CV N N N N N N N O
f- ti t` 00 00 00 M 00 OO Cf) O O O CA O Cf) O Cf) 6) O O CA CA O O O O O O 0) CA O

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CF) 
O CA O O Cf) W O O Cf) O Cf) O CA O (A O Cn O Cf) O m m m m O 0) O O Cf) C) m Cn O

O O C) O O O O O r
0) M O CT) O) O O Cn O C) 0) Cn O) O MM 0) Cn 0) O O M O O 6) Cn O O O) Cn ( A Cn Cn

O O i r r M M r Op 00 00 CO (>D OO CO CO (>D M 00 ( b CO ( X) 00 co co OO co OO co

01 r r r r r r 'i, N N N N r_ N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

N N 0) m 0) (3) 't Cr -t ,;I, N' r r r r r rr r'c\- ~ r r rr r ~'r r r r

r r'0) 

C~ 

CO r O O O O ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ U) U) U') LO LO t17 ~ ~ U-) LO In In U') LO V) X) V) 
X) Ln, 00 O 0) CA O O O O CO 00 CO CO CO CO 00 00 CO 00 00 00 00 00 CO 00, CO 00 00 co co 00

co co O 6616 0 0 m 66 CD O O CD ' CO p(D CD ' (D p m CD ( D m (D (D (D O O (o

CD CD C) O M I- ! Il O O P~ M CO M M M CO M M M M CM M Cr) M CO fM oM M CM CM M Cl) 

M Cl) LO O LO O O CD r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r

r r r

M co FA Efl EA' K31 H4 Cf} 69 H9 66 Efl 69 61), (f3 b9 tq Kfl EA v 69 Cf3 b9 E!) EA Ef3 ffl Ef} CA f!} (/3, E!} 

0). Efl a) a) a) a) 
a) a) L L L L

L LL L.LL

L.L.UUU'U'

U' 0 M
MMiM
OOO' O MM
O' O Mco

M, M A M
M Mtilti

ti' ti co ED
mIn N J J J
J U')k *k * k *

k
p

a) 
00 0 a) a) U

0 ~ to O O O O

N a)2222 - 0
as O vi (6

cl vi a coo
L°) 

a) U a) O a) 
a) rn w (A Lr- 

UL O LLa)M(000m-0000000000000020"0-0" 0

000""0"mI)U)
U)(n

LC) CD
U-) 0Ca)U.mmmm,,mm,CO.Comlmlmmmmmm',m'.co mmmm'.. Y Y Y

Y Cp U U U
U Y r r a) 

CL' N m m ~ m
0.) ' C{) .O ~L7" o

L L -O -C3L L -2 -
L L O -6 -O U ' -

CC L U -
OL L o -OL U

LL -p' ' -OL -
OL L -p -

OL L -O -
OL - OL L

L L .U z O O O O 0 0 I, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 010 0 0 0 0
0
0

04 f`- -co m m m
Y Y O - O C T T T T T. T T T T T T T T T T T

T T 0 ^ 3 3
3 co (

n CO gy m, /coo ' m /(U m / MM: m m /m ~ Vm / Vmn ' c Vna / m Leo / coo / m

coo
c O o /m / coo /

m
c

O a
CD / coo O O '( o L L LL L.*

k L ( D :3 ~ (D (D 'V V /VV / V V ''C7 V V V'~ , /V ( D0 V. 

V V N. O N O O. N N C C C C C C, C C C C C C C C C C' C C C C. C C

C C
N N O 0>> O H p O . C O to O O O O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O' O' 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 Z A O 0 -0 -0 O Cfl m ( D CD LO O 0 L O C } L, " - +L.. : b b b - 

Y - - - --
i ' - L - --

i b - - -
00 ~ mm a ( Um m m mm mmm

m' mmmmmmmmmmmmmmm g~ u o_ o moC~'CLC- 0-12- 'aaCLICLC-0-0-CLCL0-0-IL0-0-

0- LCLCL Q C
C' i

O Q- 
cn u) Q- Q- 0 O C. C L U • U UUU' 0 U •U •U •U •U U • U' U UU U'•U U •U U •U U •

U •U
V (

V m Ln W N Cn N m m ' C C C L_ L C. C C C C C C C C C C C i= C C C C

C C m m m m m m m m m m m m (o co mmmm m m m

m m fA D 7 a) a) Y Y Y Y Y
O

a) -

7
co 0 LL U- LL LL U- Ll LL LL LL LL LL Li- LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL

LL
LL C mrn 0. p) C0 0 U U cn L

L
U
m

U
m

U
m

U
m U cu (Dm'= °ma)mama)0ma)'ma)m,w'a)a)a)w a) w 0 (Da) 

a)
ma) CL)

Ln CDZ) CLLLL. rr 0 0 0 a) a) a) - UUmCc mCO CO CO CO mmCO IM CO CO CO mmlmmCO CO CO

CO
mCO Z3

A~ A~ 0 0- Cl' Q 0- Y n. 
LL m' _ _a) W 6 W m m m m m m m m L L L L L LL L. L L L L L L L L L L LLA-7.1. 7

L

L
cn 6. a a a a O a

L L (n m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m co m m m
m

m s a) 0 w

w0 U, L L m m' m mL U' C~ mC - a L -C L L L L I-- A-- L L C- -r- LL 1--: -r- L L L LL

L,I--UUU'.U'
U

U CU O N O O Y N°° O' 0,0 U U U UL) UU~UU.U1U' U U

U' U S= O, O O O O O • N 0 0 0 0 00 (1). ~~.V • V. 00 m m m m m m m m M , M m m m m m m m m m m m m

mmUmmm'm'mmC~F- iF-HHml-''0Wm00000OIOQIQ'QO'',000OO''O00OO'

OQ'

QI XXX' X' X X X X X

XXIXXXXXXXIXX'XXX'XXXXXX'XX'XX,
X, XX P- f" CO ti CO O) O r

N M CM0OMNMV W W MMN WV0000r00 rC~NMIq
nCc ~00CD 0~~

Mg O M M O
O r CO O DD O O 00 00 01 Q> 

O> CnCAOmmmmmm14 ofvd'ONLO L00000rrrrre- rrrrrrrrr

rr rrrrr uDLOLOwN W) WLO Wwwwwwm(Dmwrl- nnrtift̀ir; f t̀intititiL- t-- rtinnf`

titif- ft`e- r r r r r r r r r r r r r- r r r r r ~ ~ ~ ~ r r r ~ ~ ~ ~ r r r r ~ ~ r

r

r ~
m
a)
O

m

CL
Q
L



M 0) OD 00 00 00
O m,m m m C)) 

O O O O
O O O O

0
m m O C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) O N N N N N N N N N N'N N N (N N N N

CF) 0) O 0) CA 0)
O O O O

0) 0) O O O O'O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
M O

O O C) '0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) C) O
r r T T T T

N N N N
T O O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

T- N N N N N N N N N N N N N
C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 C) 0 0 C) 0 0 C) C) O
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

CV.CV'r M.M.mm M M.M M
0 Lo U'U) M N r T r T M'M M M Cr) M M M r~

T
ti r- ~ r- ti~ r~ r r- ~ r- r- ~

L() co O co 00 O
00 r- r-''P'r- O

C) O O O O LO L() LO L() LO LC) LO L[) T
O O O.O C) (N N N N N CV N N'O

LC) O O CO 00 X00 00 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
O)

CO 0) 05 0) 0) O
pM T r T r Lr)

0) O O O ' O - - r- - -
CY 0 C) 0 C) M M m m M M C'O M LNC)

O O V I- O C) O O M O T O O O'O

0 V w O OD N N N N N O O O O O O
r N' N N' N N T r T,r T r r rNq ~Y C1'' c}~

N NO H O O O
NCN N

CO
N
N 00 N m U

00 CC) OD C) O N N N N T 00 - - r T T

T ',rT'-: N' M - '..( 3

61t Cf3 63 Ef} 6-? d4 lf} K3 61)- fA 6C3 649 d3 V) H3 6q C!} EA CJ3 693 E!3 f!) Efl Efl CA ~Yi fA to Efl Efl to d) Ffl 69

U U U E
E E

4-- W44 O O O

OOO 2!, A'' o'a a°ao
a) U U Mo

CC C C
a) N NJ fD O

00

U.
C L1

m
W W

C m a) W cu ( D N
O O

U CC CO co

D
W
L

c (
D

O c
W

U W

Cl) •S
L

ci Ci Ci ci o',
c c c c

O O O O
U U U U a)

N j
Q- C2 C2 Q W

O
O

W a) W aa> 
O I- F- H F- C

m

C]DC)Cl 0: 0
Y Lo M o

C) C) C)'O N
00) 0'),0) o) a)

Y'Y,Y,Y. '. N T

U U U' U i

A
cu

L Ni,N'N,N' C3
CO CU'CO CO Cfl L

a) W a) a)
Q Q Q Q.C,.Lo L) ,.L,.` L

U)7 (
D cu

010 LO Lr) LO _
0 N N

T qq C:O V V
L

T T r T D

m m ( D ( D CD m cu ( D
U- LL LL LL ,

a) ~

W fn ( f) to to Q cu c c

LL.O U'C) U C) 
G ~ GIG

T ~y~L ~yL~ 4y~L YyyL
D T- TF T4 TI- 

LL U) rr nn nn L D7.- > (
U W N N W O E E a

a "0! 3 L

LO

V V V V
m ( D m m w m ( D ( D m

Z ` ZZzZZ'ZZZ U
Lcu ( II a a a a

C z
MC: 

I00 n OO'O''O C7 "
O O O' O' coLQ Q

0 N C0 ( D N Of
C) Cl C) Cl

U
O O O O O O L Y Y Y

cN NU N
a) a) W cu W,(n'COa W

m N m m W N m cu Y

Cl) ~ 000OO'O'OO o o

0 NLL LI_ LL LL j cu
2t - 2!

o ~O0oo~YY
LL

U UW' W
D CuN C C, C C N, ( DI (B (Fu D ( CO

N

aW W

U UN LW W
V COm'm CO ( D N L' ` L

L L

A 7 7 7 7 W
0 C

W W C

Y Y CJ CJ C] 
W O X M M

LDL

C2 +
1 N

CDn
x _ 

a
Y Y Y Y N m m ( D CD CD N ( D 'i _g

W c >'UM Z Z Z

Y~W r a sO O H
o LL cu

O O ~'a. L, LpM C 11 LLW W W W J
Z Z Z Z Z'W W W WLL N

U ZNW W W Wm co . 4 . 1 c W I W
U)U)U)~~~
W U) f~ (n U) W tD N N

DC]ICI~ aSa) a)'a)a)a) ai''a) ~CO~oO
L L L L co ( n LO El) (1) co N cn ML

E c) -z = 3 E~ ~a'2
U C2 tI C- CL U) a o oN

M M iM M Q' U ( D
D (Dm W

Y

U
L. (D W N 12 ( D cD ca ( D ( D cD cD ( Q - C7 a LO
W Y 7 7 7~ m m m m m M !M m CD ( D

Y OcD ( D
O O + N E E_ E E O

L - LL ( D LL u-
O O O 0,0 W >O O W mN

Y.Y Y Y U
co c: U,-0 -a -O -O 2 W W N

a C7 C3 C3 a O a am

a c
L L J' U (.)'U U,m C1

U) L
W W

U U U U jL y=_O O O O
N W N W N N' W W

m m L W W LL U
3 ` W W ~! a cm

ca:'a 212 2
n'fn (A'(A (A (n (A (n E' c

W W O ( YB ( YD' N N C a
O ( D 0) o~

UU
W N NU

v ~t
a W N' N, N W L L L L L' L' L L'Y U

c' cE E .N W
U

O'0 0 0
L 3 U'aY Y Y

Y O O O O to in a ofM
2 3 Z ' Z 'ca '(p '(p '(a 'Fu ' N 'FD "Fu

m m
L L W O

c6 ' C C
tD' cDW

Q a',F- H 2 m 2 UU U''U U U U U'H NX L U LL00)2''=

j

XXX XXX'XX XXXX'X'XXXXXX'XXX, X X X XXXXX'XX,X'XXXXX',X

vwt-wmwmwww CY) T- C4 cl) 14 00 M CD C14 co) -e W) 't W)

1-h 1-f tinwmNrn N" " N .C>~.O~.C04 >~
aNioO o oOOOOOO(D o0OOOOQ

r r r r r r r r r r Q V.- r V- r- T- r r e- e- N N Q N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

Z Z

0

W
0)
N
a

Q

X
W



N N" N N N N N N 'N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N" C N N

O O) O O O O O O O O O O' O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O C) O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

O C) O 0 C) 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O O O O 'O O O O' O O Cl 'O O 'O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

N N N N N N N N N N N (V N'N'(V''N'N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N (N C44 N N N N N N

r• T.T T T T T l"T T T~ T'T T T T T'T T T TT T T'T T T T T TT T T 'r TT T T T T T T

U U

O a) a)

o a)

L a a)
Of 0~

Q
O

U ( 6~ : 2
O

n
O <

L i0co

FT Cl) (
D 4) C2

O ( DJ z .0 ! ca

3 06 m a) ~

O
Q = 

X
E C' SZc)! o

O d Q O ( a ( 3)CO

c LL pC
Q) Y U U U U U ca ( a ca U ca

O a) a) Q o u n N u a) N a) Y
U O ( n cu IM cu

c~ U U U U U U L) U U U U U v v, U m miL- cn U - a0 C~ 0- 0- 
E

dL- •C C CL C L C L L •C L •L L L L _

IDmo s3s3s3s3s3nnn.ns3s]s3Qs3'a) a) O O C C m p
N O O O O ( a

4-- Z- O

a ca ( a ca ca ca ( 6 ca ca ca ca ca ca m ca ca Z d O O CA O IM
N rn to s= Q

LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL 11 LL LL LL 3 Ca v

U U O co O a) O ( D a) O
a) a)

Q) Y 2222 aa3~cua)a)(DW(2)CDa)m(DW(1) m ()a)W ILLL)

3) CA CY) CY) (3) 0) U) 0) CY) C) CY) 0) CY) M 0) 0) C3 C O ( a (0 >o L L L L L L L L L p
N C

c- C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
C L O O O O C C> O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

m ( D

co co ca ca ca ca ca ca ca ( o ca Ca ca ca t0 c - - d U o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 cu o
4- L

O O
L L

OL
L L L L '1 L L L L L L I L

O U C C3) < 0 (a ( a (n a~-+ CU ( U U U U U U U I U' U
p

o (aO O O ' O O O''0 0 !O O O O'O LL Cn ( a ca ' C J m m a) a~ _
a) a) CA CA 0) CA CA CA CA CA fZ a) 7 >

is Fu . Fu . Fu . Fu . F .ca ' co Ca '( u 'Ca ' CU ' ca ca ' coca C'-0 m ( 1) v -0 a) aS 0
C C C C C C C C

s- 1= L 1= L L L L L L .L L L L t s= 10 a) a) O O ( a a ( a cv N ( a M CLa ( 0 IM N N O rn O
UUUU'UUUC)C)C) UUUIU~'LL > N

N2:~ m M
IL) 

M ( a ca,0'000OOOOL~~
Trn'(nm(nrnrnrnCnrnoi(nm'(nCnCY) a) 3 O N N 2cAU0 _ cu, L _

f _ C C C C_ C C C C C_ C C_ _C C C C aj O O E J J a Y Y Y - 
L - L' . 

O +a)'
73 O O O O O a C3 O 6 O O O O O O f (

U

Cj V C ( a ca O O O ( a (a (a (a (a (a (a (a ` C ( a (a (a

O O O O O O N 07 - - a) (a (a O O O O O O L L s= s= s= s= -r- C ' C s= C O
O O O O o 0 O' U n.LL i LOL LL LL LL LL. ' LL LL LL LL LL LL UL LL ILL H cn ~ ~ ' Y 0 0 m co ~ co co U U U U U U U U Q 0

XXXX' X X XX'',XXX XXXX'X'XXX X X X, XX

11.0 to co
r M le tf) + 1 O O - O N CO ' It, U') (o r- 00.0 O V- N M '7

T- ti O r N M Lf) 1' 00 M O N

cm
N N N co m M M Cl) V et I ":T V !t to Lr) U) to to LO L() c.[) (0 W O CO O (O O (fl (O 1` ti ti ti L` 1` ti L`

V) U) W SD L() W) Ln In Ln t(7 to W) to to to to to to to to to to W) Lo 1.0 In 1.0 to L() Ln LO 1.0 Lo Lo LO(c) W) Lo LO W) L0 to to

Q C) CD 0 CD

N N N N O(V N O(V N ON N N N N N O(V N N N N N N
Co N N O(N N ON N C14 CN ' N 0

Cq IN ( 14 C14 , 
0 0 0 1

N 04 04 1

0 (
14 N N N N

T

T

a)

a
a

s~

s=

X
w



m
J

H
Z

0
C-) LL

w

z_
2

W
U) 

Z

0
W
LU
Z

N N N N N LO N N N N N N N N N N N N M N O
r

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 'N
r

NC) 0 C) 0 C) M C) C) 0 0 0 0 0' 0 0 0 0 0 0) 0 0
0

0 C) O O C) C) C) C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

C)O O O O O 0) O O O C) C) C) O C) O O O O r C) N
O

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O C) O
O

ON N N N N r N N N N N N N N N N N N N- N N N N 'N N 'N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
N (O N- r- N N N N N N N N m m m m m m m m CA 0) - N

r' r~ l,- rl- r'- r r ti r` 1- r- r-- rl I- r- r- I~• r M O N M M M M Cl) M M M r r r r r r r r r r
rr r

O C) lA M O B CI) 0) O) CA ( 3) CA C)) r r r r r r r r r r O C) (
f) 0) N N O ~ V- d' 'It V 'qt V- 14- 0) O 0) CT) CA 0') Cn CI7 CI) M O O
r- Cn ( O Lo OM CO M M (M (M M co M (M M M CM co (M co M co U) N
CO 14- 0) 'T N N N N N N N N N (O (O (C) C4 CO ( C) (D O (p (p 0) 00
M r r r r r r r r r r r '4? l d V Iq IT ~ < T V C)) (p

r V_

to64fA6464fAi64V 6964fA69ff}(R:69U)-6464646r}6964ff}6964

O
O

ca

W

U
J

m U

Q
O

CD m
00 LL

o 0 0d
Q T m m

O

U o m - 2-2 0
CD C o O J

p ° V) 6 (U ( a J,
C7 0 m

E c Cl) Li a) ai
CL CL

p

a)' o 0 m m m mmm~aAM(D U
0 o -0 -0 -0 -0 -0 -0 m

O Sri vi ' U) Cl) co Cl) vi Vi

o O X m m o 0 0 0 0 0 o
Y Y

o'o 0 0 0 0- 0 3

c'a)O c CDC (D:(DCDU(o c) COmCOCOCOmmLmL' )
d C - C1

C)• 
a2S

M CO CO CO M M M CO O O -o' O -0 -0 -C) -0 'o -0 _ 0a) _ a) ° 0 O U) a) f. L L L L L L L

0 m ( U 03 , m -0: 0
L r_ r_ r- r ti r ti ti' s

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 U)
27) cn o'o o O ° O E• Ua rnoo °'oo°'oo°'oo°)oo°) CF)om'~~a • (D,(D cu ( am ( a (U ( U ( U ( U cUJ

C
F- H F F- N co m *k 4t U *k # *k *k *k N ( U ( U ( U

Q) z (L) cn w u) (n U a m a) m m a~ m 2 = C~ C7 CD CD C7 C7 CD CD M -

cU a a) ai ( 3) 
o 0 L 2 ca o o oo o o o o ~ r "v ~t v 'v v "v v m

CI'> L 1- ~ 
CC

O', = 
u

x,2,2 2 2 2, > > fV N "'N N N N N (
1) CD -r- 

Z 4- oo CL
W ~ uS ( nU)U)U) ° a) O °r

o 0!0 0 O 0 0 00~~XXX'XXXX'X
N L •L •L L .L . L C:): CD C) O O C) O O,_ iO a) (

D Cf) U) 
a) r

N N
rc

N
r O O = L

O=-0-0.C)-C)mm-0-0U)U)(000O(D(DED (OO CY)
O a) > (D ( 0 O O O C 0 O W ( U N ( U ( U N ( U ( U ( U (O (0 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

U L N - O -0 Z) -O a) a) Y CO - 
En
U

LL LL LL Li- LL. LL LL Li- ( U ( U ( U m m N ( U N >

o U_ (n ( L) a is v a~i cov (`~u,~ ° o o
a) a) O'O''O 0 0 0 0'0 m

a) 0) • D • O a) 
U U

N C ° 
E E, E E E E

o U L L L L L L L L ((
u ' 

w O=O U)'U)U,)U).. (A to •>- OU (ate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ( U (UJ.LLSt~~s'..,U)m
Qcc

v~ 
a) a) O'U) (U ( UYY'~ QYm 3 - - L rnrnrnrnrnrnrnrn:3

co ( 1) ~ " -
0 a) m -0 11 - -0 SS -

0 0) Y Y O O

oO - C D O 0

O U) (n ( n ( n _J J J J J J J

J ¢ O
t

C o p C O O C> o .c 0 O m m> O m U O N ( U ( U cU ( U ( U M Y Y Y
Y

a-) Y Y Y Y

m v~ a) YU)0C)CICImmma)Cn,= ~0~m.o0) 0) w w N N ( n (n w
U,~a~ ( a c c Y o U U U U U U U U a) a) a) a) a) (1) m

m aS ~ L O (D (D- aS Q ai aS ( 1) o L6 L c Q Q C1 C) 0 C) C) C) C) CI
o w U U aS o u> N w u~ ( n C2 CL c c '(0 m O

d w N w m 0 w N W L L (D ( D 0 W Wa) : 0- 1 00 U ( U (n m co ( 0 co RI ( U ( U N ( U M ( U CY) i - a CL ( U m m m m ( U ( U M a) N ( U
c U U 7 (U L U U U 0 U U L t C r- ( U tU ( U N ( U ( U ( U ' (U F- 

O Y Y C].,. N Y, C: Y YY.~[:'Y.YIV),U) U)IU)'..•> p.,Y EfU~IY,Y'Y'Y YY~Y Y'. 
U O O J5 O L O O O O O O X X( (D a) u) a) - E U U U U U U U U y -0 -0 -0 -0 m .0 -0 - 0Ll O O O ( U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L L J- C (U -C ( U - (U ( U ( U ( U ( U ( U m a) (U m m cU ( U ( a m ( U (
U m m Uf LL CO U m mm MI m CO m m LULL U) W.F- ~.Z'..LLmlmlm'm,m'..mmm 0 .0,_J~JJJ.JJ

JJW

T- - _XXX XXIXXXX, X XiXXXXXX,XXX'', X' 

XX W

1. 1 o o o o o 00 0000
0
m1.

0 0): 
0) n

o o ov v a s (n A te) W) U) 
W) ° -r N c!) ~ V) ( D CO m O r !

r
CY) ~ COO

co
V co 00 00 0) 

a) M M o W
Q> 

M
O) 

0 O O m O Lp O to w (O co (C) ' (O CO ( fl (fl CJ O ti ti
O O ti r- 1~ r• ti ~ r` t` r. P. r` ti ,1` r. r- rl- l- r- r- rl- r- r` O 0 0 0 0 0 C) 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 CD C) C) C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) Co 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) C) C) C) C) 0 0 0 0

0 N N N N N (14; 04 N N N N N NN,N N N N' N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N (V N N N NN,N iV

N

i
N
a)

0)

cu
Q

L



r r r T N N N N.N N.(N N'N'T r T r T r r- - T r•',N N N N N N N
NI 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 'O O O O O O O O O O O O O CD O O O O c) O O

I C) O O O O'O'CDC1

N
O

N N N
N N N N N

0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
O O O C) C)

0 O O O C) C)C).OC) C) C) C> O C) CD 0
l

N 04 N N N N N N N (N N N N N!N N N :N N N'N N'NIN
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N
O
N

O O O
N N N N N

N N N
C"I \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ 

N (N N N N N

A LID Ln (A O C) O O O CD a O O LO LA U.) V) V (f) ~ (A Ln LO \ \ \ \ \ \ tT Or,- Q CN

r r T r \ \ \ \ \ \ \ r r T r T r T r ' r T r
I- (D m (D m m (D r rl- Lr) LSD \ \

D (0 (fl'(D
T'..r r T r r r r r'- rr T r Tr rr r T r Tr 0

O (14 ! N N N L- I~ I- I,- r- L- t- ! I-- I- N N N N N N N N N N N Lt) 1.0 u) (n Ln Lf)
r'T r Cp CO ( 3) CA O O

O O O O O O (M MI
T O O O O O 00 00

r r r T r TGI,r T r r T r T T'r •r T r r r

nl 6 6 6 6 4 4 -,:r q- 4.4 et 4 0) 6i o) C7) ' 0) m CA ' 0) t3) ' (3) ' (3) ( C) co (.O (0 (O (0

7 M'M CN N (Ij N N N (N N''.N'N IN Lr) V) X) 'LO LO LO
OCI N!N'IN N M M M M M"M'

m C) O O O O (A ~
N N N O O O'I,,I-

C) r.r r r N N N N N N..(V N'.N r T r r r.T r T'.r T'r r T'r 'r r T N N00 O O r T r

A co M

Vf 64 60- K? 69- (f> (fl K> H? 69-61). (f> 619 EA K? (f> V> d9 69 d9 Efl Ef> 0)-16'> 69 ( A ff> Ef> (f> (A V)- V1, V) fA Ef> EA 619 (A V>

Y Y
N to
a) N

C~
E E E E E

p)
p p 0

O
0
O

0
O

0
O

0
O

U cU lY CL' CL' CL' ' Cr
o c

N
c
O

c
O

c

O
c
O

a)

0 C)
N
F- '

O
1-

O

F-
N N

F-

C c c c c c

C) 
7 7 0 0 7

d d LL LL ILL LL LL LL O O

0 0 0 0 0 0 a x X X X X X
E.

3 N N Vi 5, T - O O O vi ( n to to ( n to N ( n (
p m

UU O T

c r_

Ll_ O O O O M M (a OL OL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Q Q Q Q Q Q0 (U cu
L L L L CJ CJ ',(D (u n0 rV CD III CD ( D ' m m m m IM m m IM co ( nm mm

U_ U
L L

m N N N N N N O N

p p O z3 ' 0 0 0 0 0 6CD O0 0 L L L L L L L L L E E E E E E E E
L L L L

I tn . L Lo 0 001000 o. o o o o o o O OC) 
O O O O

m
N N Q Q

5,5r T r tt7 LO LO 0 LO LO T TTJ LL'LL LL LL U-: . LLr r T M TT TT M M 0 0N m (Ur r T (UX X X
m N U NN ( UI NUN NU

C~oX
x x x Xx(DdoC'o d0CD 1 U U U U U Uau

m IM
0 _0 QQ

0 . 0 - 0 co ca T m m

1] 
U U V UI("),M~ ~IV\ L '~I'd ' d 'Li N C7 m mlm m m'm

O O

U (U ( U ( U ( U M M M M! M M M M M N N ( U ( U ( U ( U ( U N M
C - M O Cl CL CL

CY) LL ILL U_ LL LL LL LL LL LL
cU N O O O O O OCOIMILL LL LL I LL X X X X

Q
cu cuU L)

2 2 2 > A ( n 1- F-' F- F- F- F-X X XX X 1) O LL lL

LC212 > > > > > > -0 Y Y.,Y Y Y Yt3 > > >. CY) o
D ( 0 (U CU ( U ('3̀ M M O O O ICn O O ( 0 M ( U ( U ( 6 (U ( U ( U ( U O N (

U N ( U ( U ( U ( U
c-_ -CU O
t3)

ZzZ (n V) (n'M'MMMMMZZZZZZZZZ0- u) 200'0100033Z
U cu

c CI

G7 Y Y Y Y a) (L) N- i Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y OM
c c -r- L -c L LU ( U ( U M ( U ( U CU ( U ( t) m m ~D W N

N N

CV M M M M N N ~ a) 1) N
O O O O m ( U ( U ( n ( n (n (n (1) (n Old O 010 O O 0:0O O . a) rn' rn 2 O o 04

t U N ( U ( U ( U ( U
L J J J J J J

ca m co / N ( U ( U N N ( U ( U ( U ( U ( U p N
L L L L L L L NUI C) U U C~

O O O Y Y

N N ~ U U
V L L L

G' J 3, =3 M M It~ T 7' 7, 7 7 7 7 7 7. 7 Q,.Q,~ O

N ( U ( U O

M N IN ( n U) U) O O

U ( U ( U IM Y Y Y co ( U ( U ((s (U ( U
U 00 a) (v (D -p 'p'-o Z Z z Z z'Z z Z'Z Z O -0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tll
0 0 0 OO Oz z Z,Z

LL _ I - c - 

N N ( U 7 7 _7 0 N 0 - - - - - - - - - - L T T' > .
FM CL' CL' CL' Oo 100 oO 100 Oo Oo Oo ! Oo 00 =(O! CD !I N N ' w 0 N Nm m m m I F5 !Oo 1

Z) (v a) . . .

L ' (A (A C c cI
1

00 0000
r rlr T'T.r TT rlr T,r C C C C C ctT

r,rr' 0 0 0 0 0 0wwwwwo
p

w(nw N ( ll N N N
a) N N ( 1) p N N N O N a) N a) 0 N O 0 N O N

n Cl) ( n (n (n N ( n (n ( n = 2 = _ 2 = 0) O) t3)
E Em mC to to N > > > > > > > > > to ( n ( n (

ll (U N ( U N- ( U ( U ( U N ( U m ( U Co ( U ( U ( U O

mlmm m m'm'.m m m mlmlm

0 0 0

a N O O J J J Q Q
l

O O CF) O'CI7 Oco
G0C !,

m co lm ,.
L L L L.L L.L L

G~A co (n'(AI(n (n'(A

O U) N

c NXN N O N N w _N N' N N O N XIX X X'XN o ( n

1~._
G7 I (n L7 ( U ( U ( U N ( U ( U co m (U G7 ( n G7 L7 (n G7 ( n L7 (n G7 G7 L7 O ! O O O O

O I > T

T 606N
O LL LL LL LL 1 LL LL LL ! LL

LL ( A ( q (n (n 0) (n ( 1) (n v) ( (n
CC1 O p O to (

n

0 O Qj O N Z Z
Z N N N (
n n (n (n (n M M CO M M M M M M ( n u) (n u) (n (n N ( n N to w N O N O N N

N N U) N N N N N N
N p) A y~ L
L C' 00 U. N N N

N YY!Y Y .'...YY,Y. Y

Y E E E U U U U U U U U U E E E E E E E E E S E E N ( U ( U ( 6 (U (
UO

CL n CLCL 0 0

O C (
o c u 0 0 0Z) E L' L L L L

L'..
F- QQ QQ' Q Q QQ' Q Q Q Q 0) 0) t3). 0, rn,

G7 p Q Q Q Q1F-' F- F- 1F-C F- F- F-

F-G^

BU -
U O

p U / V' J 3
5` N N N LLUI

I iw+ L L L L L L L L. L 1 C C C C

C U N N N 32 32 22:32 BO U ( 6 (

U
Y L: p

p a) U..U
U.. O co +J -p _ o m (

U U co ( U fU O O O O0, 0 O O O N tU ( U ( U (

UL'.1= t~...0 O O O OO O O O LL.,t L LIL O! O O O OO
LLu-m LL LLLL:U-UmmmmUUUUU'UUUUU

mml O .

CmUOQQO'

001UULLJ'UUU_

UmmmX'' XXXX' XXX' XXXXXXXXX,XXIXXXIXXXXXXX,
X

IXXXXXXX,

XX
co ' I n 1- co M C) r N M V M W 1- 00 M N M VW t;0 ti 00 M Co r N 1A 00 d> M 6A CO ( 10 N

M 11) T r T- N N N
N N r N N N N N N N N N N M M M M M M M M

M of w 00 00 O 00 w 00 00 w 00 00 CD co 00 00 w 00 00 00 y t -e
v y W w w 00 00 w 00 M 00 00 00

w (1D N N N N N N N N N N CO N N NN N N N N N co N N

N O N
N O N N N N N N N N N N N

NNVN

N

V
co
O
t3)

U

CL

Q



Cl)

ry w
Q (n

n

m Q

J J

Q

Z
n

Z) Q

OV
U LL

Z~
20
W

Zn
LU

OZ

N N'N N
N N N N N N N'N N M M'M M M M M M

N N'N N N N
O

O O O
O O O O O O O O O O O ''O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

O
O O O

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
O O O O O O

N N N N
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

N N N 'N N N

d7 C) M cl) CEO M r c- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C) - 
N N'N'N N

r ` N N'IN N N r c- M CO M'(M M _M M M CN IN CN'04

r- rl- OD - 
00 00 W 00 00 CF) CO r r O O CO ( A (fl (O (O (flCL)

M N L- O C) O O (D (C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O O r O

00 r T O O O C) 04 N O C), C) O C), C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Cn O

6 4 4 LO LO LA U) N N In 66 0 66 0 0 0 0 O m m In O

P- O M N N N N M CO M M I LO U') LO LO 0 LA LO In O M M ( 0

O N (D N r r r r r c- NN' r r rr'r r r r Lc) r rIt

LA EA A (A (fl 69 693 ( fl (fl 69 V) C}} EA 69 (f} 09~ Efl V9, Efl (A Efl Efl (R & 9-

d4

i

Q

Y

a)
a)

U
O

U
O O

E U U
0 O

a) O O O
OOH

E
0EEEEEEEE=

EE 5o 0

U
o1= a) CL' ip O O O' ON 0 0000555 6 OU)(o u)

cn
N

N r-

C: Y LY LY [ L' [Y LL' Lr OC LL' LY N a) Na
i

c N

Q)

O - O p
Cr

m m m O (o
a)3

co
c

N
N

4- N c c c c c c c s- C
C V- N O N N N N N N N

N, p
d U=-

U)
0 V)

C
IOc

i
L L

LL'LOl'~~~~~W ~
FW ( 1) 

CDc?U,U,c) CO-_Co- C.)mc)( n-__.

mi 0 0 0
0 U U U
U cc' c
c ' m m M

IM
O

N U U U

L) U' •c . z . 
C: O O a) a) 

a) U (n. 

QQQQ a) 
0
EI Q L) M<<<<pU
aS

C i ( vi c 0) 
0) mrn Q J

E J J J J Q p

m sa ss) to m O) 

F- Z Z Z Z U .U LL a) 
Q C L J U

U U U - 0-0 LL •

L M IM L1 LL
M M

M M O Z

O LL
U- LL LL a) ~m 0

0 m a) 7

7 co ` co
C) C) C)

Yi ~p)
mmmm ( D (1) a) N M'. O pN

I W J Y` Y -'4 U N Y +T+' I YY Y Y N` tLn Cl)OU a) a) m m ( 0 so U U (
n i[n (n ' U U U U ' w a) (D o sz 0 O

0

c c > 
p p p p n I c c (n c

c

M M M M Y CL a-Z- 0 °(
umIM 000OCO m,m'COoQsz Y o so (

a Z ( D a) voi uoi ' M IV C: C: N Ln " U L r I t s m m m ~ ~ ~ ~ Q ~ U U (
o so W w sn cn 0) 0) 0)0)Qm
mLO m L LL LL

L Y Fn N N N L L i 0 o

si0mmmmUU 22O co LL
LL O o

0
L O(

n IM7L, US 0 U) 0 -
0c o LE5

O

O
O F- -o -o -o -a m m . ~o ci U U U CIO M '

a 06 06 > (
1) ~ c (

D
Q

co
co F- a) N a) so m sn U c "c c C c L c c c , r -0 - 0

L L N cA
O to N N IM CID

O Cnm ( a L C C

CL CL m m m L9 ( u M M M p o) >O O a) f- CY) L
U c

LL' N C
C 7 (7 L • L m N

LL LL LL LL LL LL LL U- J m Ln

Z Z

a) > 0) L 06, LL OL ' CL - O N
U

U

a) O M M M M a) a) vi ui > a , , a) a) 
sa a) L CL U 75 in

J

J

Z O D U U U U U N - N ~ 0 ca) 
u

N O

p

N 5~ ~ - c
0 C 3L0 U o c Y,_0 -

a-0_0 ~,[r~C7C~ C'CDC~CDC~'C5~(ntn0 ~20 °o in C0 > >_~~'F03: Q- o'10L10' 
O O N a) -

0 N N _Q' ~''.L . L . L .L . L =3 N a) a. nn C~ 

O a) a) > W UY p LL , 

x 00 0~00 (L) CD a) LL 3 p
U n in v N Li N .

N
L t t m M, ! Of N N m 0 O NO O C M L sn,

to a) a) 
UUU' UU~ UUU'..coom0.N0C=' ~'.(n 3: a)., = x0 N ~ Q~

0~°s °cQ aM M a) -0 - a a- Z) o L o 0~ L1c ( L) O cC N LB
Q Q Q Q 3 m IT N 7 Cn

U) J ~ Q LL F- r F- r r m F' ~ LL ( D U ( F ''
F D Z) LL 11. 2 ,2Q'Q QQ Q Q' Q Q', a) LL

W X' 

X, 

X'XXXX:X',XXXXXIX'XX>CXXXX' XXX'XXXXXXXXXXXXX' XXXX',XNN

Im r A~ 
F- O T w s}' ~ (O A 00 ~ O T N M w m A A

A A A A 00 CO w CO AA A A A A 00 00 w CO w CO 00w 01 et' d' ~ ~ ~ ~ 

d' ~ 'et d' ~ 7 Os ~ Oa Os Os CA Os CA O CA Q~ Os ~ to T T

T T T T T T T T T T T T T r T T T T r T T T T T a a

a a a a a a a a a a a a a a N N
N N N N N N N NN N N N N N N N N Z Z

Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z v r

a)
CA

CIO
Ll
Q

Z

L

x
W



ai af°i E E
0 0

I ~
0

1
as co

c ~

4i
0

O

C
d

C

h

t
w

C

O

d
w+

M "T N la
C) C) O O V

co 0 (n U) O
LLJ LU W W HF-- F- F- F- 

cC
a:000 30 (D (D (D

a- aaa u,
Cr) ' (D (D (D m

J: *k *k *k O
L- C C C

N d
S 7 7 7 ' a

LL- LL LL U-
Y Y Y TI-

C-

O 0 O 0 > 
CL

J : t-_ :Y Y- O
C: L: C E vi

L.

Q'
00 O O

06:06 06 06 O` E
L. L LL

ci~'QQ~
0 0 0 0 0
C:) U C) C) U

O
A~

O

x x x x x
d

c
a
L,

d

a;aaaa c
2:zzzz z

c `n
m~
E a'

CD
Ln

m
cu
a

QQ
c
ca ~

X
ui



 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN JACKSON COUNTY AND 

LIBRARY SYSTEMS & SERVICES, LLC. 

 

 

 

This contract for the Jackson County Library Services operation ("Agreement") is 

made and entered into by and between Jackson County, a home rule political 

subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and 

Library Systems & Services, LLC, commonly known as. LSSI, and hereafter referred 

to as CONTRACTOR. The parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

1.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 1.1. CONTRACTOR shall provide, as required by this Agreement, services to 

COUNTY, for the following: Jackson County Library Services, with such services 

and performance standards more specifically set forth. in Attachment "A" 

(collectively, "Services")attached hereto, and incorporated herein by reference, 

and as further delineated or set forth within this Agreement. 

 1.2. CONTRACTOR shall furnish labor necessary to perform in accordance 

with the requirements of this Agreement all those services described in 

Attachment "A" attached hereto, and as further delineated or set forth within 

this Agreement. 

2.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: The performance of CONTRACTOR shall be 

determined by the ability of CONTRACTOR to meet the performance standards as set 

forth in Attachment "A". 

3.0 TERM AND TERMINATION: This Agreement shall be effective as of October 

1, 2007, (Effective Date), and shall continue in effect for a period of five 

years with the ending date of September 30, 2012, or unless earlier terminated 

as specified in this section below. 

However, such expiration shall not extinguish or prejudice a party's right to 

enforce this contract with respect to: (a) any breach of a warranty; or (b) any 

default or defect in performance that has not been cured. The term of this 



Agreement may be renewed by mutual consent of the parties. 

 3.1. TERMINATION by Mutual Consent: This Agreement may be terminated at 

any time by mutual consent of both parties. 

 3.2. TERMINATION for Convenience: After the first twelve (12) months of 

the term hereof, this Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party 

upon at least 90 days' notice in writing and delivered by certified mail or in 

person. In the event of such termination as solely set forth in Section 3.2 by 

COUNTY, COUNTY shall not,through a private contractor, reprocure services of the 

same or a similar nature as those described herein for a period of eighteen (18) 

months. 

 3.3. TERMINATION for Default or Breach: Either COUNTY or CONTRACTOR may 

terminate this contract in the event of a breach of the contract by the other. 

Prior to such termination the party seeking termination shall give to the other 

party written notice of the breach and intent to terminate. If the party 

committing the breach has not entirely cured the breach within fifteen (15) days 

of the date of the notice, or within such other period beyond fifteen (15) days 

as the party giving the notice may authorize or require, then the contract may 

be terminated at any time thereafter by a written notice of termination by the 

party giving notice. The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this 

subsection are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this contract. 

 3.4 OBLIGATION/LIABILITY OF PARTIES: Termination or modification of this 

contract pursuant to subsections 3.1, 3.2, and 3.3 above shall be without 

prejudice to any obligations or liabilities of either party already accrued 

prior to such termination or modification. However, upon receiving a notice of 

termination (regardless whether such notice is given pursuant to subsections 

3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 of this section) CONTRACTOR shall immediately cease all 

activities under this contract, unless expressly directed otherwise by COUNTY in 

the notice of termination. Further, upon termination, CONTRACTOR shall deliver 



to COUNTY all contract documents, information, works-in-progress and other 

property that are or would be deliverables had the contract been completed. 

COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR for work performed prior to the termination date if 

such work was performed in accordance with the Contract.  

4.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT: 

 4.1. In consideration for the rendition of the services described herein, 

and as set forth in Attachment "A" hereto, the COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR the 

amount determined under Attachment A during contract year 2007-2008, including 

the administration and operation of the Jackson County Library Services. For 

contract year 2007-2008, any and all purchases of books and other library 

materials, and reimbursement of the processing charge shall be subject to the 

review of the County Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator 

or designee. 

 4.2. In no event shall the total compensation payable to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement exceed the amount determined under Attachment A. Attachment B 

sets forth by library in four (4) hour time blocks the cost of adding to the 

service levels at the various libraries. 

 4.3. Compensation for services shall be paid by COUNTY upon approval of 

the County Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator or designee 

upon review of a properly presented invoice or bill for services performed as 

set forth in Attachment A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice monthly prior to the start 

of each month and COUNTY shall wire transfer the invoiced amount to CONTRACTOR 

no later than the fifth day of such month. 

 4.4. In the event additional funds become available during the term of 

this agreement, the amount of this Agreement may be increased by said amount by 

an amendment signed by the parties here in the same manner as this Agreement was 

executed, after negotiations by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR of the description of 

services and performance standards to reflect the increased available funding 

have concluded, with all additional payments to be paid in the same manner 



described in Section 4.3. COUNTY'S intention is to negotiate with the various 

cities to increase service levels at the various branches over and above the 

hours referenced in Table A of Attachment A. Any negotiated additions shall be 

reflected in amendments to this agreement. 

 4.5. CONTRACTOR shall not submit billings for, and COUNTY will not pay, 

any amount in excess of the maximum compensation amount of this contract 

determined under Attachment A, including any travel and other expense when noted 

below. If the maximum compensation amount is increased by amendment of this 

contract, the amendment must be fully effective before CONTRACTOR performs work 

subject to the amendment. CONTRACTOR shall notify COUNTY's supervising 

representative in writing 30 calendar days before this contract expires of the 

upcoming expiration of the contract. No payment will be made for any services 

performed before the beginning date or after the expiration date of this 

contract. This contract will not be amended after the expiration date. 

 4.6. Whenever the COUNTY has discretion to establish the level of 

compensation under this Agreement, the following procedures shall apply: 

i. The COUNTY shall advise CONTRACTOR in writing not later than 

April 30th of each year of the COUNTY'S best estimate of the funding available 

for this Agreement for the coming fiscal year. 

ii.  Within sixty (60) days after receipt of the estimate of available funding, 

CONTRACTOR shall provide to COUNTY, CONTRACTOR'S written recommended budget and 

levels of service that CONTRACTOR can provide within the estimate of available 

funding for the coming fiscal year. 

5.0 Intentionally omitted. 

6.0 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY FOR TAXES AND WITHHOLDING; RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM STATUS: CONTRACTOR and its employees and agents shall be at all times in 

an independent capacity with regard to performance of services or work rendered 

pursuant to this contract: and CONTRACTOR and its employees and agents shall not 

act as, shall not be, and shall not in any manner be considered to be agents, 



officers or employees of COUNTY. There shall be no employer-employee 

relationship between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR and its employees and 

agents shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to COUNTY employees. 

CONTRACTOR is responsible for payment and deduction of all employment-related 

taxes on CONTRACTOR'S behalf and for CONTRACTOR'S employees, including but not 

limited to all federal and state income taxes and 

withholdings. COUNTY shall not be required to make any deductions from 

compensation payable to CONTRACTOR for these purposes. CONTRACTOR shall 

indemnify COUNTY against any and all claims that may be made against COUNTY 

based upon any contention by a third party that an employer-employee 

relationship exists by reason of this contract; and, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify 

COUNTY for any and all federal or state withholding or retirement payments for 

CONTRACTOR employees which COUNTY may be required to make 

pursuant to federal or state law. The COUNTY cannot and will not control the 

means or manner of the CONTRACTOR'S performance. The CONTRACTOR is responsibl1e 

for determining the appropriate means and manner of performing the work. The 

CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that CONTRACTOR (i) is not an individual 

serving as an employee of Jackson COUNTY, Oregon, (ii) is not currently an 

individual employed by the Federal Government, and (iii) meets the specific 

independent CONTRACTOR standards of ORS 670.600, as certified on the 

Certification Statement for Corporation or Independent CONTRACTOR-ATTACHMENT C. 

CONTRACTOR is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of the COUNTY, as those 

terms are used in ORS 30.265. 

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all federal or state taxes applicable to any 

compensation or payments paid to CONTRACTOR under this contract and, unless 

CONTRACTOR is subject to backup withholding, COUNTY will not withhold from such 

compensation or payments any amounts(s) to cover CONTRACTOR'S federal or state 

tax obligations. CONTRACTOR is not eligible for any federal Social Security, 

unemployment insurance, or workers' compensation benefits from compensation or 



payments paid to CONTRACTOR under this contract, except as a self-employed 

individual. 

7.0 RIGHT TO REVIEW AND MONITOR: COUNTY shall have the right to review 

and monitor the facilities, programs, or procedures of CONTRACTOR at any 

reasonable time. 

8.0 JANITORIAL/LANDSCAPING SERVICES: 

 8.1. COUNTY shall be responsible for negotiating and administering leases 

for all fifteen (15) Jackson County Library Services branches as set forth in 

Table A of Attachment A. All decisions regarding/said leases, and subleases or 

other use of COUNTY property shall also be the responsibility of COUNTY under 

direction from the COUNTY Administrator' Office and/or the Library Contract 

Administrator or designee. Payments on the branch leases will be made outside 

this contract and are not included in the contract amount specified in Section 

4.0. 

 8.2. COUNTY shall be responsible for negotiating and administering 

contracts and/or agreements for an appropriate level for public libraries in a 

manner consistent with prior practice of landscaping, janitorial service, 

building maintenance and other services at all Jackson County Library Services 

branches with the exception of one Day Porter (for 40 hours per week)at the 

Central Library in Medford. All decisions regarding said contracts shall be 

handled by COUNTY under direction from the County Administrator's Office and/or 

the Library Contract Administrator or designee. Payment for those contract 

services shall be made outside the contract and are not included in the contract 

amount determined under Attachment A with the exception of one Day Porter (for 

40 hours per week) at the Central Library in Medford. 

9.0 CONTRACTOR/AGREEMENTS WITH OTHER ENTITIES FOR MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES: COUNTY 

has entered into, or will be entering into certain contracts/agreements for the 

provision of MISCELLANEOUS services. If applicable and subject to mutual 

agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the services specified in those certain 



contracts/agreements, and CONTRACTOR shall submit an invoice to COUNTY for the 

services rendered. Most, if not all, contracts will be invoiced and handled 

directly though the COUNTY. Payment for those contract/agreement services shall 

be made outside the contract amount specified in Section 4.0. 

 9.1. CONTRACTOR acknowledges the existence of prior existing 

contracts/agreements for retail space in the various library buildings 

throughout the COUNTY, including but not limited to, a coffee shop and used book 

sales. COUNTY shall make available to CONTRACTOR without charge adequate space 

in the libraries to develop and implement new revenue generating services, such 

as services to the business community, retail sales (books, gifts, refreshments, 

etc.) and other fee based services, to benefit the community, COUNTY and 

CUSTOMER ("Additional Services"). COUNTY will use its best efforts to assist 

CONTRACTOR in the promotion and implementation of these Additional Services. 

COUNTY shall have the final approval of all Additional Services, with such 

approval to not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Unless 

otherwise approved by COUNTY, the provision of these Additional Services shall 

not in any way substantially reduce the space or library services provided prior 

to the implementation of these Additional Services. 

 9.2. COUNTY agrees that CONTRACTOR, as the contracted administrator of the 

Jackson County Library Services, shall have the opportunity to review and 

comment on all proposed agreements, and amendments to existing agreements where: 

additional services will be provided in the Jackson County Library Services 

prior to seeking approval from the Board of Commissioners of Jackson County. 

10.0 MEDIA USE OF COUNTY LIBRARY SYSTEM INFORMATION AND USE OF PATRON LIST: 

 10.1. CONTRACTOR and its employees may not speak publicly on behalf of 

the COUNTY, or the Jackson County Library Services without the express consent 

of the COUNTY Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator, or designee. 

 10.2. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the COUNTY Administrator, and/or 

Library Contract Administrator or designee with information, upon request, which 



is necessary to respond to media and/or public inquiries regarding the provision 

of library and/or ancillary services for the Jackson County Library Services. 

Whenever such information requested exceeds the scope of the information 

customarily collected, maintained and reported by CONTRACTOR in connection with 

its operations under this Agreement under section 13.0. CONTRACTOR shall be 

entitled to reimbursement of its actual costs of collecting and reporting such 

information subject to mutual consent obtained in advance~ between COUNTY and 

CONTRACTOR. 

 10.3. CONTRACTOR shall not use specific information regarding the Jackson 

County Library Services, including photographs or other pictorial 

representations, without the prior review and/or approval of the COUNTY 

Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator or designee, such approval 

not be unreasonably withheld. This review and/or approval shall apply to use in 

any of CONTRACTOR'S marketing activities and articles and/or papers for 

publication or consideration by trade and/or professional organizations or 

conferences. 

 10.4. CONTRACTOR shall not utilize the patron list of the Jackson County 

Library Services, library circulation records kept for the purpose of 

identifying the borrower of items available through the Jackson County Library 

Services, or any other information identifying patrons of the Jackson County 

Library Services, for any commercial use. CONTRACTOR may not make the list(s) 

available to any other entity for any reason, except as approved by the COUNTY 

Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator or designee. 

11.0 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES OF OPERATION: 

 11.1. CONTRACTOR agrees to the provisions of the Project Organization 

Chart, and the General Division of Responsibilities as contained in Attachment 

"E" hereto.  Attachment "E" may be modified by mutual agreement of the County 

Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator, or designee, and 

CONTRACTOR. 



 11.2. The policies, as reflected in the Jackson County Library Policy and 

Procedures manual, shall remain in effect for the operation of the Jackson 

County Library Services. CONTRACTOR may alter this manual only with the mutual 

agreement of the County Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator, or 

designee. Alterations to the manual shall not require formal amendments to this 

Agreement, unless the altercations result in significant changes in the scope of 

services, as provided herein. COUNTY shall be responsible for setting all 

policies that govern the operations of the libraries. 

12.0 STAFF OF CONTRACTOR: 

 12.1. The selection process of the Project Manager under this Agreement 

shall require direct participation by the COUNTY Administrator and/or Library 

Contract administrator, or designee and the appointment of this position shall 

require prior approval by the COUNTY Administrator and/or Library Contract 

Administrator or designee, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. 

 12.2. CONTRACTOR shall advise COUNTY, at the first reasonable opportunity" 

of any management changes within CONTRACTOR personnel performing this Agreement 

throughout the period of performance of this Agreement. 

 12.3. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY selected 

CONTRACTOR and is entering into this contract, because of the special 

qualifications of CONTRACTOR'S key personnel. In particular, COUNTY through this 

contract is engaging the expertise, experience, judgment, and personal attention 

of CONTRACTOR'S Project Manager, Mark Smith (name of key person or personnel). 

CONTRACTOR'S key person shall not delegate performance of the management powers 

and responsibilities he/she is required to provide under this contract to 

another CONTRACTOR employee without first obtaining the written consent of 

COUNTY, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. Further, CONTRACTOR shall 

not re-assign or transfer the key person to other duties or positions such that 

the key person is no longer available to provide COUNTY with his/her expertise, 

experience, judgment, and personal attention, without first obtaining COUNTY'S 



prior written consent to such re-assignment or transfer, such consent not to be 

unreasonably withheld. In the event CONTRACTOR requests that COUNTY approve a 

re-assignment or transfer of the key person, COUNTY shall have the right to 

interview, review the qualifications of, and approve or disapprove the proposed 

replacement(s) for the key person, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld. 

13.0 REPORTS 

 13.1. Annually, CONTRACTOR shall timely report to COUNTY all statistical 

information necessary to meet State reporting requirements, including but not 

limited to the Oregon State Library Reports. 

 13.2. In addition to the foregoing, CONTRACTOR shall provide other reports 

as mutually agreed upon between CONTRACTOR and COUNTY. 

 13.3. In addition to the foregoing, CONTRACTOR agrees to make available to 

COUNTY copies of any documents, electronic files, papers, plans, and writings, 

necessary to verify billing, for payment of invoices for the purchase of 

materials, as payment agent, as well as necessary for audit purposes. 

 13.4. The parties shall cooperate and work together with respect to any 

mutually agreed additional reports. 

 13.5. CONTRACTOR agrees that on or before July 30th after the close of any 

contract year, CONTRACTQR shall furnish financial statements of CONTRACTOR and 

its parent companies certified by their respective Chief Financial Officers 

(CFOs), for the most recent fiscal year ending December 31. The certified 

financial statements shall be forwarded to the COUNTY Administrator and/or 

Library Contract Administrator or designee. 

 13.6. CONTRACTOR agrees that at the sole discretion and expense of the 

COUNTY, COUNTY may on an annual basis request an independent audit of 

CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE OF THIS Agreement conducted by an auditor selected by 

COUNTY. CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate in the audit and CONTRACTOR shall use 

CONTRACTOR'S best efforts to ensure that the audit is completed timely, with no 

administrative delays. 



14.0 INDEMNIFICATION: CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, and hold harmless the 

COUNTY, special districts, their respective directors, Board of Commissioners, 

officers, employees, elected and appointed officials, and agents from any 

liability whatsoever, including wrongful death, for personal injury or property 

damage based or asserted upon any act or omission of CONTRACTOR, its employees, 

SUBCONTRACTORS or agents, connected with the accomplishment of the work or 

performance of service under this Agreement. As part of the foregoing indemnity, 

CONTRACTOR agrees to protect and defend at its own expense, including 

but not limited to, attorney's fees, the COUNTY, special districts, their 

respective directors, Board of Commissioners, officers, employees, elected and 

appointed officials, and agents in any legal action based upon any such alleged 

liability. COUNTY shall provide prompt written notice to CONTRACTOR of any 

matter asserted by COUNTY to be covered by this Section 14.0. 

However, the failure to provide such notice shall not deprive COUNTY of its 

rights under this Section 14.0 unless the failure to provide such notice, or a 

delay in providing such notice, has materially prejudiced CONTRACTOR in its 

ability to act under this Section 14.0. 

15.0 CONTRACTOR INSURANCE: 

Without limiting or diminishing the CONTRACTOR'S obligation to indemnify or hold 

the COUNTY harmless, CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain or cause to be 

maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverage's 

during the term of this Agreement. 

 15.1. WORKER'S COMPENSATION: If the CONTRACTOR has employees as defined by 

the State of Oregon, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain statutory Workers' 

Compensation Insurance as prescribed by the laws of the State of Oregon in 

compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires subject employers to provide Oregon 

workers' compensation coverage for all their subject workers. The policy shall 

be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of the COUNTY, if possible. 

 15.2. GENERAL LIABILITY: General Liability insurance coverage insurance 



with a combined single limit, or the equivalent, of not less than $2,000,000 for 

each occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage. It shall include 

contractual liability coverage for the indemnity provided under this contract. 

Policy shall name the COUNTY, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts, and 

Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Commissioners, 

employees, elected or appointed officials, agents or representatives as 

Additional Insureds but only with respect to the CONTRACTOR'S services to be 

provided under this Contract. 

 15.3. VEHICLE LIABILITY: If vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the 

performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then CONTRACTOR shall 

maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used 

in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage. If such insurance contains a general 

aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this agreement or 

be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the 

COUNTY, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments, their 

respective directors, officers, Board of Commissioners, employees, elected or 

appointed officials, agents or representatives as Additional Insureds. 

 15.4. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE: There shall be no cancellation, 

material change, reduction of limits or intent not to renew the insurance 

coverage(s) without 30 days' written notice from the CONTRACTOR or its 

insurer(s) to the COUNTY. 

 15.5. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. As evidence of the Insurance coverages 

required by this contract, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish acceptable Insurance 

certificates prior to commencing work under this contract. The certificate will 

specify all of the parties who are Additional Insureds. Insuring companies or 

entities are subject to COUNTY acceptance. If requested, complete copies of 

insurance policies, trust agreements, etc. shall be provided to the COUNTY. The 

CONTRACTOR shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles" self-



insured retentions and/or self-insurance. 

16.0 COUNTY INSURANCE: The COUNTY shall maintain or cause to be 

maintained property insurance covering all buildings used as libraries under 

this Agreement except for those buildings wherein a lease or other agreement 

specifically provides for others to provide such insurance. In addition, the 

COUNTY shall provide property insurance for the contents of the buildings, 

including all books, periodical and other materials contained in the libraries. 

CONT ACTOR shall advise the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library 

Contract Administrator or designee, the COUNTY Risk Manager and any other 

contact that the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator 

or designee has provided to CONTRACTOR of any loss or damage to property 

associated with any library immediately after the loss. Subsequent to any loss, 

CONTRACTOR shall cooperate fully with all request made by the, COUNTY'S Risk 

Manager or their designees. CONTRACTOR agrees to monitor and protect the 

property associated with this Agreement in the manner described herein. 

17.0 ADMINISTRATION: The COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract 

Administrator of the COUNTY, or designee, shall administer this Agreement on 

behalf of the COUNTY. 

18.0 SUBCONTRACTS AND ASSIGNMENT: CONTRACTOR shall not enter into any 

subcontracts for any of the Work required by this Contract or assign or transfer 

any of its interest in this Contract without COUNTY'S prior written consent. Any 

proposed use of a SUBCONTRACTOR which is located outside the United States or 

use of subcontract labor or facilities located outside the United States must be 

called to the specific attention of COUNTY. COUNTY'S consent to any subcontract, 

and such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, shall not relieve 

CONTRACTOR of any of its duties or obligations under this Contract. 

19.0 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: Neither party shall subcontract, assign or 

transfer its interest, in whole or in part, in this Contract without the prior 

express written consent of the other party, and such consent shall not be 



unreasonably withheld. In addition to any other provisions, CONTRACTOR shall 

include in any permitted subcontract under this contract a requirement that the 

SUBCONTRACTOR be bound to the same provisions herein as if the SUBCONTRACTOR 

were the CONTRACTOR. The provisions of this contract shall be binding upon and 

shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective 

successors and assigns. Consent of COUNTY given to a SUBCONTRACTOR does not 

relieve the CONTRACTOR of any obligations and responsibilities under this 

Contract, including CONTRACTOR'S responsibility for any goods and services to be 

provided by any SUBCONTRACTOR. Any attempted assignment or delegation in 

derogation of this paragraph shall be void. 

20.0 ALTERATION AND/OR AMENDMENT: No alteration, amendment, or variation of the 

terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the 

parties hereto, and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein, 

shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. Only the COUNTY'S Board of 

Commissioners or its designee may authorize any alteration or revision of this 

Agreement on behalf of the COUNTY. 

21.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST: CONTRACTOR shall have no interest, and shall 

not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which will conflict in any manner 

or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement. 

22.0 NOTICES: Notices under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the 

addresses set forth below, or to such other addressees as the parties designate 

in writing and provide to the other party:  

COUNTY 

Jackson County Administrator 

10 S. Oakdale, Rm 214 

Medford, OR 97501 

Attn.: Danny Jordan 

 

CONTRACTOR 

Library Systems & Services, LLC 

12850 Middlebrook Road, Suite 400 

Germantown, MD 20874-5244 

Attn.: Dean McCausland, President 



All correspondence and notices required or contemplated by this Agreement shall 

be deemed submitted five (5) days after their deposit in the United States mail, 

certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. 

23.0 REQUIRED AUTHORIZATION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN OREGON: CONTRACTOR shall 

obtain, and shall maintain, any authorization which may be required by 

the laws of the State of Oregon for CONTRACTOR to operate in the State of Oregon 

at all times while performing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall 

furnish certified copies of any required authorizations to the COUNTY 

Administrator and/or Library Contract Administrator or designee, prior to the 

commencement of the term of this Agreement. Failure to obtain any of these which 

may be required prior to the commencement of the term of the Agreement, or 

failure to maintain any of these during the term of the Agreement, shall be 

grounds for immediate suspension, and/or termination of this Agreement, by the 

COUNTY. 

24.0 WAIVER: Any waiver by COUNTY of any breach of any one (1) or more terms 

of this Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or 

other breach of the same term or of any other term herein. 

25.0 OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT; LICENSE: All reports, finding, data or 

documents compiled or assembled by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement becomes the 

property of the COUNTY, and shall be transmitted to COUNTY at the termination of 

this Agreement. CONTRACTOR may retain copies of any statistical, policy or 

procedural information produced by CONTRACTOR in performance of this Agreement, 

excluding any information related to, or capable of identifying, specific 

library patron(s). All work products of the CONTRACTOR that result solely from 

CONTRACTOR'S performance under this contract ("the work products") are the 

exclusive property of the COUNTY. In addition, if any of the work products 

contain intellectual property of the CONTRACTOR that is not separately licensed 

for a fee by CONTRACTOR that is or could be protected by federal copyright, 

patent, or trademark laws, or state trade secret laws, CONTRACTOR hereby grants 



COUNTY a royalty-free, fully paid up, nonexclusive license for the term of this 

Agreement to copy, reproduce, deliver, publish, perform, dispose of, use and re-

use, in whole or in part, all such intellectual property solely in connection 

with COUNTY'S use of such work product during the term of this Agreement. 

26.0 GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; VENUE: This contract shall be governed and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without resort to 

any jurisdiction's conflict of laws, rules or doctrines. Any claim, action, suit 

or proceeding (collectively, "the claim") between the COUNTY (and/or any other 

COUNTY or department of the State of Oregon) and the CONTRACTOR that arises from 

or relates to this contract shall be brought and conducted solely and 

exclusively within the Circuit Court of Jackson County for the State of Oregon. 

Provided, however, if the claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it 

shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the United States 

District Court for the District of Oregon filed in Jackson County, Oregon. 

CONTRACTOR, by the signature herein of its authorized representative, hereby 

consents to the in personam jurisdiction of said courts. 

 26.1. CONTRACTOR agrees that it will be subject to, and will be in 

compliance with the provisions of the Oregon Public Records Law for the 

provision of this Agreement. 

27.0 SEVERABILITY: The parties agree that if any term or provision of this 

contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in 

conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall 

not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be 

construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the particular term or 

provision held to be invalid. 

28.0 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, 

state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract, 

including, without limitation, the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.230, and 

279B.235, and as well as other statutes as set forth in the attached Attachment 



D, Compliance With Applicable Law, which is by this reference made a part 

hereof. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, CONTRACTOR expressly 

agrees to comply with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) 

Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the .Americans with 

Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub L No. 101-336), ORS 659A.l42, and all regulations 

and administrative rules established pursuant to those laws; and (iv) all other 

applicable requirements of federal, state and local civil rights and 

rehabilitation statues, rules and regulations. 

29.0 DISALLOWANCE: In the event CONTRACTOR receives payment for services 

under this Agreement under a grant which are later disallowed for non-

conformance with the terms and conditions herein, CONTRACTOR shall promptly 

refund the disallowed amount to COUNTY on request. COUNTY retains the option to 

offset the amount disallowed from any payment due to CONTRACTOR under this 

Agreement, or under any other contract or agreement between CONTRACTOR and 

COUNTY. 

30.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement, and each of the attachments hereto, 

constitute the entire Agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the 

subject matter herein and all prior or contemporaneous Agreements of any kind or 

nature relating to the same shall be deemed to be merged herein. Any 

modifications to the terms of this Agreement must be in writing as required 

herein. 

31.0 BANKRUPTCY: Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, if at any 

time there shall be filed by or against CONTRACTOR, in any court, tribunal, 

administrative agency or any other forum having jurisdiction, pursuant to any 

applicable law either of the United States or of any state, a petition in 

bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or for the appointment of a 

receive~, trustee or conservator of all or a portion of CONTRACTOR'S 

property, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, and 

if any such action is not dismissed after ninety (90) calendar days, this 



Agreement may, at the sole discretion of COUNTY, be immediately canceled and 

terminated by COUNTY. Notice shall be given within ten (l0) working days to 

COUNTY of any filing for bankruptcy, insolvency or for reorganization of a 

receiver, trustee or conservator, or assignment to creditors. 

32.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARD REVIEW: CONTRACTOR agrees that annually, in 

consultation with the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract 

Administrator or designee, a qualitative performance standard review shall be 

conducted. The scope of the review shall be mutually determined by the parties. 

33.0 AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT GIFTS, REQUESTS, DONATIONS AND/OR GRANTS: 

CONTRACTOR shall accept any gifts, bequests, donations and/or grants, as 

identified, and authorized by the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library 

Contract Administrator or designee, pursuant to the authority as granted by the 

Board of Commissioners, on behalf of the Jackson County Library Services. It is 

understood that gifts, bequests and donations made directly to CONTRACTOR may 

not be tax-deductible to the donor, and that therefore, gifts, bequests and 

donations will ordinarily be made to COUNTY or Jackson COUNTY Library Foundation 

and/or the Jackson County Friends of the Library, and applied in accordance with 

the provisions of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall expend any revenue and/or 

funds contained in such gifts, bequests, donations and/or grants, subject to any 

restrictions placed on the use of the revenues and/or funds at the time of 

receipt, by the donor, the Jackson County Library Services, the Jackson County 

Library Foundation, Friends of the Library and/or the Board of Commissioners. 

34.0 EQUIPMENT/FURNITURE: 

 34.1. COUNTY shall provide the facilities and furniture, and CONTRACTOR 

shall provide operational equipment and supplies (all as specified in the 

mutually agreed budget), and shall manage the staff and operate library 

facilities as necessary to properly provide the Jackson County Library Services 

at a level consistent with the funding level provided by the COUNTY. Provision 

for any new automation equipment and telecommunication equipment, including 



payments, shall be acquired by mutual consent of the parties. Any additional 

equipment and supplies specifically provided by the COUNTY for use by CONTRACTOR 

in the provision of Jackson County Library Services service shall be and shall 

remain the property of the COUNTY. 

 34.2. COUNTY shall indemnify, and hold harmless CONTRACTOR, its officers, 

employees, and agents from any liability for personal injury (including wrongful 

death) or property damage, arising out of COUNTY'S failure to perform needed 

facility maintenance, however, this indemnification and hold harmless will only 

apply if CONTRACTOR has met all obligations stated in Section 34.3 below. 

 34.3. As a result of carrying out this Agreement, CONTRACTOR becomes the 

day-to-day custodian of the property associated with the subject libraries of 

this Agreement. Such property shall include the land upon which the library is 

located: including but not limited to landscaping, walkways, parking and stairs; 

the building; including (to the extent observable by CONTRACTOR) but not limited 

to all building systems such as heating, air conditioning, plumbing, electrical 

and security, and all contents including but not limited to books, shelves, 

furniture, computers and all other articles of personal property. As custodian 

of COUNTY property, CONTRACTOR shall take reasonable actions that would be 

expected of a reasonably prudent custodian of real and personal property, 

subject always to the level of staffing by CONTRACTOR and the hours of 

operation. Such actions will include, but not be limited to, the 

observation of the property during library operation noting any apparent 

hazards, damage, needed maintenance and security concerns. Hazards are physical 

conditions of the premises that could cause physical injury to visitors or 

staff. CONTRACTOR shall take immediate action, upon discovery, to prevent any 

hazard(s) from causing damage to others, and such action taken shall be 

appropriate for the hazard(s) involved up to and including the evacuation and 

closure of the library until the hazard(s) are corrected. For most hazards 

discovered, immediate, minor actions can be taken to prevent injury such as, but 



not limited to: cordoning off an area, taping a rip in the carpet, posting 

warning signs or closing off a room. Hazards that come to the attention 

of the CONTRACTOR should be reported to the COUNTY Administrator and/or the 

Library Contract Administrator or designee, after CONTRACTOR has taken any 

immediate, protective action CONTRACTOR deems prudent. If, in the opinion of 

CONTRACTOR, a reported hazard has not been corrected in a timely manner, the 

hazard should be reported to the COUNTY Risk Manager. CONTRACTOR shall advise 

the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator or designee, 

of minor damage and maintenance needs of the property. In the event of serious 

damage to the property from any cause, including but not limited to fire,  

CONTRACTOR shall first notify the appropriate emergency services and then notify 

the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator or designee, 

and COUNTY Risk Management. This Section is NOT intended to be a blanket 

authorization for the CONTRACTOR to upgrade furniture or fixtures unilaterally, 

nor is the intent of this clause for the CONTRACTOR to spend funds not approved 

by the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract Administrator or 

designee. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with and provide claim-related information 

requested by COUNTY'S insurance company representatives after any loss. 

CONTRACTOR shall train the manager of each Library as to their duties as 

required herein and make sure they have the knowledge and training to respond 

correctly. 

 34.4. All assets, including capital expenditures with a single unit cost 

over $5,000 which are purchased and/or procured by CONTRACTOR for use in the 

operation of the branches of the Jackson County Library Services pursuant to 

this Agreement, shall be and shall remain the property of the COUNTY. 

 34.5. COUNTY shall make available to CONTRACTOR without charge, solely 

for CONTRACTOR'S use in performing hereunder, all properties, facilities, 

equipment, collections, supplies, records, files and data used or useful in the 

operation of the libraries that is in COUNTY'S possession, custody or control as 



of the date hereof. COUNTY reserves all ownership rights in such properties and 

CONTRACTOR shall return such properties to COUNTY, ordinary wear and tear 

excepted, at the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 34.6. COUNTY shall provide CONTRACTOR with an initial inventory of all 

equipment and furnishings of the Jackson County Library Services. CONTRACTOR 

shall thereafter manage the items included in such inventory and update COUNTY 

on any changes to such inventory. 

35.0 COLLECTION DEVELOPMENT: 

 35.1 Where materials, including books, are required to be purchased by 

CONTRACTOR for the Jackson County Library Services, pursuant to this Agreement: 

On an annual basis, CONTRACTOR shall informally seek quotations for general 

material acquisitions from a minimum of two (2) vendors, shall retain all 

documents relating to those quotation(s) during the term of this Agreement, and 

shall make all materials on the quotations, the selection process and criteria, 

and the final award available to the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library 

Contract Administrator or designee, upon request of the COUNTY Administrator 

and/or the Library Contract Administrator or designee. 

 35.2 CONTRACTOR agrees that any materials deemed by CONTRACTOR to be ready 

for weeding out of the collection of the Jackson County Library Services shall 

not be discarded without the prior approval of the COUNTY Administrator and/or 

the Library Contract Administrator or designee. 

36.0 RECOVERY OF ASSESSMENTS AGAINST COUNTY: In any instance where funds other 

than those described in Section 4.0 of this Agreement have been forwarded from 

the COUNTY, and/or are paid directly from any source, to CONTRACTOR for the 

performance of duties outside the scope of this Agreement, including but not 

limited to donations for extra staff, extra hours, extra services, and/or 

special purpose grants, CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall refund to the COUNTY, 

immediately upon request of the COUNTY Administrator and/or the Library Contract 

Administrator or designee, any funds which have or have not been applied by 



CONTRACTOR to the required out-of-scope special purposes, work or services, that 

are required to be returned by COUNTY to the requesting entity. 

37.0 FOREIGN CONTRACTOR: If the CONTRACTOR is not domiciled in or registered to 

do business in the State of Oregon, CONTRACTOR shall promptly provide to the 

Oregon Department of Revenue and the Secretary of State Corporation Division all 

information required by those agencies relative to this Contract. The CONTRACTOR 

shall demonstrate its legal capacity to perform these services in the State of 

Oregon prior to entering into this contract. 

38.0 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: County and CONTRACTOR are the only parties to 

this contract and are the only parties entitled to enforce: its terms. Nothing 

in this contract gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or 

provide, any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or otherwise, to 

third persons unless such third persons are individually identified by name 

herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this 

contract. 

39.0 FORCE MAJEURE: Neither COUNTY nor CONTRACTOR shall be held responsible for 

delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, war or any other cause 

beyond a party's reasonable control where such cause was beyond, respectively, 

COUNTY'S or CONTRACTOR'S reasonable control. CONTRACTOR shall, however, make all 

reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and 

shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its 

obligations under this contract. 

40.0 SURVIVAL: The terms, conditions, representations and all warranties 

contained in this Contract shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Contract. 

41.0 EXECUTION AND COUNTERPARTS: This contract may be exercised III several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, all of which shall constitute 

but one and the same instrument. 

42.0 PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED: Approval by the Jackson County Board of 



Commissioners or the County Administrator, as evidenced by COUNTY'S execution of 

this Agreement, is required before any work may begin under this contract. 

43.0 CONFIDENTIALITY: CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees it is responsible for 

ensuring compliance with all applicable confidentiality laws, including but not 

limited to the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act (HIP AA) and 

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERP A). 

44.0 MERGER CLAUSE: THIS CONTRACT AND ATTACHED EXHIBITS CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. NO WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE OF 

TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT SHALL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING AND SIGNED BY 

BOTH PARTIES. SUCH WAIVER, CONSENT, MODIFICATION OR CHANGE, IF MADE, SHALL BE 

EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN. 

THERE ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS, OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, 

NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR, BY SIGNATURE OF ITS 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE/SHE HAS READ THIS 

CONTRACT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

45.0 CERTIFICATION OF AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT: CONTRACTOR certifies 

that the individual signing below has authority to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of CONTRACTOR, and may legally bind CONTRACTOR to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, and any attachments hereto. 

46.0 INFORMATION AND EMPLOYEES. 

 46.1. Information. In the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may 

be exposed to information regarding the identity of COUNTY'S patrons, COUNTY may 

be exposed to information regarding CONTRACTOR'S proprietary library management 

techniques, and either party may be exposed to other information designated in 

writing by the disclosing Party as confidential (collectively, "Confidential 

Information"). Each party shall: (1) use the same care to protect the other 

party's Confidential Information from disclosure that such party uses to protect 

its own information of like importance; (2) limit duplication of Confidential 

Information to the extent needed to perform this Agreement; and (3) disclose 



Confidential Information only to employees having a need to know in connection 

with performance of this Agreement, and who are informed of the contents of this 

provision prior to disclosure. This provision shall survive termination or 

expiration of this Agreement; and, on such termination or expiration, each party 

shall return all Confidential Information, including all copies, to the owner 

of such information, and if requested, shall certify in writing that all such 

information has been returned. Because the damage resulting from a breach of 

this provision would be difficult or impossible to quantify and remedy at law, 

in case of such breach, or the threat of such breach, the party whose 

Confidential Information is threatened to be disclosed shall be entitled to 

injunctive or other equitable relief. 

 46.2. Employees. COUNTY shall not actively solicit to hire any employee of 

CONTRACTOR during the term of this Agreement or for a period of six (6) months 

after termination or expiration of this Agreement, unless such employee 

previously was an employee of COUNTY. It is understood that posting a job does 

not constitute active solicitation. 

47.0 Intentionally omitted. 

48.0 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

In no case shall either party be liable for any damages, losses, costs or 

expenses under or in connection with this Agreement, whether for breach of 

contract, tort or otherwise in excess of an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 

the actual damages suffered by the aggrieved party, or (ii) the charges for the 

twelve (12) month period (as shown in Attachment A, as it may be amended) in 

which such damages were allegedly incurred. In no case shall either party be 

liable for any punitive, exemplary, incidental, consequential, or special 

damages arising out of or in connection with this Agreement Notwithstanding any 

other provisions of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall have'l1o responsibility for 

any worker's compensation or any other claims for incidents or costs, expenses 

or losses occurring prior to the date hereof. 



49.0 WARRANTY. CONTRACTOR warrants that it will perform hereunder with at least 

the care, diligence and expertise generally accepted in the library service 

industry. CONTRACTOR may purchase goods for use in the management and operation 

of the libraries. Title to all items purchased by CONTRACTOR on behalf of COUNTY 

shall at all times reside in COUNTY. If CONTRACTOR furnishes any goods to 

COUNTY, CONTRACTOR will use good faith efforts to extend the manufacturer's 

warranty, if any, to COUNTY. There are no other warranties, express or implied, 

including warranties of merchantability or fitness for particular purpose. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executive this _____ day of ____________, 2008. 

COUNTY      CONTRACTOR 

 

 

 

___________________________   _______________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

 

 

 

 



Attachment A 

 

 

 

Jackson County, Oregon 

Agreement for the Administration and Operation of Library Services 

 

A. Statement of Work 

 

LSSI will administer the operations of Customer's library facilities 

(collectively, "Library"), including the accounting for, purchase of and payment 

for payroll services and goods and services from vendors for budgeted utilities, 

supplies, repairs, maintenance, Library Materials (as defined below) and Capital 

Items (as defined below) sufficient to operate the Library in accordance with 

the policies and guidelines approved by Customer. 

 

LSSI shall provide, by and through its own employees or independent CONTRACTORS 

("LSSI Staff") any labor LSSI deems necessary for the operation of the Library. 

The cost of the LSSI Staff shall be paid by LSSI and is included in the 

Operating Budget (as defined below). LSSI shall have the right to hire and/or 

terminate the employment of the Library Staff from time to time to perform work 

under this Agreement as set forth in the main body of the agreement. LSSI 

will provide the appropriate staffing levels to keep the Branch Libraries open 

to the public at a minimum the number of hours per week indicated on Table A. 

 

In addition, LSSI will develop a long-range plan for Customer in cooperation  

with Customer, elected and appointed local officials, other community 

stakeholders and the Library Staff ("Plan"). Using current professional 

standards and practice, the Plan will identify challenges and opportunities for 

the Library staff and corresponding strategic responses, including specific, 

measurable goals and objectives. 

 

This Plan, when approved by Customer, will help govern the direction and focus 

of the Library Staff in fulfillment of their mission of providing effective and 

efficient Library service to meet the personal, professional and lifelong 

learning needs of the citizens served by the Library. 

 

Appendix 1 attached hereto is a copy of LSSI's response dated August 6, 2007 to 

Customer's request for proposal. Appendix 2 attached hereto is a copy of LSSI's 

response dated August 20, 2007 to Customer's request for pricing for reduced 

hours. 

 

B. Scope of Work 

 

1. Governance - Develop and maintain effective working relationships with 

local staff, elected officials, Library Advisory Board members, other appointed 

officials and community groups such as the Friends of the Library. 

 

2. Meetings - LSSI's Project Manager or designee will attend all scheduled 

meetings of the Library Advisory Committee and the Jackson County Library 

Foundation. LSSI will make appropriate staff available to attend all meetings of 

the branch libraries Friends Groups or any future county-wide Friends Group. 

 

 

3. Fiscal Responsibility: 

 



 a. Develop and maintain effective and efficient financial 

procedures. 

 

b. Review all aspects of Library operation and service for 

efficiency and cost-effectiveness, while making changes as appropriate. 

 

c. Lead preparation of annual operating and capital budget requests. 

 

d. Continue to seek innovative means of adding value to Customer at 

little or no additional cost, including the procurement of grants. 

 

4. Management and Reporting: 

 

a. Prepare and provide regular reports to Customer, describing 

Library activities and recommending changes in policies, procedures and 

operations as necessary and appropriate. 

 

b. Prepare and provide timely statistical reports to the Customer on 

Library activities. 

 

5. Staff Development and Coaching: 

 

a. Support orientation, training and professional development of all 

Library Staff. 

 

b. Provide leadership and guidance to maximize Library Staff 

effectiveness in Library operations. 

 

6. Public Services: 

 

a. Provide prompt, friendly and accurate assistance in the use of 

the Library. 

 

b. Provide prompt and accurate circulation, information and 

reference services. 

 

c. Provide requested materials promptly. 

 

7. Collections - Provide high quality materials on a wide variety of 

subjects in varied formats for all age groups present in the community, 

according to established collection management plans. 

 

8. Programming - Provide high quality, effective educational, recreational 

and cultural programs of interest to all age groups present in the community. 

 

9. Information Technology - Develop and implement short and long range 

plans to procure, install and support sufficient hardware, software, network, 

telecommunications and other resources necessary to support the Library's 

mission. 

 

10. Marketing - Effectively disseminate information and promote use of the 

Library, resources and services. 

 

11. Facilities - Work with Library Staff and local officials to ensure 

effective building maintenance by promptly identifying and reporting problems 

with the physical plant. 

 



C. Excluded Services 

 

LSSI shall have no responsibility for administration, purchase or payment of, or 

any liability or duty to defend claims for: 

 

1. Any goods or services, including payroll, that were rendered to 

Customer prior to the Effective Date. 

 

2. Unfair labor practices, grievances, or any claims or litigation 

whatsoever arising out of the hiring and/or firing, layoff, subcontracting, 

assignment, reassignment or discipline of the Library Staff not employed by 

LSSI, provided that such claims have not resulted from negligence or wrongful 

acts of LSSI under federal, state, or municipal law. 

 

3. Any worker's compensation claims arising from injuries sustained prior 

to the Effective Date from any Library Staff not employed by LSSI at the time of 

such injuries. 

 

4. Any costs of any voluntary retirement incentives, employee buyouts or 

other similar programs adopted by Customer. 

 

5. Any Capital Items with single unit cost of over $5000, which shall mean 

any capital acquisitions, improvements or replacements of any of the properties, 

facilities, equipment, furniture, furnishings, fixtures or leasehold 

improvements of the Library, except that such Capital Items proposed by LSSI for 

its benefit (i.e. coffee bar, etc.) shall be approved by Customer and paid for 

by LSSI. 

 

6. Any amount of costs for unbudgeted repairs, maintenance and/or upkeep 

of Capital Items owned by Customer. 

 

D. Library Materials and Materials Handling Fee 

 

On behalf and for the benefit of Customer, LSSI will negotiate favorable 

discounts and prices from Library suppliers for the purchase of all Library 

materials, which shall include books, periodicals, newspapers, microfilms, 

electronic database subscriptions, standing orders, audio and video materials 

and cases, automated reference services, binding, cataloging and processing 

costs and the Materials Handling Fee (as defined below) collectively, "Library 

Materials"). The responsibility for Library collection development policies will 

remain with Customer, and all Library Materials selections will be the 

responsibility of LSSI. LSSI will place orders with the suppliers and perform 

the accounting functions related to those orders, including prompt payment of 

the invoices. In accounting for the cost of the Library Materials, LSSI shall 

include a fee of five percent (5%) of the cost of the Library Materials ordered 

("Materials Handling Fee"). 

 

E. Operating Budget and Charges 

 

                       Charges (“Operating Budget”) 

Period Period Monthly Library Materials* 

October 1, 2007 to 

June 30,2008 

$ 2,286,711.00 $ 254,079.00 $ 472,500.00 

July 1, 2008 to 

June 30, 2009 

$ 3,140,418.00 $ 261,701.00 $ 630,000.00 

 

  

 



* Total cost of Library Materials is included in the Operating Budget and shall 

include the Materials Handling Fee. 

 

The Operating Budget is contingent on other existing contractual terms, 

obligations and responsibilities remaining the same except as expressly noted 

herein.   

 

Prior to three (3) months before the end of the last period to which the amount 

of Charges have been agreed upon, the Parties shall begin to negotiate in good 

faith the amount of Charges that will apply to the next period. If the Parties 

have not reached such agreement one (1) month before the end of such period, 

then the Charges for the next twelve (12) month period, or such fewer number of 

months remaining until the Expiration Date ("Remaining Months"), shall be equal 

to the Charge for the last month of such period multiplied by twelve (12) or the 

number of Remaining Months, whichever is less, plus a CPI cost-of-living 

escalator. 

 

Table A 

 

 

Library 

 

 

New Schedule 

(Hour/Week) 

County 

 

Saturday Hours 

Funded by 

Donations 

 

Total Hours 

 

FTE’s 

Applegate 8 4 12 .5 

Ashland 24  24 6.0 

Butte Falls 8  8 .5 

Medford 24  24 9.6 

Central Point 24  24 2.75 

Eagle Point 24  24 2.75 

Gold Hill 16  16 1.0 

Jacksonville 16 4 20 1.5 

Phoenix 16  16 1.0 

Prospect 8  8 .5 

Rogue River 24 4 28 3.5 

Ruch 8  8 .5 

Shady Cove 16  16 1.0 

Talent 16  16 1.0 

White City 16 6 22 1.5 

Admin. Central    10.0 

Total 248 18 266 43.60 

 

 

The parties will negotiate in good faith any shifting of staffing among 

libraries requested by County. 

 

 

 



City of Rainier 

Options for Library Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Option 1: City Employee with full benefits 

Hours of Service: 40 

Estimated Annual Cost: $68,573/ year 

Pros: Additional hours offered; could enable more evening hours; employee would only have 

to contribute around $90 per month towards health insurance costs 

Cons: This exceeds the budgeted amount of $60,000; budget would have to be changed to 

reflect change in status from contract service to city employee 

 

Option 2: City Employee with full benefits 

Hours of Service: 32 

Estimated Annual Cost: $54,645/ year 

Pros: This would maintain current hours of service and be under budget 

Cons: Employee would have to contribute around $450 per month towards health insurance 

costs; budget would have to be changed to reflect change in status from contract service to 

city employee 

Option 3: City employee with no benefits 

Estimated Annual Cost: Around $17,000/year 

Hours of Service: 19.5 

Pros: This would be well under budget 

Cons: Fewer hours of service; budget would have to be changed to reflect change in status 

from contract service to city employee; employee would not have benefits 

Option 4: Contract with a different service provider 

Estimated Cost: TBD 

Number of Hours of Service: TBD 

Pros: Costs and hours of operation can be included in the contract; maintains current status 

as a contracted service; would not require any change to the budget; costs can be set, 

contained and kept predictable; contract can be cancelled if services do not meet expectations  

Cons: Benefits would not be offered 





 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1082 

 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION IN THE CITY 

OF RAINIER 

 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE, AND METHODS 

 

1.1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION 

 

The State of Oregon has in OR ORS 197.175 delegated the responsibility to local 

governmental units to adopt floodplain management regulations designed to promote the 

public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the City of Rainier does 

ordain as follows: 

 

1.2 FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

A. The flood hazard areas of the City of Rainier are subject to periodic inundation which 

may result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce 

and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and 

relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, 

safety, and general welfare. 

 

B. These flood losses may be caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in special 

flood hazard areas which increase flood heights and velocities, and when inadequately 

anchored, cause damage in other areas. Uses that are inadequately floodproofed, elevated, 

or otherwise protected from flood damage also contribute to flood loss. 

 

1.3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 

It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote public health, safety, and general welfare, and 

to minimize public and private losses due to flooding in flood hazard areas by provisions 

designed to: 

 

A. Protect human life and health; 

 

B. Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects; 

 

C. Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally 

undertaken at the expense of the general public; 

 

D. Minimize prolonged business interruptions; 

 

E. Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains; electric, 

telephone and sewer lines; and streets and bridges located in special flood hazard areas; 

 

F. Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood 



hazard areas so as to minimize blight areas caused by flooding; 

 

G. Notify potential buyers that the property is in a special flood hazard area 

 

H. Notify those who occupy special flood hazard areas that they assume responsibility for 

their actions 

 

I. Participate in and maintain eligibility for flood insurance and disaster relief. 

 

1.4 METHODS OF REDUCING FLOOD LOSSES 

 

In order to accomplish its purposes, this ordinance includes methods and provisions for: 

 

A. Restricting or prohibiting development which is dangerous to health, safety, and property 

due to water or erosion hazards, or which result in damaging increases in erosion or in 

flood heights or velocities; 

 

B. Requiring that development vulnerable to floods, including facilities which serve such 

uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction; 

 

C. Controlling the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective 

barriers, which help accommodate or channel flood waters; 

 

D. Controlling filling, grading, dredging, and other development which may increase flood 

damage; 

 

E. Preventing or regulating the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert 

flood waters or may increase flood hazards in other areas.  

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be interpreted so 

as to give them the meaning they have in common usage. 

 

Appeal: A request for a review of the interpretation of any provision of this ordinance or a 

request for a variance. 

 

Area of shallow flooding:  A designated Zone AO, AH, AR/AO or AR/AH on a community’s 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a one percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an 

average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path 

of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is 

characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

 

Area of special flood hazard: The land in the floodplain within a community subject to a 1 

percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. It is shown on the Flood Insurance Rate 

Map (FIRM) as Zone A, AO, AH, A1-30, AE, A99, AR (V, V1-30, VE). “Special flood hazard 

area” is synonymous in meaning and definition with the phrase “area of special flood hazard.” 

 



Base flood: The flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 

year. 

 

Base flood elevation (BFE):  The elevation to which floodwater is anticipated to rise during the 

base flood. 

 

Basement:  Any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. 

 

Development: Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 

limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or 

drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials. 

 

Flood or Flooding:  

(a) A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land 

areas from: 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

(3) Mudslides (i.e., mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined 

in paragraph (a)(2) of this definition and are akin to a river of liquid and flowing 

mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a 

current of water and deposited along the path of the current. 

(b) The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a 

result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding 

anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a 

natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of 

nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and 

unforeseeable event which results in flooding as defined in paragraph (a)(1) of this 

definition. 

 

Flood elevation study: See “Flood Insurance Study.” 

 

 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM):  The official map of a community, on which the Federal 

Insurance Administrator has delineated both the special hazard areas and the risk premium zones 

applicable to the community. A FIRM that has been made available digitally is called a Digital 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM). 

 

Flood Insurance Study (FIS):  An examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards 

and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation and 

determination of mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or flood-related erosion hazards.  

 

Flood proofing:  Any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or 

adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage to real estate or 

improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, structures, and their contents. 

 

Floodway:  The channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be 



reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface 

elevation more than a designated height. Also referred to as "Regulatory Floodway." 

 

Functionally dependent use:  A use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is 

located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port 

facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship 

building and ship repair facilities, and does not include long term storage or related 

manufacturing facilities. 

 

Highest adjacent grade:  The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 

construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 

 

Historic structure:  Any structure that is: 

 

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the 

Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as 

meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register; 

 

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to 

the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily 

determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

 

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 

preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or 

 

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 

preservation programs that have been certified either: 

 

a. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or  

b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states without approved programs. 

 

Lowest floor:  The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement).  An 

unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or 

storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest floor, 

provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the 

applicable non-elevation design requirements of this ordinance. 

 

Manufactured dwelling:  A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 

permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached 

to the required utilities.  The term "manufactured dwelling" does not include a "recreational 

vehicle" and is synonymous with “manufactured home.” 

 

Manufactured dwelling park or subdivision:  A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided 

into two or more manufactured dwelling lots for rent or sale. 

 

Mean sea level: For purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the National Geodetic 

Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which Base Flood Elevations shown on a 



community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced. 

 

New construction:  For floodplain management purposes, “new construction” means structures 

for which the “start of construction” commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain 

management regulation adopted by the City of Rainier and includes any subsequent 

improvements to such structures.  

 

Recreational vehicle:  A vehicle which is: 

 

1. Built on a single chassis; 

 

2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

 

3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; and 

 

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters 

for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

 

Special flood hazard area:  See “Area of special flood hazard” for this definition. 

 

Start of construction:  Includes substantial improvement and means the date the building permit 

was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 

addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days from the date of the permit. The 

actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, 

such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or 

any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured dwelling on a 

foundation.  Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, 

and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include 

excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor 

does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds 

not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, 

the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other 

structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the 

building. 

 

Structure: For floodplain management purposes, a walled and roofed building, including a gas 

or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured dwelling. 

 

Substantial damage:  Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 

restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 

market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

 

Substantial improvement:  Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement 

of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the structure 

before the "start of construction" of the improvement. This term includes structures which have 

incurred "substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does 

not, however, include either: 



 

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 

health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local 

code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 

conditions; or 

 

2. Any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the 

structure's continued designation as a "historic structure.” 

 

Variance: A grant of relief by the City of Rainier from the terms of a flood plain management 

regulation. 

 

Violation:  The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 

community’s floodplain management regulations.  A structure or other development without the 

elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this 

ordinance is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided. 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1.1 LANDS TO WHICH THIS ORDINANCE APPLIES 

 

This ordinance shall apply to all special flood hazard areas within the jurisdiction of the City 

of Rainier. 

 

1.2 BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

The special flood hazard areas identified by the Federal Insurance Administrator in a 

scientific and engineering report entitled “The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for the City of 

Rainier, Oregon (Flood Map 41009C010D, dated November 26, 2010, with accompanying 

Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) 410038, is hereby adopted by reference and declared to 

be a part of this ordinance. The FIS and FIRM panels are on file at the Columbia County 

Planning Department, St. Helens, Oregon, and available online at https://hazards-

fema.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=8b0adb51996444d4879338b5529a

a9cd&extent=-122.97294158263547,46.07290874175574,-

122.90565032286993,46.102672907506594. 

 

1.3 COORDINATION WITH STATE OF OREGON SPECIALTY CODES 

 

Pursuant to the requirement established in ORS 455 that the City of Rainier administers and 

enforces the State of Oregon Specialty Codes, the City of Rainier does hereby acknowledge 

that the Oregon Specialty Codes contain certain provisions that apply to the design and 

construction of buildings and structures located in special flood hazard areas. Therefore, this 

ordinance is intended to be administered and enforced in conjunction with the Oregon 

Specialty Codes. 

 

1.4 COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE 

 

COMPLIANCE 



 

All development within special flood hazard areas is subject to the terms of this 

ordinance and required to comply with its provisions and all other applicable 

regulations.  

 

PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE 

 

No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted, or 

altered without full compliance with the terms of this ordinance and other applicable 

regulations. Violations of the provisions of this ordinance by failure to comply with 

any of its requirements (including violations of conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with conditions) shall constitute a Class I misdemeanor, punishable by 

a $500 fine. Nothing contained herein shall prevent the City of Rainier from taking 

such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.  

 

1.5 ABROGATION AND SEVERABILITY 

 

ABROGATION 

This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, 

covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this ordinance and another 

ordinance, easement, covenant, or deed restriction conflict or overlap, whichever 

imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail. 

 

SEVERABILITY 

 

This ordinance and the various parts thereof are hereby declared to be severable. If 

any section clause, sentence, or phrase of the Ordinance is held to be invalid or 

unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 

way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

 

1.6 INTERPRETATION 

 

In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions shall be: 

A. Considered as minimum requirements; 

B. Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and 

C. Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes. 

 

1.7 WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 

 

WARNING 

 

The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance is considered reasonable for 

regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger 

floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-

made or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply that land outside the areas of 

special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or 



flood damages. 

 

DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY 

 

This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of Rainier, any officer 

or employee thereof, or the Federal Insurance Administrator for any flood damages 

that result from reliance on this ordinance, or any administrative decision lawfully 

made hereunder. 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION 

 

1.8 DESIGNATION OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR 

 

The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby appointed to administer, implement, and 

enforce this ordinance by granting or denying development permits in accordance with its 

provisions. The Floodplain Administrator may delegate authority to implement these 

provisions. 

 

1.9 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR 

 

Duties of the floodplain administrator, or their designee, shall include, but not be limited to: 

PERMIT REVIEW 

 

Review all development permits to determine that: 

A. The permit requirements of this ordinance have been satisfied; 

B. All other required local, state, and federal permits have been obtained and 

approved. 

C. Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is 

located in a floodway. If located in the floodway assure that the floodway 

provisions of this ordinance in section 0 are met; and 

D. Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development is 

located in an area where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is available either 

through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) or from another authoritative source. If 

BFE data is not available then ensure compliance with the provisions of sections 

5.1.7; and 

E. Provide to building officials the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) with an additional 

two-feet freeboard height applicable to any building requiring a development 

permit.   

F. Review all development permit applications to determine if the proposed 

development qualifies as a substantial improvement as defined in section 2.0. 

G. Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development 

activity is a watercourse alteration. If a watercourse alteration is proposed, 

ensure compliance with the provisions in section 5.1.1. 

H. Review all development permits to determine if the proposed development 

activity includes the placement of fill or excavation. 

 



INFORMATION TO BE OBTAINED AND MAINTAINED 

 

The following information shall be obtained and maintained and shall be made 

available for public inspection as needed: 

 

A. Obtain, record, and maintain the actual elevation (in relation to mean sea level) 

of the lowest floor (including basements) and all attendant utilities of all new or 

substantially improved structures where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is 

provided through the Flood Insurance Study (FIS), Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM), or obtained in accordance with section 5.1.7. 

B. Obtain and record the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the natural 

grade of the building site for a structure prior to the start of construction and the 

placement of any fill and ensure that the requirements of sections 5.2.4, 5.3.1(F), 

4.2.1(B) are adhered to. 

C. Upon placement of the lowest floor of a structure (including basement) but prior 

to further vertical construction, obtain documentation, prepared and sealed by a 

professional licensed surveyor or engineer, certifying the elevation (in relation to 

mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement). 

D. Where base flood elevation data are utilized, obtain As-built certification of the 

elevation (in relation to mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement) 

prepared and sealed by a professional licensed surveyor or engineer, prior to the 

final inspection.  

E. Maintain all Elevation Certificates (EC) submitted to the community;  

F. Obtain, record, and maintain the elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to 

which the structure and all attendant utilities were floodproofed for all new or 

substantially improved floodproofed structures where allowed under this 

ordinance and where Base Flood Elevation (BFE) data is provided through the 

FIS, FIRM, or obtained in accordance with section 5.1.7. 

G. Maintain all floodproofing certificates required under this ordinance; 

H. Record and maintain all variance actions, including justification for their 

issuance; 

I. Obtain and maintain all hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed as required 

under section 5.2.4. 

J. Record and maintain all Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage 

calculations and determinations as required under section 4.2.4. 

K. Maintain for public inspection all records pertaining to the provisions of this 

ordinance. 

 

REQUIREMENT TO NOTIFY OTHER ENTITIES AND SUBMIT NEW TECHNICAL DATA 

 

COMMUNITY BOUNDARY ALTERATIONS 

 

The Floodplain Administrator shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator in 

writing whenever the boundaries of the community have been modified by 

annexation or the community has otherwise assumed authority or no longer has 

authority to adopt and enforce floodplain management regulations for a particular 

area, to ensure that all Flood Hazard Boundary Maps (FHBM) and Flood Insurance 

Rate Maps (FIRM) accurately represent the community’s boundaries. Include within 



such notification a copy of a map of the community suitable for reproduction, clearly 

delineating the new corporate limits or new area for which the community has 

assumed or relinquished floodplain management regulatory authority. 

 

 

 

 

WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS 

 

Notify adjacent communities, the Department of Land Conservation and 

Development, and other appropriate state and federal agencies, prior to any alteration 

or relocation of a watercourse, and submit evidence of such notification to the 

Federal Insurance Administration. This notification shall be provided by the 

applicant to the Federal Insurance Administration as a Letter of Map Revision 

(LOMR) along with either: 

A.  A proposed maintenance plan to assure the flood carrying capacity within the 

altered or relocated portion of the watercourse is maintained; or  

B. Certification by a registered professional engineer that the project has been 

designed to retain its flood carrying capacity without periodic maintenance. 

 

The applicant shall be required to submit a Conditional Letter of Map Revision 

(CLOMR) when required under section 4.2.3.3. Ensure compliance with all 

applicable requirements in sections 4.2.3.3 and 5.1.1.  

 

REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT NEW TECHNICAL DATA 

 

A community’s base flood elevations may increase or decrease resulting from 

physical changes affecting flooding conditions. As soon as practicable, but not later 

than six months after the date such information becomes available, a community 

shall notify the Federal Insurance Administrator of the changes by submitting 

technical or scientific data in accordance with Title 44 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR), Section 65.3. The community may require the applicant to 

submit such data and review fees required for compliance with this section through 

the applicable FEMA Letter of Map Change (LOMC) process. 

 

The Floodplain Administrator shall require a Conditional Letter of Map Revision 

prior to the issuance of a floodplain development permit for: 

A. Proposed floodway encroachments that increase the base flood elevation; and 

B. Proposed development which increases the base flood elevation by more than 

one foot in areas where FEMA has provided base flood elevations but no 

floodway. 

 

An applicant shall notify FEMA within six (6) months of project completion when 

an applicant has obtained a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) from 

FEMA. This notification to FEMA shall be provided as a Letter of Map Revision 

(LOMR). 

 

  



 

SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE ASSESSMENTS AND 

DETERMINATIONS 

 

Conduct Substantial Improvement (SI) (as defined in section 2.0) reviews for all structural 

development proposal applications and maintain a record of SI calculations within permit files in 

accordance with section 4.2.2. Conduct Substantial Damage (SD) (as defined in section 2.0) 

assessments when structures are damaged due to a natural hazard event or other causes. Make 

SD determinations whenever structures within the special flood hazard area (as established in 

section 3.2) are damaged to the extent that the cost of restoring the structure to its before 

damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market value of the structure before 

the damage occurred. 

 

1.10 ESTABLISHMENT OF DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

 

FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIRED 

 

A development permit shall be obtained before construction or development begins within 

any area horizontally within the special flood hazard area established in section 3.2. The 

development permit shall be required for all structures, including manufactured dwellings, 

and for all other development, as defined in section 2.0, including fill and other development 

activities. 

 

APPLICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

 

Application for a development permit may be made on forms furnished by the Floodplain 

Administrator and may include, but not be limited to, plans in duplicate drawn to scale 

showing the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area in question; existing or 

proposed structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage facilities, and the location of the 

foregoing. Specifically the following information is required: 

 

A. In riverine flood zones, the proposed elevation (in relation to mean sea level), of the 

lowest floor (including basement) and all attendant utilities of all new and substantially 

improved structures; in accordance with the requirements of section 4.2.2. 

B. Proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential structure 

will be floodproofed. 

C. Certification by a registered professional engineer or architect licensed in the State of 

Oregon that the floodproofing methods proposed for any non-residential structure meet 

the floodproofing criteria for non-residential structures in section 5.2.3.3. 

D. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated. 

E. Base Flood Elevation data for subdivision proposals or other development when required 

per sections 4.2.1 and 5.1.6. 

F. Substantial improvement calculation for any improvement, addition, reconstruction, 

renovation, or rehabilitation of an existing structure.  

G. The amount and location of any fill or excavation activities proposed. 

 

1.11 VARIANCE PROCEDURE 



 

The issuance of a variance is for floodplain management purposes only. Flood insurance 

premium rates are determined by federal statute according to actuarial risk and will not be 

modified by the granting of a variance. 

 

CONDITIONS FOR VARIANCES 

 

A. Generally, variances may be issued for new construction and substantial 

improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half acre or less in size contiguous to 

and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed below the base flood 

level, in conformance with the provisions of sections 4.4.1 (C) and (E), and 4.4.2. 

As the lot size increases beyond one-half acre, the technical justification required 

for issuing a variance increases. 

B. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the 

minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 

C. Variances shall not be issued within any floodway if any increase in flood levels 

during the base flood discharge would result.  

D. Variances shall only be issued upon: 

1. A showing of good and sufficient cause; 

2. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 

exceptional hardship to the applicant; 

3. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased 

flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public 

expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or 

conflict with existing laws or ordinances. 

E. Variances may be issued by a community for new construction and substantial 

improvements and for other development necessary for the conduct of a 

functionally dependent use provided that the criteria of section 4.4.1 (B) – (D) are 

met, and the structure or other development is protected by methods that 

minimize flood damages during the base flood and create no additional threats to 

public safety. 

 

VARIANCE NOTIFICATION 

 

Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the issuance of a 

variance to construct a structure below the Base Flood Elevation will result in increased premium 

rates for flood insurance and that such construction below the base flood elevation increases risks 

to life and property. Such notification and a record of all variance actions, including justification 

for their issuance shall be maintained in accordance with section 4.2.2. 

 

 

PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION 

 

1.12 GENERAL STANDARDS  

 

In all special flood hazard areas, the following standards shall be adhered to: 

 



ALTERATION OF WATERCOURSES 

 

Require that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of said 

watercourse is maintained. Require that maintenance is provided within the altered or relocated 

portion of said watercourse to ensure that the flood carrying capacity is not diminished. Require 

compliance with sections 4.2.3.2 and 4.2.3.3. 

 

ANCHORING 

 

A. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to prevent 

flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure resulting from 

hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy. 

B. All manufactured dwellings shall be anchored per section 5.2.3.4. 

 

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND METHODS 

 

A. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with 

materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage. 

B. All new construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed using 

methods and practices that minimize flood damage. 

 

UTILITIES AND EQUIPMENT 

 

WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SEWER, AND ON-SITE WASTE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 

 

A. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to 

minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system. 

B. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to 

minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and 

discharge from the systems into flood waters. 

C. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid impairment to 

them or contamination from them during flooding consistent with the 

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality. 

 

ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, PLUMBING, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT  

 

Electrical, heating, ventilating, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and 

other equipment and service facilities shall be elevated at or above the base 

flood level an additional 24 inches or shall be designed and installed to 

prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components and to 

resist hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and stresses, including the effects 

of buoyancy, during conditions of flooding. In addition, electrical, heating, 

ventilating, air-conditioning, plumbing, duct systems, and other equipment 

and service facilities shall meet all the requirements of this section if replaced 

as part of a substantial improvement. 

 

TANKS 

 



A. Underground tanks shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral 

movement under conditions of the base flood. 

B. Above-ground tanks shall be installed at or above the base flood level and an 

additional tw0-feet of freeboard height or shall be anchored to prevent flotation, 

collapse, and lateral movement under conditions of the base flood. 

 

SUBDIVISION PROPOSALS & OTHER PROPOSED DEVELOPMENTS 

 

A. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments (including 

proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) greater than 50 lots 

or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, shall include within such proposals, Base 

Flood Elevation data.  

 

B. All new subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments (including 

proposals for manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) shall: 

1. Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage. 

2. Have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 

systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage. 

3. Have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 

 

USE OF OTHER BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA 

 

When Base Flood Elevation data has not been provided in accordance with section 3.2 the local 

floodplain administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any Base Flood Elevation 

data available from a federal, state, or other source, in order to administer section 5.0. All new 

subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments (including proposals for 

manufactured dwelling parks and subdivisions) must meet the requirements of section 5.1.6.  

 

Base Flood Elevations shall be determined for development proposals that are 5 acres or more in 

size or are 50 lots or more, whichever is lesser in any A zone that does not have an established 

base flood elevation. Development proposals located within a riverine unnumbered A Zone shall 

be reasonably safe from flooding; the test of reasonableness includes use of historical data, high 

water marks, FEMA provided Base Level Engineering data, and photographs of past flooding, 

etc… where available. See FIRM 410038. When no Base Flood Elevation data is available the 

elevation requirement is two feet above the highest adjacent grade. Failure to elevate at least two 

feet above grade in these zones may result in higher insurance rates. 

 

STRUCTURES LOCATED IN MULTIPLE OR PARTIAL FLOOD ZONES  

 

In coordination with the State of Oregon Specialty Codes: 

A. When a structure is located in multiple flood zones on the community’s Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) the provisions for the more restrictive flood zone 

shall apply. 

B. When a structure is partially located in a special flood hazard area, the entire 

structure shall meet the requirements for new construction and substantial 

improvements. 

 

 



1.13 SPECIFIC STANDARDS FOR RIVERINE (INCLUDING ALL NON-COASTAL) 

FLOOD ZONES 

 

These specific standards shall apply to all new construction and substantial improvements in 

addition to the General Standards contained in section 5.1 of this ordinance.  

 

FLOOD OPENINGS  

 

All new construction and substantial improvements with fully enclosed areas below the lowest 

floor (excluding basements) are subject to the following requirements. 

Enclosed areas below the Base Flood Elevation, including crawl spaces shall: 

A. Be designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on walls by 

allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters; 

B. Be used solely for parking, storage, or building access; 

C. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed 

all of the following minimum criteria: 

1. A minimum of two openings,  

2. The total net area of non-engineered openings shall be not less than one 

(1) square inch for each square foot of enclosed area, where the enclosed 

area is measured on the exterior of the enclosure walls,  

3. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade. 

4. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other 

coverings or devices provided that they shall allow the automatic flow of 

floodwater into and out of the enclosed areas and shall be accounted for in 

the determination of the net open area. 

5. All additional higher standards for flood openings in the State of Oregon 

Residential Specialty Codes Section R322.2.2 shall be complied with 

when applicable. 

 

GARAGES 

 

A. Attached garages may be constructed with the garage floor slab below the Base 

Flood Elevation (BFE) in riverine flood zones, if the following requirements are 

met: 

1. If located within a floodway the proposed garage must comply with the 

requirements of section 5.2.4. 

2. The floors are at or above grade on not less than one side; 

3. The garage is used solely for parking, building access, and/or storage; 

4. The garage is constructed with flood openings in compliance with section 

5.2.1 to equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for 

the automatic entry and exit of floodwater. 

5. The portions of the garage constructed below the BFE are constructed 

with materials resistant to flood damage; 

6. The garage is constructed in compliance with the standards in section 5.1; 

and 

7. The garage is constructed with electrical, and other service facilities 

located and installed so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating 



within the components during conditions of the base flood.  

B. Detached garages must be constructed in compliance with the standards for 

appurtenant structures in section 5.2.3.6 or non-residential structures in section 

5.2.3.3 depending on the square footage of the garage. 

 

FOR RIVERINE (NON-COASTAL) SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS WITH BASE 

FLOOD ELEVATIONS  

 

In addition to the general standards listed in section 5.1 the following specific standards shall 

apply in Riverine (non-coastal) special flood hazard areas with Base Flood Elevations (BFE): 

Zones A1-A30, AH, and AE.  

 

BEFORE REGULATORY FLOODWAY 

 

In areas where a regulatory floodway has not been designated, no new 

construction, substantial improvement, or other development (including fill) 

shall be permitted within Zones A1-30 and AE on the community’s Flood 

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), unless it is demonstrated that the cumulative 

effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing 

and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of 

the base flood more than one foot at any point within the community.  

 

RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION 

 

A. New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvement of any 

residential structure shall have the lowest floor, including basement, 

elevated at or above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) a minimum of two 

feet of freeboard.  

B. Enclosed areas below the lowest floor shall comply with the flood opening 

requirements in section 5.2.1. 

 

 

NON-RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION 

 

A. New construction, conversion to, and substantial improvement of any 

commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall: 

1. Have the lowest floor, including basement elevated at or above the 

Base Flood Elevation (BFE) by two feet freeboard; 

Or, together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities: 

 

    Additional Recommended Language Provided in Appendix B 

 

i. Be floodproofed so that below the base flood level the 

structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable 

to the passage of water;  

ii. Have structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic 

and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. 

iii. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or 



architect that the design and methods of construction are in 

accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting 

provisions of this section based on their development 

and/or review of the structural design, specifications and 

plans. Such certifications shall be provided to the 

Floodplain Administrator as set forth section 4.2.2. 

B. Non-residential structures that are elevated, not floodproofed, shall 

comply with the standards for enclosed areas below the lowest floor in 

section 5.2.1. 

C. Applicants floodproofing non-residential buildings shall be notified that 

flood insurance premiums will be based on rates that are one (1) foot 

below the floodproofed level (e.g. a building floodproofed to the base 

flood level will be rated as one (1) foot below. 

 

 

MANUFACTURED DWELLINGS 

 

A. Manufactured dwellings to be placed (new or replacement) or 

substantially improved that are supported on solid foundation walls shall 

be constructed with flood openings that comply with section 5.2.1; 

B. The bottom of the longitudinal chassis frame beam shall be at or above 

Base Flood Elevation; 

C. Manufactured dwellings to be placed (new or replacement) or 

substantially improved shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, 

and lateral movement during the base flood. Anchoring methods may 

include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 

anchors (Reference FEMA’s “Manufactured Home Installation in Flood 

Hazard Areas” guidebook for additional techniques), and; 

D. Electrical crossover connections shall be a minimum of twelve (12) inches 

above Base Flood Elevation (BFE). 

 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLES 

 

Recreational vehicles placed on sites are required to: 

A. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, and 

B. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or jacking 

system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and 

security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or 

C. Meet the requirements of section 5.2.3.4, including the anchoring and 

elevation requirements for manufactured dwellings. 

 

APPURTENANT (ACCESSORY) STRUCTURES  

 

Relief from elevation or floodproofing requirements for residential and non-

residential structures in Riverine (Non-Coastal) flood zones may be granted 

for appurtenant structures that meet the following requirements: 

A. Appurtenant structures located partially or entirely within the floodway 

must comply with requirements for development within a floodway found 



in section 5.2.4. 

B. Appurtenant structures must only be used for parking, access, and/or 

storage and shall not be used for human habitation;  

C. In compliance with State of Oregon Specialty Codes, appurtenant 

structures on properties that are zoned residential are limited to one-story 

structures less than 200 square feet, or 400 square feet if the property is 

greater than two (2) acres in area and the proposed appurtenant structure 

will be located a minimum of 20 feet from all property lines. Appurtenant 

structures on properties that are zoned as non-residential are limited in size 

to 120 square feet.  

D. The portions of the appurtenant structure located below the Base Flood 

Elevation must be built using flood resistant materials; 

E. The appurtenant structure must be adequately anchored to prevent 

flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the structure resulting from 

hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, 

during conditions of the base flood. 

F. The appurtenant structure must be designed and constructed to equalize 

hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls and comply with the 

requirements for flood openings in section 5.2.1; 

G. Appurtenant structures shall be located and constructed to have low 

damage potential; 

H. Appurtenant structures shall not be used to store toxic material, oil, or 

gasoline, or any priority persistent pollutant identified by the Oregon 

Department of Environmental Quality unless confined in a tank installed 

incompliance with section 5.1.5. 

I. Appurtenant structures shall be constructed with electrical, mechanical, 

and other service facilities located and installed so as to prevent water 

from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of 

the base flood.  

 

 

FLOODWAYS 

 

Located within the special flood hazard areas established in section 3.2 are areas designated as 

floodways. Since the floodway is an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of the 

floodwaters which carry debris, potential projectiles, and erosion potential, the following 

provisions apply: 

A. Prohibit encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial 

improvements, and other development within the adopted regulatory floodway 

unless: 

1. Certification by a registered professional civil engineer is provided 

demonstrating through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in 

accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed 

encroachment shall not result in any increase in flood levels within the 

community during the occurrence of the base flood discharge;  

Or, 

2. A community may permit encroachments within the adopted regulatory 

floodway that would result in an increase in base flood elevations, 



provided that a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) is applied 

for and approved by the Federal Insurance Administrator, and the 

requirements for such revision as established under Volume 44 of the 

Code of Federal Regulations, section 65.12 are fulfilled.  

 

B. If the requirements of section 5.2.4 (A) are satisfied, all new construction, 

substantial improvements, and other development shall comply with all other 

applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of section 5.0.  

1. hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. If this method is used, 

compliance shall be certified by a registered professional engineer or 

architect as stated in section 5.2.3.3(A)(4).  

B. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within AO Zones on the community’s Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) shall either: 

1. Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, and 

2. Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, on its wheels or jacking 

system, is attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and 

security devices, and has no permanently attached additions; or  

3. Meet the elevation requirements of section 5.2.5.2(A), and the anchoring 

and other requirements for manufactured dwellings of section 5.2.3.4. 

C. In AO zones, new and substantially improved appurtenant structures must comply 

with the standards in section 5.2.3.6. 

D. In AO zones, enclosed areas beneath elevated structures shall comply with the 

requirements in section 5.2.1.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Appendix A –Definitions 

 

Building:  See "Structure." 

 

Critical facility: Means a facility for which even a slight chance of flooding might be too great. 

Critical facilities include, but are not limited to schools, nursing homes, hospitals, police, fire and 

emergency response installations, installations which produce, use, or store hazardous materials 

or hazardous waste. 

 

Elevated building: Means for insurance purposes, a non-basement building which has its lowest 

elevated floor raised above ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, post, piers, pilings, or 

columns. 

 

Floodplain or flood prone area:  Any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from 

any source.  See "Flood or flooding." 

 

Floodplain administrator:  The community official designated by title to administer and 

enforce the floodplain management regulations. 

 

Floodplain management:  The operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive 

measures for reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans, 

flood control works, and floodplain management regulations. 

 

Floodplain management regulations:  Zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building 

codes, health regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as floodplain ordinance, grading 

ordinance and erosion control ordinance) and other application of police power.  The term 

describes such state or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide standards for 

the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction. 

 

Hazardous material: The Oregon Department of Environmental Quality defines hazardous 

materials to include any of the following: 

(a) Hazardous waste as defined in ORS 466.005; 

(b) Radioactive waste as defined in ORS 469.300, radioactive material identified by the 

Energy Facility Siting Council under ORS 469.605 and radioactive substances defined in 

ORS 453.005 

(c) Communicable disease agents as regulated by the Health Division under ORS Chapter 

431 and 433.010 to 433.045 and 433.106 to 433.990; 

(d) Hazardous substances designated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency 

(EPA) under section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, P.L. 92-500, as 

amended; 

(e) Substances listed by the United States EPA in section 40 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 302 – Table 302.4 (list of Hazardous Substances and Reportable 

Quantities) and amendments; 

(f) Material regulated as a Chemical Agent under ORS 465.550; 

(g) Material used as a weapon of mass destruction, or biological weapon;  

(h) Pesticide residue; 

(i) Dry cleaning solvent as defined by ORS 465.200(9). 



 

Letter of Map Change (LOMC): Means an official FEMA determination, by letter, to amend 

or revise effective Flood Insurance Rate Maps and Flood Insurance Studies. The following are 

categories of LOMCs: 

 

(a) Conditional Letter of Map Amendment (CLOMA): A CLOMA is FEMA’s comment 

on a proposed structure or group of structures that would, upon construction, be located 

on existing natural ground above the base (1-percent-cannual-chane) flood elevation on a 

portion of a legally defined parcel of land that is partially inundated by the base flood. 

 

(b) Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR): A CLOMR is FEMA’s comment on a 

proposed project that would, upon construction, affect the hydrologic or hydraulic 

characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing 

regulatory floodway, the effective base flood elevations, or the special flood hazard area. 

 

(c) Conditional Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (CLOMR-F): A CLOMR-F is 

FEMA’s comment on a proposed project that would, upon construction, result in a 

modification of the special flood hazard area through the placement of fill outside the 

existing regulatory floodway.  

 

(d) Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An official amendment, by letter, to the Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on technical data showing that an existing structure, 

parcel of land or portion of a parcel of land that is naturally high ground, (i.e., has not 

been elevated by fill) above the base flood, that was inadvertently included in the special 

flood hazard area. 

 

(e) Letter of Map Revision (LOMR): A LOMR is FEMA’s modification to an effective 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), or Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (FBFM), or 

both. LOMRs are generally based on the implementation of physical measures that affect 

the hydrologic or hydraulic characteristics of a flooding source and thus result in the 

modification of the existing regulatory floodway, the effective base flood elevations, or 

the SFHA. The LMOR officially revises the FIRM or FBFM, and sometimes the Flood 

Insurance Study (FIS) report, and, when appropriate, includes a description of the 

modifications. The LOMR is generally accompanied by an annotated copy of the affected 

portions of the FIRM, FBFM, or FIS report. 

 

(f) Letter of Map Revision based on Fill (LOMR-F): A LOMR-F is FEMA’s modification 

of the special flood hazard area shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) based 

on the placement of fill outside the existing regulatory floodway.  

 

(g) PMR: A PMR is FEMA’s physical revision and republication of an effective Flood 

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or Flood Insurance Study (FIS) report. PMRs are generally 

based on physical measures that affect the hydrologic or hydraulic characteristics of a 

flooding source and thus result in the modification of the existing regulatory floodway, 

the effective baes flood elevations, or the special flood hazard area. 

 

Regulatory floodway:  See “Floodway.” 

 



Sheet flow area:  See "Area of shallow flooding." 

 

Water dependent:  Means a structure for commerce or industry which cannot exist in any other 

location and is dependent on the water by reason of intrinsic nature of its operations. 

 

Water surface elevation: The height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum 

(NGVD) of 1929, or other datum, of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the 

floodplains of coastal or riverine areas; to include Columbia River Datum (CRD).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2022.  

 

                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

     

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1083 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER, OREGON REGARDING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CONTIGUOUS PROPERTIES AND ANNEXATION OF PROPERTIES THAT ARE A 

DANGER TO PUBLIC HEALTH 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 1983, the City of Rainier’s land use regulations were officially 

acknowledged by the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier Municipal Code, Zoning Code Title 18, Chapter 18.10.070: and 

Ordinance 974 provides the standards, procedures, and factors by which the City evaluates 

annexation proposals; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier shall provide clear and in-depth regulations in relation to the 

annexation application and approval process to ensure that annexations are timely, orderly and 

efficient; and 

WHEREAS, Rainier City Council held a meeting on August 2, 2021 and the Planning 

Commission on September 22, 2021 to discuss code amendments and annexation regulations; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 20, 2021 and found that 

the proposed annexation process and amendments pursuant to ORS 197.175: Cities’ and counties’ 

planning responsibilities; rules on incorporations; compliant with goals. 

WHEREAS, the Rainier City Council recognizes that the City has historically processed 

annexations without applications having to be voted on; and 

WHEREAS, property owners interested in annexation may initiate their own annexation process 

if the properties are contiguous to existing City limits through the Expedited Annexation process, 

which does not require a public hearing, and 

WHEREAS, the provision of future city services shall be limited to properties within the City 

limits, and 

WHEREAS, city services shall be provided to only structures within the city limits and will 

actively pursue the annexation of all properties currently served by city services outside of the city, 

and 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier shall be able to initiate annexations; and 

WHEREAS, annexations shall be completed without a citywide election; and 

WHEREAS, properties that are within the Urban Growth Boundary and a danger to public health 

due to inadequate water or septic systems shall be annexed into the City to protect public health or 

for a reason that the City deems necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Rainier City Council finds that annexation of developed property is in the best 

interest of the City and of the contiguous territory; now therefore, 



BE IT RESOLVED, that the Rainier City Council does hereby allow annexation of properties 

within the Urban Growth Boundary into city limits by property owner initiation and City initiated 

annexation of properties that are a danger to public health or for a reason that the City deems 

necessary. 

Adopted by the Rainier City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof, on the ____ day of 

____________, 202_ and effective this date. 

 

City of Rainier, Oregon 

_______________________________ 

Jerry Cole, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________ 

City Recorder 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Division III 

Chapter 18. 

ANNEXATIONS 

 

Sections 

18.00.00 Purpose  

18.00.00 State and regional regulations regarding annexations 

18.00.00 Definitions 

18.00.00 General Procedures 

18.00.00 Initiation Procedures 

18.00.00 Annexation Procedures 

18.00.00 Submittal Requirements 

18.00.00 Approval Criteria 

 

18.00.00 Purpose 

The purpose of this section is to establish the necessary procedures and criteria under Oregon 

Revised Statutes Chapter 222 and all related chapters. The provisions of this section are hereby 

adopted to achieve orderly and efficient annexation of lands into the City of Rainier city limits.  

A. The procedures and standards set forth in this section are required for review and decision 

of proposed annexations and will ensure that: 

a. A system for measuring the physical, environmental, fiscal and related social 

effects of proposed annexations is established; 

b. The City of Rainier will be able to initiate annexations; 

c.  The City of Rainier will not be required to hold citywide elections for 

annexations; 

d. The City of Rainier will not be held responsible for providing services to any 

structures outside of city limits; and 

e. Ensure adequate time for review by staff. 

18.00.00 State and regional regulations regarding annexations. 

The regulations and requirements of Oregon Revised Statue Chapter 222 are concurrent 

obligations for annexation and are not affected by the provisions of this chapter. 

18.00.00 Definitions 



The following definitions shall be used in this chapter: 

“Annexation” means boundary change due to an annexation or withdrawal of territory to from a 

city or district, or from a city/county to a city; and the extra-territorial extension of water or 

sewer service by a city or district.  

“City” means to the City of Rainier 

“Commission” means the City of Rainier Planning Commission  

“Contiguous” means sharing a common border or touching 

“Council” means the City of Rainier City Council 

18.00.00 General Procedures 

The general procedures stated in this section shall apply to all annexation proposals. 

A. Annexation proposals shall be considered by the Council pursuant to the Type IV 

legislative process, as stated in Chapter 18.160, except that the Commission shall conduct 

no public hearing or recommendation. The Council decision shall be the “Final Decision” 

for purposes of compliance with 18.160.050. 

 

B. Notice  

a. The City Planning Official shall notify in writing the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) of legislative amendments at least 45 

days before the first public hearing at which public testimony or new evidence 

will be received. The notice shall include a DLCD Certificate of Mailing.  

 

b.  Written notice may also be conducted electronically through Plan Amendments 

(PAPA) online through DLCD. 

 
c. At least 20 days, but not more than 40 days, before the date of the first hearing on 

an ordinance, a notice shall be prepared in conformance with ORS 227.175 and 

mailed to: 

 

i. Each owner whose property would be directly affected by the proposal; 

 

ii. Any affected governmental agency; 

 

iii. Any person who requests notice in writing. 

 

d. At least 10 days before the scheduled City Council public hearing date, public 

notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city. 

 

e. For each mailing and publication of notice, the City Planning Official shall keep 

an affidavit of mailing/publication in the record. 



C. A staff report shall be issued prior to Final Decision by the Council. 

 

D. The decision made by Council shall be in writing 

18.00.00 Initiation Procedures 

Initiation Procedures shall apply to annexation proposals. 

A. An annexation proposal may be initiated by the City of Rainier through the Council, on 

its own motion, as set forth in this section. The Council may terminate proceedings under 

this section at any time. 

 

B. An annexation proposal may be initiated pursuant to the state law Health Hazard 

Abatement annexation process. 

 

C. An annexation proposal may be initiated pursuant to the state law Island annexation 

process. 

 

D. An annexation proposal may be initiated by submission of city forms of property 

owner(s) of the area to be annexed as set forth in this section. 

 

a.  When all of the owners of land in the territory to be annexed and not less than 

50% of the electors, if any, residing in the territory to be annexed, consent in 

writing to the annexation of their land in the territory and file a statement of their 

consent with the City. 

 

b. When a majority of the electors registered in the territory proposed to be annexed 

consent in writing to the annexation and the owners of more than half of the land 

in the territory consent in writing to the annexation of their land in the territory 

and file a statement of their consent with the City. 

 

c. A pre-application conference is strongly encouraged prior to the submittal of an 

annexation partition. 

18.00.00 Annexation Procedures 

A. A proposal shall be considered by the City Council without a public hearing and may be 

placed on the Council consent agenda. The Council decision on the proposal shall be 

considered the “Final Decision.” 

 

B. The petition requirements for expedited applications must be accompanied by the written 

consent of 100% of the property owners and at least 50% of the electors, if any, within 

the affected territory. 

 



C. Notice of petition for an expedited process must be provided a minimum of 20 days prior 

to the final decision and shall follow the notification procedures as required for Type IV 

Comprehensive Plan amendments. 

 

D. A brief staff report shall be issued at least seven days prior to the decision date. 

 

E. An expedited process cannot be used if a necessary party gives written notice to contest 

the decision. 

18.00.00 Submittal Requirements 

An applicant for annexation shall submit six copies of the application materials. The City may 

require additional copies if deemed necessary. The application materials shall include: 

A. A complete and signed annexation application packet of forms provided to the City. 

 

B. A petition, on City forms, completed by property owners and/or electors residing in the 

affected territory that meets the minimum petition requirements set forth by the City. 

 

C.  A metes and bounds legal description of the territory to be annexed, meeting the relevant 

requirements of ORS 308.225. A lot and block description may be substituted if the area 

is platted. If the legal description contains any deed or book and page references, legible 

copies of these shall be submitted with the legal description. 

 

D. A map showing the affected territory, any public streets to be annexed and parcels within 

300 feet of the affected territory including any public streets. The affected territory shall 

be identified on the map. The map shall be submitted on an 11 x 17-inch map and shall 

show scale and a north arrow. 

 

E. A narrative which addresses the approval criteria. 

 

F. A request for an expedited procedure if desired by the applicant. 

 

G. The applicant is responsible for all fees related to the annexation process. 

18.00.00 Approval Criteria 

The City Council shall approve or deny an annexation proposal based on findings and 

conclusions addressing the following criteria: 

A. Findings conducted by the City Planning Official or other City staff.  

 

B. The affected territory must be located within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary. 

 

C. The affected territory is contiguous to the existing city limits. 

 



D. The city will attempt to apply zoning which is most like the county zone. Try to avoid 

nonconforming uses. 

 

E. A City of Rainier Covenant of Waiver of Rights and Remedies City form has been 

executed by all owners of the property to be annexed and all owners of any interest in the 

property to be annexed regarding waiver of any statutory or constitutional regulatory 

provisions, including but not limited to, Ballot Measure 37 (effective December 2, 2004) 

as amended by Ballot Measure 49. This section only applies to those property owners 

who have consented in writing to annexation. 

 

F. That either: 

a. That funding mechanisms required to construct transportation, wastewater, water, 

stormwater and park facilities consistent with adopted Public Facility or Utility 

Master Plans, Parks and/or Transportation System Plans are in place or; 

 

b. In lieu, a Public Facilities, Parks, and Transportation Agreement is executed that 

funding will be in place prior to or concurrent with a development permit 

application. 

 

G. That the public interest would be furthered by the annexation. 

18.00.00 Fiscal Impact Statement 

The City shall prepare a fiscal impact statement, which shall estimate the fiscal impact that the 

proposed annexation would have on the City’s general fund. The fiscal impact information shall 

be utilized in the determination of whether the public interest would be furthered by the approval 

of the annexation. 

18.00.00 Appeals 

The City Council decision may be appealed according to state law. 

 



 

 

 ORDINANCE NO.  1084 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 REPEALING ORDINANCE 1055 

 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2010, the City of Rainier adopted Ordinance No. 1055 Adopting 

Amendments to the City of Rainier Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1055 was codified as Chapter 18.120 of the Rainier Municipal Code, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, city staff has consulted with officials from the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) about updating the City’s flood plain regulations, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Rainier Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend council passage 

of Ordinance 1082 to update the City’s flood plain regulations, and 

 

WHEREAS, upon council’s adoption of Ordinance 1082, it will be the most recent update to the 

City’s flood plain regulations, and  

 

WHEREAS, upon the adoption of Ordinance 1082, Ordinance 1055 will be outdated, and 

 

WHEREAS, based on the input from DLCD, city staff has decided that Ordinance 1055 should 

be repealed, as it is outdated and no longer serving its intended purpose; 

 

WHEREAS, it appears to the City of Rainier council that the public interest will best be served 

by repealing this ordinance. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Rainier ordains as follows: Ordinance No. 1055, adopted on 

November 17, 2010, is hereby repealed. 

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2022.  

 

                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

     

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  1085 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER 

TO AMEND THE RAINIER ZONING CODE TEXT: CHAPTER 18.50.050, SECTIONS 

C 2(a) AND D 2(a)--QUALITY OF MATERIALS 

 

WHEREAS, city staff received an inquiry as to the allowable building materials in the Waterfront 

Mixed Use Zone in Rainier, and 

 

WHEREAS, building materials have evolved since the time that the existing code was adopted, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, it was determined by city staff that amending the code text to update the changes in 

building material quality would be in the City’s best interest, and   

 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission held a duly notified meeting on January 19, 2022 at 

6 p.m. in the Rainier City Hall, and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier forwarded Notice of Proposed Changes to the Oregon State 

Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) on November 5, 2021, in 

compliance with the 35-day notice requirement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier Planning Commission held a duly notified meeting on January 

19, 2022 and concluded to recommend approval of the text amendment to the Rainier City Council; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Rainier City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on May 2, 2022 and 

found that after due consideration of all the evidence in the record, that they agreed with the 

recommendation forwarded by the Rainier Planning Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Rainier City Council has considered findings of compliance criteria and law 

applicable to the proposal;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Rainier ordains as follows:  

 

1. The above recitations are true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference. 

2. The City of Rainier Zoning Code Text is amended for Chapter 18.50.050, Sections C 2 (a) and 

D 2 (a)—Quality of Materials. 

3. In support of the above amendments to the Zoning Code Text, the Rainier City Council hereby 

adopts the Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law in the City Staff Report, together with its 

attached addendums and correspondences, dated ---- 

4. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be thirty (30) dates after approval, in accordance with 

the City Charter and other applicable laws.  

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2022.  

 



                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

     

 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

RESOLUTIONS RELATED TO ADOPTION   ) 

OF THE 2022-23 BUDGET  )      RESOLUTION NO 22-06-01 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Budget Committee on May 16, 2022 approved a City Budget, 

 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2022-23 BUDGET 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of 

Rainier does hereby adopt the budget for fiscal year 2022-23 in the sum of $14,335,974 now on 

file at the City Hall. 

 

RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 

 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the amounts for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2022 are 

hereby appropriated as follows: 
 

 

GENERAL FUND 

General Government $91,143 

City Building Maintenance    $17,500 

Land Use and Development $30,058 

Library $73,960 

Attorney $9,600 

Finance & Administration $49,731 

Municipal Court $62,585 

Public Properties $179,432 

Police Department      $926,361 

Amounts not allocated to a Program/Org. Unit: 

       Transfers Total $382,553 

       Operating Contingency  $60,000 

 TOTAL GENERAL FUND $1,882,914 

 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Debt Service $940,629 

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND $940,629 

 

 

SEWER FUND 

Sewer Operations                                                             $774,296 

Amounts not allocated to a Program/Org. Unit: 

     Transfers $955,740 

     Contingencies $48,000        

TOTAL SEWER FUND $1,778,036 



 

 

WATER FUND 

Water Operations $706,155 

Amounts not allocated to a Program/Org. Unit: 

     Transfers $462,336 

     Contingencies       $9,000 

TOTAL WATER FUND $1,177,491 

 

 

TIMBER FUND 

Timber Operations $104,300 

Amounts not allocated to a Program/Org. Unit: 

     Contingencies    $50,000 

 TOTAL TIMBER FUND                                                       $154,300 

 

 

STREET FUND 

Street Operations $201,726 

Amounts not allocated to a Program/Org. Unit: 

     Transfers $224,829 

     Contingencies $27,000 

 TOTAL STREET FUND $453,555 

 

 

SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 

Special Projects   $759,000 

 TOTAL SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND $759,000 

 

 

SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

Capital Outlay $1,217,584 

TOTAL SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND $1,217,584 

 

 

WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

Capital Outlay              $928,071 

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND       $928,071 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

Capital Outlay $880,696 

TOTAL TRANS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND $880,696 

 

 

LIBRARY TRUST FUND 

Materials and Services        $7,500 

 TOTAL LIBRARY TRUST FUND $7,500    



 
 

 

RESOLUTION IMPOSING THE TAX 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that the following ad valorem property taxes are hereby imposed upon the 

assessed value of all taxable property within the district for tax year 2022-2023: 

 

(1) At the rate of $ 5.2045 per $1000 of assessed value for permanent rate tax; and 

 

(2) In the amount of $501,047 for debt service on general obligation bonds. 

 

 

RESOLUTION CATEGORIZING THE TAX 

 

Subject to the General Government Limitation 

 Permanent Rate Tax.......... $ 5.2045/$1,000 

 

Excluded from Limitation 

 General Obligation Bond Debt Service.......... $ 501,047 

 
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rainier, Oregon this day of June 6, 

2022. 

 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________            _____________________________  

Jerry Cole     W. Scott Jorgensen 

Mayor for the City of Rainier   City Administrator 

 



BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF RAINIER 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION TO RECEIVE STATE ) 

REVENUE SHARING MONEY FOR ) RESOLUTION NO 22-06-02 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023   ) 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Rainier includes State Revenue Sharing Funds as a vital part of 

its budget; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Common Council of the City of Rainier, 

Oregon, pursuant to ORS 221.770, hereby elects to receive State revenues for fiscal year 

2022-2023.  Also pursuant to ORS 221.770 having gone through the budget hearing 

process a public hearing was held on June 6, 2022. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rainier, Oregon this 6th 

day of June, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________________  

Jerry Cole 

Mayor for the City of Rainier   

 

 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

______________________________________________  

W. Scott Jorgensen 

City Administrator 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO.  1087 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF RAINIER ESTABLISHING RULES AND 

REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL VEHICLES 

 

Section 1. Purpose. 

The purpose of this ordinance is to limit the use of camper vehicles and other nonpermanent 

structures for permanent human habitation because it is the determination of the city council that 

their use in the city for permanent habitation is deleterious to the health, safety and welfare not 

only of the persons residing therein, but, additionally, of the public at large. Portable heating 

devices, nonstandard electrical connections, a lack of approved sanitary facilities including, but 

not limited to, bathrooms with toilets, sinks or showers or bathtubs and standard kitchen 

facilities, among other facilities associated with safe places or permanent human habitation, all 

lend themselves to unhealthful, unsanitary and hazardous living conditions, if utilized for 

extended periods of time, occasioned in part because camper vehicles and other nonpermanent 

structures are not intended for use as places of permanent human habitation and do not 

adequately provide for the needs associated with human habitation. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this ordinance shall make allowances for safe, comfortable and 

sanitary use of camper vehicles and other nonpermanent structures for short-term, temporary use 

for human habitation purposes.  

 

Section 2. Bus, camper, motor home recreational vehicle and boat restrictions. 

A. No person shall at any time park or leave standing a camper, house trailer, motor bus, motor 

truck, motor home, boat trailer, vehicle with camper or recreational vehicle, whether attended or 

unattended, on any public highway, public street or other public way within the city limits, for a 

period greater than thirty (30) minutes, between the hours of 12:01 a.m. and 6 a.m.  

 

B. A recreational vehicle, house trailer or motor home may be parked on a public street longer 

than the period allowed in Section 2 (A) if; 

 

  1. It is owned by the resident or guest of the resident of the property in front of which it  

                 is parked, and 

 

  2. It is parked on the public street no longer than fourteen (14) days in any calendar year,  

                and 

 

  3. Such vehicle is parked in a manner, which does not interfere with traffic or create a  

                 hazard by obstructing the view of drivers. 

 

Section 3. Occupying recreational vehicles. 

It is unlawful for any recreational vehicle to be occupied, lived in or otherwise used as a 

residence within the city, unless such use is specifically approved by the city, except a private, 

residentially zoned property is permitted to use a recreational vehicle to house guests no more 

than a total of fourteen (14) days in a calendar year.  



 

 A. Recreational vehicles shall be mobile and fully operable, on inflated wheels, and  

      licensed with the Department of Motor Vehicles at all times. 

  

 B. Recreational vehicles may be brought to a lot by guests and for no more than a total  

                of fourteen (14) days in a calendar year.  

  

 C. Porches and awnings and related structural projections may not be constructed  

                 adjacent or attached to a recreational vehicle.  

 

 D. Temporary siting and occupancy may be allowed at the discretion of city staff. Any  

                 temporary use must comply with the provisions of section 18.153 of the Rainier  

                 Municipal Code with lawful connection to city water and sewer services in a manner  

                approved by the public works director. A denial of a temporary use by staff may be  

                appealed to the city council.  

 

Section 4. Penalties. 

A. Any person adjudged to have violation any of the provisions, except in cases where a different 

punishment is prescribed by any ordinance of the city, shall pay a penalty of not less than $250 

per violation, unless superseded by state law. 

 

B. Each and every day during any portion of which any violation of any provision of the 

ordinance is committed, continued or permitted by any person shall constitute a separate 

violation. 

 

C.  The penalty or fine for a third or any subsequent separate judgment of violation of the same 

offense by the same person shall be no less than $1,000, unless superseded by state law.  

 

 

 

 

Passed by the City of Rainier council and approved by the mayor on the ____ date of _____, 2022.  

 

                                                                                   Attested: 

 

BY: _________________________________         BY:_________________________________ 

       Jerry Cole, Mayor                                            Scott Jorgensen, City Administrator 

     

 

 

 



Fox Creek Project Grant Timelines and Processes 

 

Point of Contact: Kate Trudeau, Regional Mitigation and Recovery Coordinator, Oregon Office 

of Emergency Management (OEM) 

OEM acts as a pass-through entity for the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

 

Notice of Funding—end of August, September 

Briefing—scoring, eligibility, Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA) grant 

 

Letter of Intent: 

-proposal 

-project 

-needs 

 

The feasibility study will inform this, and should be done right around the time that the grant 

funding opens up 

 

Pre-Application—November or December 

 

OEM Selections Projects 

Application 

Grant Award 

 

Outstanding Items: 

-Timeline for grant award 

-Is it a reimbursement grant?  

 

 



CITY OF RAINIER
CASH ON HAND/GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION REPORT
CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT POOL ACCOUNT
3/1/2022-3/28/2022

ACCOUNT REGISTER SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance 386,112.46
PERS Deposits - 

New Ending Balance 386,112.46 0.00 0.00 386,112.46

BANK STATEMENT SUMMARY CKS/DEBITS DEP/CREDITS
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-1 34,336.19
Ending Balance SHCU 760072-2 402,821.54
Deposits not Shown on Statement 12,226.35
Outstanding Cks and Other Debits 42,867.35
PERS Outstanding 20,404.27
PERS Adjustment
Ending Balance 437,157.73 63,271.62 12,226.35 386,112.46 0.00

LGIP STATEMENT SUMMARY
Beginning Balance 7,409,515.76
Deposits 32,366.77
Withdrawals 
Interest 3,166.86
S/C 0.10
Ending Balance 7,409,515.76 0.10 35,533.63 7,445,049.29

TOTAL CASH 7,831,161.75

GENERAL LEDGER RECONCILIATION
3/1/2022-3/28/2022

02/01/22 02/28/22
Beginning Total Total Ending

Fund Balance Revenue Expense Liabilities Balance
10 General 2,612,810.85 226,549.84 190,020.80 2,649,339.89
20 Debt 364,096.00 0.00 0.00 364,096.00
30 Sewer 423,304.83 78,355.82 48,100.33 453,560.32
40 Water 273,984.95 74,086.22 50,836.59 297,234.58
50 Timber 1,726,534.45 0.00 5,773.19 1,720,761.26
60 Street 269,784.88 11,804.50 55,150.55 226,438.83
65 0.00 0.00
70 0.00 0.00
81 Special Projects 341,410.40 0.00 21,137.11 320,273.29
83 Sewer Capital 971,657.76 0.00 0.00 971,657.76
84 Water Capital 386,929.28 5,580.23 11,160.46 381,349.05
85 Transportation Capital 363,181.73 0.00 6,358.97 356,822.76
90 Library Trust 90,193.53 52.11 617.63 89,628.01

General Ledger Total 7,823,888.66 7,831,161.75 0.00

Completed by:______ Date:_______ Approved by: ______ Date:________ 



City of Rainier
2021/2022 Budget Year
3/31/2022 Income/Expense
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,480,338 94.69%
Expenditures 1,778,290 961,447 54.07%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 1,340,888 91.28%
Expenditures 1,732,561 1,461,513 84.36%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 729,234 76.20%
Expenditures 1,235,198 989,442 80.10%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Timber Fund YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 514,494 285.83%
Expenditures 520,512 50,591 9.72%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 231,224 93.09%
Expenditures 333,065 266,290 79.95%

*Excludes Beginning Balance



City of Rainier
2020/2021 Budget Year
3/31/2022
Budget Compared to Actual-Major Funds
Budget Variance by Appropriation

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
General Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,563,290 1,480,338 94.69%
Expenditures

10 General Government 388,638 162,316 41.77%
20 City Building Maintenance 13,500 4,906 36.34%
30 Land Use & Development 27,425 16,415 59.85%
50 Library 68,800 7,129 10.36%
60 Attorney 7,500 7,196 95.95%
70 Finance & Administration 56,117 34,388 61.28%
80 Municipal Court 61,084 41,601 68.10%
90 Public Properties 189,483 117,662 62.10%

100 Police Department 965,743 569,834 59.00%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Sewer Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 1,468,913 1,340,888 91.28%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 454,307 318,162 70.03%
Material & Services 278,000 214,118 77.02%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 956,944 929,233 97.10%
Contingencies 43,310 0 0.00%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Water Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 957,000 729,234 76.20%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 488,346 344,251 70.49%
Material & Services 192,320 132,810 69.06%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Transfers 512,382 512,381 100.00%
Contingencies 42,150 0 0.00%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Timber Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 180,000 514,494 285.83%
Expenditures
Material & Services 80,400 44,998 55.97%
Capital Outlay 65,000 5,593 8.60%
Contingencies 300,000 0 0.00%
Propery Purchase Reserve 75,112 0 0.00%

2021/2022 3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Street Fund  Budget YTD Actual YTD % Variance
*Revenue 248,382 231,224 93.09%
Expenditures
Personnel Services 66,643 52,590 78.91%
Material & Services 118,150 67,571 57.19%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0.00%
Contingencies 2,144 0 0.00%
Transfers 146,128 146,128 100.00%

*Excludes Beginning Balance 









City Administrator Report 

June 4, 2022 Rainier Council Meeting 

 

Mayor Cole and Members of the Council, 

 

I conducted the first round of contract negotiations with Teamsters Local 58 on the morning of April 27. 

The following day, I met with Rainier School District Superintendent Joseph Hattrick about the library 

IGA and did a facility walkthrough with More Power Technology Group.  

 

On April 28, I finalized the arrangements for the May 29 bridge dedication event. I also spoke with a 

representative from U.S. Senator Jeff Merkley’s office about upcoming potential federal grant 

opportunities for the Veterans Way project. I followed up with that by attending a webinar May 2 about 

the available grant programs. 

 

Along with Police Chief Gregg Griffith and Police Clerk Susan Sullivan, I attended the mayor’s prayer 

breakfast the morning of May 5. Mayor Cole and I went to meet the new operations manager at Carper 

One right afterward. I spent the rest of the day finalizing the budget. It was released May 6, three days 

ahead of schedule.  

 

I went and introduced myself to the owners of a new business, Marvelous Mosaic, on May 11. The 

following day, I represented the city’s interests on the Col-Pac board and met with the county emergency 

manager, representatives of the RDIC and the Oregon Office of Emergency Management. Sue and I met 

with representatives of the Lower Columbia Estuary Partnership about the mitigation project planned for 

C Street. Also, Mayor Cole and I did a photo op with the volunteers at the Rainier Oregon Historical 

Museum and attended the Chamber of Commerce meeting that featured Sheriff Brian Pixley and District 

Attorney Jeff Auxier.  

 

On May 13, Sue and I did a virtual meeting with a company that provides security cameras.  

 

I conducted election duties on the evening of May 17. The following day, Sue and I met with 

representatives from Business Oregon about funding for the water master plan update.  

 

I’m pleased to report that negotiations with Teamsters Local 58 were concluded successfully on May 19. 

Mayor Cole and I met with Hattrick that afternoon.  

 

On May 25, I released an announcement about the council positions that will be up for the November 

general election and submitted a letter of support for a project that Columbia Economic Team is hoping to 

bring to Rainier. I also met with Kate Trudeau, the regional mitigation and recovery coordinator from the 

Oregon Office of Emergency Management, about potential grant funding opportunities for the Fox Creek 

mitigation project.  

 

Lastly, I happily served as emcee for the Riverfront Bridge Dedication event on May 29.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

W. Scott Jorgensen, Executive MPA 

City Administrator 






	5 Budget Committee 05162022 minutes
	5 CC 05022022 minutes
	6a JCLI and Josephine County
	6a JCLI Professional Services
	6a Library Services
	6c Gratzer application
	6d Ordinance 1082
	6e Ordinance 1083
	6f Ordinance 1084
	6g Ordinance 1085
	6h Resolution 22-06-01
	6i Resolution 22-06-02
	7a Ordinance 1087
	7c Fox Creek Project Grant Timelines and Processes
	8 Bank Reconciliation- March 2022
	8 Budget Comparison- March 2022
	8 Budget Variance- March 2022
	8 Check Register- March 2022
	8 City Administrator Report
	8 ODOT Notice



